




22

47

4702

31

Statutory Auditor
M/s. B M Chaturvedi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
32, Jolly Maker Chambers II,

Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400021

VCG & Company
110, Kusal Bazar

32-33, Nehru Place
New Delhi – 110 019

Internal Auditor
Union Bank of India

Indian Overseas Bank
ICICI Bank Limited

Bankers

Senior Management Personnel

Shri Anup Kumar Kirtan
Shri K.D. Bhattacharya
Shri Sarvesh Kumar
Shri S.C. Maitra
Shri R.N. Singh

Credit & Operations
System & Administration
Regional Business Head – North & West
Regional Business Head – East
Regional Business Head – South

Chief Financial Officer
Shri Vivek Kapoor

48

Registered & Corporate office

CIN : L18100WB1991PLC099782
46, Dr. Sundari Mohan Avenue,

Kolkata - 700 014
Tel: +91 33 22896708

Visit us at: www.saharahousingfina.com,
Email: info.saharahousingfina@gmail.com

info.saharahousingfina@sahara.in

Infomerics Valuation and
Rating Pvt. Ltd.

Office No. 1105-B Wing,
Kanakia Wallstreet,

Off. Andheri Kurla Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai -400093

Rating Agency
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

GDA House
Plot No.: 85, Bhusari Colony (Right)

Paud Road, Pune - 411038

Debenture Trustee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

Smt. Anshu Roy

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C O N T E N T S
Directors’ Report

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

Report on Corporate Governance

Certificate of Corporate Governance

Declaration Regarding Compliance by
Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel with the Company’s Code of
Conduct

Hosfinas’ Financials

Address of the Stock Exchange

BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001
Company Stock Code – 511533

International Securities Identification
(ISIN) – INE – 135C01012

Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal Shri Awdhesh Kumar Srivastava

Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Shri D.J. Bagchi

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Link Intime India Private Limited

Rasoi Court 5 th  floor ,
20, Sir R N Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700 001

Ph: +91 33 4073 1698
Number Fax: +91 33 4073 1698
E-mail: kolkata@linkintime.co.in

Contact Person: Shri  Kuntal Mustafi



2

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors of Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited (“the Company” or “SHCL”) is pleased to present the 33rd Annual
Report and the Audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended  March 31, 2024 (“financial year under
review”).

� Financial Summary

The Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 as compared to the previous financial year ended
March 31, 2023 is summarised below;

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Gross Income 1062.65 1120.26

Less:
– Interest 367.17 452.08
– Overheads 466.13 410.69
– Depreciation 44.40 48.79

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 184.95 208.70
Provision for Taxation
– Current Tax 37.73 34.12
– Deferred Tax 1.08 16.71
–  Income Tax related to earlier years 5.69 16.27
Profit After Tax (PAT) 140.45 141.60
Add: Profit carried from earlier years 2515.24 2400.92
Profit available for appropriations 2655.69 2542.52
Appropriations
Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 read with 29.22 27.28
Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 2626.47 2515.24

Total 2626.47 2515.24

� Business Overview

Some of the key highlights of your company’s
performance during the year under review;
(a) Gross Income

The Gross Income for the year under review was
` 1062.65 Lakh as against the previous financial
year’s income of ` 1120.26 Lakh.

(b) Profit (PBT & PAT) & Income

Your Company’s Profit Before Tax (PBT) for the current
financial year is ` 184.95 Lakh as compared to
` 208.70 Lakh in the previous financial year and the
Profit After Tax (PAT) for the current financial year is
`140.45 Lakh as against `141.60 Lakh in the previous
year.
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(c) Net Owned Fund (NOF) & Assets under
Management (AUM)

� Shareholder’s Equity (Net Owned Fund) as on March
31, 2024 was ` 4998.46 Lakhs as against ` 4824.05
Lakhs in the previous year.

� The Total Assets under Management of the Company
as on March 31, 2024 was ` 7576.74 Lakhs as
against `7866.63 Lakhs in the previous year.

(d) Transfer to Special Reserve

During the year under review, your company
transferred ` 29.22 Lakhs to the Statutory Reserve
under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
read with Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987.

Deferred Tax Liability on the Special Reserve for the
year under review has been created in accordance
with Clause 101.2 of Chapter XIV of the Master
Direction–Non-Banking Financial Company [Housing
Finance Company] (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

(e) Earnings per Share (EPS)

The Earnings per share (EPS) as on March 31, 2024
was ` 2.01 as against ` 2.03 as on March 31, 2023.

(f) Share Capital

The paid-up equity share capital as on March 31,
2024 was ` 7.00 Crores, divided into 7,000,000
equity share of face value of `10 each.

i. Issue of Equity Shares with differential Rights/
Buy Back

The Company neither issued equity shares with
differential rights during the financial year 2023-
24 nor bought back any of its shares during the
year under review.

ii. Issue of Sweat Equity Shares

The Company did not issue any sweat equity
shares during the financial year 2023-24.

iii. Issue of Employee Stock Options

The Company did not issue any stock options
during the financial year 2023-24.

iv. Provision by company for purchase of its own
shares by employees or by trustees for the
benefit of employees

The Company does not have a scheme for
purchase of its own shares by employees or by

any Trustee for the benefit of employees.

(g) Subordinated Debt

Your Company did not raise any fresh money through
subordinated debt during the year under review.

(h) Issue of (Unlisted) Secured Non Convertible
Debenture (NCD)

Your company did not raise fresh money through
(Unlisted) Secured Non Convertible Debentures
(NCD) during the year under review. As on March
31, 2024, your Company’s outstanding secured long
time borrowing was ̀  30 Cr. and interest due thereon
has been paid. Infomerics Valuation and Rating Pvt.
Ltd. has given credit rating of IVR BB-/Stable (IVR
double B minus with Stable Outlook)

(i) Material Changes & Commitments occurring
after the end of Financial Year

No material changes and/or commitments affecting
the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which the
attached financial statements relate to and upto the
date of this report.

(j) Capital Adequacy

As per the Clause 6.1 of Chapter IV of the Master
Direction-Non-Banking-Financial Company–Housing
Finance Company-(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021,
every Housing Finance Company (HFC) shall
maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
of 15 per cent as on March 31, 2022 & thereafter.
The Capital Adequacy Ratio of your Company as
on March 31 of Year 2024, 2023 and 2022 is set
out in the table below:

As on March 31

2024 2023 2022

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 110.84 106.22 91.10

(k) Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

Your Company does not have any subsidiary nor
has it made any investment in associates or joint
ventures. Consequently, the disclosure requirement
as stipulated in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule (5)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not
applicable.

Particulars
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provision for contingencies on standard as well as
non-performing housing loans and other loans as
per the norms set by RBI.

The amount of Gross Non-Performing Assets (GNPA)
on the Housing Loan portfolio as on March 31, 2024
was ` 583.06 lakhs against ` 653.88 lakhs as at
March 31, 2023. The Executive Management is
taking necessary steps to contain the same within
limit.

(o) Dividend

The Board of Director’s felt it prudent to retain the
earnings for the year under review to be ploughed
back in the lending business which shall result in
augmenting the Company’s growth and consequently
shareholder’s wealth.

(p) Deposits

Your Company has been granted certificate of
registration by National Housing Bank, New Delhi
as a non-deposit taking Housing Finance
Company. In accordance with the said stipulations,
the Company under the current management has
neither accepted in the past nor has any future plans
to accept any public deposits, by whatever name
called. There are no unclaimed deposits as on
March 31, 2024.

(q) Particulars of Loans Guarantees or Investments

Since the company is a Housing Finance Company,
the disclosure regarding particulars of loans given,
guarantees given and security provided is exempt
under the provision of Section 186(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

As regards investments, there are no investments
made by the Company for the year ended March
31, 2024 except short term investment in Fixed
Deposit with a Nationalised Bank.

(r) Regulatory and Statutory Compliances:

The Company is regulated by the statutory regulators
including but not limited to the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Reserve Bank of India, National Housing
Bank, Stock Exchanges and Securities and Exchange
Board of India.

All the relevant circulars, notifications, guidelines
and Directions issued by the aforesaid statutory
regulators were duly placed before the Board of
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(l) Lending Performance

During the year under review, the Company disbursed
loans aggregating to `1384.75 lakhs as against
`1596.19 lakhs in the previous year. The overall
outstanding loan portfolio as at March 31, 2024 stood
at ` 7576.74 lakhs as against ` 7866.63 lakhs in the
previous year March 31, 2023.

The Cumulative Log-in, Sanction and Disbursement
as on March 31, 2024 and 2023 are as under;

No. of Amount
Particulars Accounts (` in Lakhs)

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Cumulative 6691 6613 74661.73 72404.98
Log-in

Cumulative 4482 4417 49593.77 47822.27
Sanction

Cumulative 4323 4268 49138.49 47753.74
Disbursement

(m) Fresh Loans

The year-wise sanction and disbursement details for
the previous five years are as under;

 (` In Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.24 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.21 31.03.20

Sanction 1771.50 1488.85 1085.76 1292.62 (4072.26)

Disbursement 1384.75 1596.19 1015.49 1272.12 836.03

The Company continues to serve from four regions,
East (Kolkata), North (Lucknow), South (Hyderabad)
and West (Mumbai) and eleven branches located at
Kolkata, Siliguri, Ranchi, Durgapur, Lucknow,
Gorakhpur, Mumbai, Pune, Hyderabad, Vijayawada
and Visakhapatnam.

(n) Non-Performing Assets and Provisions for
Contingency

Your Company strictly adheres to the prudential
guidelines for Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) issued
by the Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial
Company Housing Finance Company - (Reserve
Bank of India) under its Directions of 2021, as
amended from time to time. As per the prudential
norms, the Company did not recognise any income
on such NPAs. The Company has made appropriate



Directors at regular intervals to update the Board
members on compliance of the same.

Your Company has adhered to all the applicable
circulars, notifications, and guidelines issued from
time to time. Your Company is also in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules made thereunder including Secretarial
Standards and other applicable statutory requirements

(s) Master Direction–Non-Banking Financial
Company–Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021

Your Company is in Compliance with the Master
Directions–Non-Banking Financial Company–Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
and as updated from time to time

(t) Regulations Issued by Securities And Exchange
Board of India (SEBI):

Your Company is in Compliance with the applicable
circular, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI
from time to time including but not limited to SEBI
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021, SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended from time to time as on the date
of this report.

(u) Compliance with Principal Business Criteria

Your Company is adhering to Principal Business
Criteria for HFCs as specified under Master
Directions–Non-Banking Financial Company–Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
and as updated from time to time.

(v) Other Regulatory Compliance

The Company has also been following directions,
guidelines, circulars issued by SEBI, Stock Exchange
(BSE) and MCA from time to time pertaining to listed
companies.

In order to prevent frauds in loan cases involving
multiple lending from different banks/housing finance
companies, the Government of India has set up the
Central  Registry of Securi t izat ion Asset
Reconstruction and Security Interest of India
(CERSAI) under Section 20 of the SARFAESI Act
2002 to have a central database of all mortgages

created by lending institutions. Your Company is
registered with CERSAI and the data in respect
thereto is being submitted, from time to time.

� Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Your Board deeply regrets the sad demise of Late
Brijendra Sahay (DIN:00017600) Independent
Director of the Company on 14th February 2024.
Late Brijendra Sahay was associated as a member
on the Board of Directors of the Company for more
than two decades and had immensely contributed
to the substantial growth and wellness of the
company over the years through his invaluable
advice and guidance.

The Board wishes to records its highest gratitude
and appreciation of Late Brijendra Sahay’s services
towards the Company during his long tenure as a
Director of the Company.

On the basis of the recommendation of Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and subject to approval
of the members of the company in the ensuing
annual general meeting, the Board of Directors of
the Company has, on March 05, 2024, appointed
Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal (DIN: 07093037), as an
Additional Director, in the category of Independent
Director for a continuous period of 5 years ending
on March 04, 2029.

Ms. Anshu Roy (DIN 05257404) resigned as an
Independent Director of the Company with effect
from 31st July 2024 due to medical reasons. Your
Board wishes to place on records its sincere gratitude
and appreciation of the invaluable support and
services rendered by her to the company during her
long tenure of almost 10 years as a member on the
Board.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Awdhesh Kumar
Srivastava, (DIN: 02323304) (Non-Executive & Non-
Independent) Director of your Company retires by
rotation and is eligible for reappointment at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Brief resume of the Directors, proposed to be
appointed/re-appointed, nature of their expertise in
specific functional areas and name(s) of other
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companies in which they hold Directorships along
with their Membership/Chairmanship of Committees
of the Board as stipulated under Regulation 36(3)
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulation 2015 shall be furnished
in the Annexures to the Notice of the Thirty-third
Annual General Meeting of the Company that will
be sent to the members along with the Annual
Report.

Based on the confirmations received, none of the
Directors are disqualified for being appointed /
reappointed as Directors in terms of Section 164
the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, no stock options were
issued to the Directors of the Company.

All Independent Directors have given declarations
that they meet the criteria of independence, as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and the provisions of Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Shri D J Bagchi, CEO & Company Secretary was
reappointed as “Manager” under Section 196, 197,
198, and as a Key Managerial Personnel under
Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. The earlier
appointment of Shri D J Bagchi as Manager expired
on July 30, 2024. The Board of Directors of your
Company, in its meeting held on May 29, 2024, on
the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, thought it prudent to re-
appoint Shri D J Bagchi, as Chief Executive Officer
and Manager under Section 196, 197, 198, and as
a Key Managerial Personnel under Section 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
for a further period of three years w.e.f. July 31,
2024 subject to the approval of the members at its
forthcoming Annual General Meeting .Necessary
resolution for the said re-appointment is being
proposed in the notice of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting for the approval of the members.

Shri Vivek Kapoor continues to serve your company
as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Key
Managerial Personnel under Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

a) Fit and Proper Declarations given by the
Directors

Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted
by the Company in terms of Chapter IX –
Corporate Governance of Master Direction–Non-
Banking Financial Company–Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
issued by RBI, the Company has received the
requisite declarations and undertaking from all
Directors of the Company.

b) Declarations by Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors have submitted
the declaration of independence, as required
pursuant to provisions of the Section 149(7) of
the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of
the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing
Regulation and are not disqualified from
continuing as Independent Directors of the
Company. Further, the Independent Directors
have confirmed their registration/exemption
on/from Independent Directors Databank. These
declarations/confirmations have been placed
before the Board

� Board Meetings

The Board during the relevant financial year had
met five times on May 30, 2023, August 14, 2023,
November 07, 2023, February 09, 2024 and March
05, 2024 respectively.

� Debenture Trustees:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited having its registered
office at Unit No.: 901, 9th Floor,Tower-B, Peninsula
Business Park Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel
(W) Mumbai – 400013

� Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Link Intime India Private Limited having its registered
office at 247 Park, C 101, 1st Floor, L B S Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra–400083 is
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company.

� Auditors

M/s. B M Chaturvedi & Co. Chartered Accountant
(Firm Registration No: 114317W)  were appointed
as Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold the
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office with effect from the conclusion of 31st Annual
General Meeting (AGM) held on 28th September
2022 for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of
36th Annual General Meeting (AGM). The
appointment is in compliance with the notification
issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated April
27, 2021 on Guidelines for appointment of Statutory
Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors(SAs) of
Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and
NBFCs (including HFCs) (RBI Guidelines).
The Company is in compliance with para 54 of
Master Direction on Non-Banking Financial Company
– Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 on Rotation of the partners of the
Statutory Auditors Firm.

Notes to Accounts and Auditors Report

The Statutory Auditors have not made any adverse
comments or given any qualification, reservation,
or adverse remarks or disclaimer in their Audit Report
on the financial statements of the Company for the
Financial Year 2023-2024. Also, the Statutory Auditors
have not reported any instances of fraud in the
Company committed by officers or employees of
the Company to the Audit Committee under Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

� Secretarial Audit Report

In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules
2014, Shri P V Subramanian, Practicing Company
Secretaries, was appointed as Secretarial Auditors
to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the financial year 2023-24. The Report of Secretarial
Auditor is annexed as “Annexure – 2” to this report.
The report does not contain any qualification,
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers.

� Directors’ Responsibility Statement pursuant to
Section 134(5) of The Companies Act, 2013

Your Directors would like to inform that the audited
accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024 are in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 and they believe that the financial
statements reflect fairly the form and substance of
transactions carried out during the year and
reasonably present the Company’s financial condition
and results of operations.

These Financial Statements are audited by M/s. B
M Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants the
Statutory Auditors of the Company and pursuant to
the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that;

a. that in the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there were no material departures;

b. that appropriate accounting policies have been
selected and applied consistently, and Directors
have made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2024, and of the profit of the
Company for that year;

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d. that the annual accounts have been prepared
on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e. that proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating
effectively; and

f. that internal financial controls to be followed by
the Company have been laid down and that
such internal financial controls are adequate
and operating effectively.

Disclosure under Sub-Section (3) of Section 134
of Companies Act, 2013, Read with Rule 8(3) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing
activity and thus its operations are not energy
intensive and the particulars relating to conservation
of energy and technology absorption as per Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are
not applicable. There has been no foreign exchange
earnings and outgo during the year under review.

� Employee Remuneration

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to
the median employees remuneration and other
particulars or details of employees pursuant to
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Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 along
with the names of top 10 employees in terms of
remuneration drawn read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended
are attached to this Report as “Annexure – 1”.

� Maintenance of Cost Records

The maintenance of cost records has not been
specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Act for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company at
present.

� Prevention of Sexual harassment at Work Place

The Company has Zero tolerance towards any
action on the part of any executive/staff which may
fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at
workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and
maintain the dignity of every women executive/staff
working in the company.  The following is a summary
of Sexual Harassment complaints received and
disposed of during the financial year 2023-24;

No. of complaints received: Nil

No. of complaints disposed of: Nil

� Corporate Governance & Management
Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate
section titled Report on Corporate Governance and
Management Discussion and Analysis forms part
of this Annual Report. The Report on Corporate
Governance also includes certain disclosures that
are required, as per Companies Act, 2013.

The certificate by Shri P V Subramanian, Practicing
whole time Company Secretary, ACS no.4585 (CP:
2077) with regards to compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
forms part of this Annual Report.

� Internal Control

The Company has an adequate internal audit
system in place whereby the Internal Audit is

conducted by the Internal Auditor and reports are
submitted on a periodic basis. The audit function
maintains its independence and objectivity while
carrying out its assignments. It evaluates on a
continuous basis the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal control mechanism, adherence to policies,
procedures as well as regulatory and legal
requirements. The function also recommends
improvement in operational processes and suggests
streamlining of controls against various risks. The
Audit Committee of the Board reviews the internal
audit function on a continuous basis.

� Significant/Material Orders Passed by the
Regulator or Court or Tribunals

There were no significant / material orders passed
by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and
its future operations.

There are no proceedings, either filed by the
Company or filed against the Company, pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
as amended, before the National Company Law
Tribunal or other Courts as at the end of the Financial
Year 2023-24.

� Change in the Nature of Business

In the financial year under review, there was no
change in the nature of the business of the Company.

� Nomination (Including Boards Diversity)
Remuneration & Evaluation Policy

The Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of
Directors/ KMP/ Senior Management has been
formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) and same has been approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company. The said
policy is for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, and independence of a Director, KMP,
and Senior Management.

Salient features of the said policy are as follows;

a. Appointment and Removal of Directors, KMP,
and Senior Management;

b. Evaluation/ Assessment of Directors/ KMP/ Senior
Management;

c. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors and
Executive Directors; and
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d. Remuneration to the Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management

� Related Party Transaction Policy & Transactions

In accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder;
the transactions entered with related parties during
the financial year were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length pricing basis, the
details of which are included in the notes forming
part of the Financial Statements. Further, during the
financial year under review, the Company had not
entered into transactions with related parties, which
could be considered to be ‘material’ in accordance
with the Related Party Transaction Policy of the
Company and therefore, the disclosure of Related
Party Transactions as required under Clause (h) of
sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the
Company for financial year 2022-23 and hence the
same is not provided.

The Related Party Policy is available on the
website of the Company at the URL http://
www.saharahousingfina.com/misc/SHCL_Related
_Party_Transaction_Policy_Amended_28-May-
2022.pdf

Evaluation of Performance of Board, its
Committees, and Individual Directors;

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board at its meeting held on November
07, 2023, carried out an annual evaluation on the
performance of the Board, that of its committee(s)
and individual Directors and expressed its satisfaction
as to their performance for the Financial Year
2023-24.

The performance of the committee i.e. Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
Risk Management Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee was also evaluated on the
basis of its composition, effectiveness in carrying
out its mandate, relevance of its recommendations,
and allocation of adequate time to fulfil its mandate.

The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent
Director and Board Committees and the Board as
a whole was also carried out by the Independent
Directors at their separate meeting held on 07th
November, 2023.

The details of evaluation process as carried out and
the evaluation criteria and framework have been
explained in the Corporate Governance Report,
forming part of this Annual Report.

Insurance of Company’s Property

Your Company has insured its various properties
and facilities against the risk of fire, theft, etc., so
that financials are not impacted in the unfortunate
event of such incidents. However, your Company
does not offer at present Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance Policy.

Risk Management Policy & Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO)

The company has in place Asset Liability Committee
(ALCO) which monitors and on an ongoing basis,
liquidity, interest rate and funding risks to which the
Company is susceptible. Liquidity risk is caused by
an asset-liability mismatch resulting from a difference
in the maturity profile of the assets and liabilities.
Unexpected increases in the cost of funding an asset
portfolio, at the appropriate maturity, and the risk of
being unable to liquidate a position in a timely manner
at a reasonable price, are some of the triggers of
this risk.

The liquidity risk among housing finance companies
stems from the fact that the assets generated by
housing finance companies have an average tenure
of 10-12 years, while the liabilities have seven to
ten years. The Company actively monitors its liquidity
position to ensure that it can meet all requirements
of its borrowers, while also meeting the requirements
of its lenders, and also strengthen its ability to
consider investment opportunities as they arise. The
Asset Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”),
comprising Senior Management Team who lays
down policies and quantitative limits which the Audit
Committee and the Board are periodically apprised
in this regard.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 and
schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, at present
the CSR provisions are not applicable to the
Company.



� Codes, Standards and Policies

(a) Know Your Customer & Anti-Money Laundering
Measures

Your Company has a Board approved Know Your
Customer & Anti Money Laundering Measure
Policy (KYC & AML Policy) in place, which is strictly
adhered to. The said Policy is in line with the
Master Direction - Non-Banking-Financial
Company Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021.

The Company has also adhered to the compliance
requirement in terms of the said policy relating to
the monitoring and reporting of cash / suspicious
transactions. The Company is committed to furnish
to Financial Intelligence Unit (FIU), India, in the
electronic medium, information of all cash
transactions of the value of more than Rupees
ten lakh or its equivalent in foreign currency and
suspicious transactions, whether or not made in
cash, in terms of the said Policy.

The said policy is available on the website of the
C o m p a n y  a t  t h e  U R L h t t p : / / w w w
saharahousingfina.com/misc/SHCL_RBI_KYC_
09022024_PDF.pdf

(b) Fair Practice Code

Your Company has in place a Fair Practice Code
(FPC), which includes guidelines on appropriate
staff conduct when dealing with the customers
and on the organisations policies vis-à-vis client
protection. The FPC is being revised and updated
to align the same with the improved practices in
relation to the dealings of the Company with its
customers, and as the Master Direction – Non-
Banking Financial Company Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

The said policy is available in various languages
on the website of the Company at the
URLhttp://www.saharahousingfina.com/misc/SH
C L _ R B I _ F P C _ 0 9 0 2 2 0 2 4 -
English&Regional_Language.pdf

(c) Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9)&(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
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Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your Company
has in place a Whistle Blower Policy, which
provides for a vigil mechanism that encourages
and supports its Directors and employees to
report instances of illegal activities, unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation
of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics
Policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards
against victimisation of persons who use this
mechanism and direct access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

The said policy is available on the website
of the Company at the URL http://www.
saharahousingfina.com/misc/ SHCL_Whistle_
Blower_Policy.pdf

(d) Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and
the Senior Management Personnel

Your Company has in place Code of Conduct for
the Board of Directors and the Senior
Management Personnel to set forth the guiding
principles on which the Company and its Board
and Senior Management Personnel shall operate
and conduct themselves with stakeholders,
government and regulatory agencies, media and
anyone else with whom it is connected in a
professional and respectful manner.

The declaration by the CEO of the Company
regarding compliance with the Code of Conduct
for Board Members and Senior Management is
annexed with the Corporate Governance report.

The said policy is available on website of the
C o m pa n y  a t  t h e  U R L h t t p : / / w w w.
saharahousingfina.com/misc/SHCL_ Code_ of_
Conduct_Revised_13-Dec-2019.pdf

(e) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading
Practices

Your Company has formulated and adopted a
Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices
in accordance with the model code of conduct
as prescribed under the SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The code
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lays down guidelines, which includes procedures
to be followed and disclosures to be made while
dealing in the shares of the Company. The code
is applicable to the promoters, directors, senior
designated employees and the said persons are
restricted from dealing in the securities of the
Company during the restricted trading periods
notified by the Company.

(f) Policy in Disclosure of Material Events and
Information

Your Company has formulated and adopted the
policy on disclosure of material events and
information, in accordance with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to
determine the events and information which are
material in nature and are required
to be disclosed to the stock exchanges.

The said policy is available on website of the
C o m pa n y  a t  t h e  U R L h t t p : / / w w w.
saharahous ing f ina .com/annua l repor t /
Materiality_Policy.pdf

(g) Policy on Preservation of Documents and
Records

Your Company has formulated and adopted the
policy on documents and records in accordance
with Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The policy ensures that the
company complies with the applicable documents
retention laws, preservations of various statutory
documents and also lays down minimum retention
period for the documents and records in respect
of which no retention period has been specified
by any laws / rule / regulations.

(h) Other Policies as Per RBI/NHB Rules/
Guidelines

Your Company has formulated and adopted the
policies on Partial / Part-Prepayments,
Foreclosure / Pre-closure of loan prior to actual
/ agreed date of closure, Code of Conduct for
Direct Selling Agents, Guidelines for Recovery
Agents, Policy on Refunds of Fees (AF/PF), etc

in order to upgrade the procedures of collecting
the information from the prospective borrowers
and to ensure fair practices in dealing with the
borrowers.

� Listing of Shares of the Company

The Equity Shares of your Company continue to
remain listed (Group-X) on the BSE Ltd. The
Company has paid the listing fees as payable to the
BSE Ltd. for the financial year 2024-25.

� Technology Updation

The Company is going through the exercise of
upgrading the existing in-house developed software
as per the modest sized HFC and as per the
requirement of the regulators. It is expected that
with its gradual commissioning of the entire facet of
the business i.e. Operations, Credit, Finance &
Accounts, Regulatory Report and Returns, MIS etc.
shall be system driven with greater efficiency, checks,
balance and alerts. The process of procurement of
hardware/software has already been completed and
onward development work is in advanced stage.
The commissioning of the in-house software will be
undertaken in a progressive and stage-wise manner.

� Depository System

The Company has entered into an agreement with
CDSL/NSDL for transaction of shares in
dematerialized form.As on March 31, 2024, only
2.95 per cent of the Company’s paid up Share
Capital consisting of 2,06,209 shares were held in
physical form. As per the Securities and Exchange
Board of India’s (SEBI) instructions, the Company’s
shares have to be transacted in dematerialised form
and therefore, members are requested to convert
their holdings to dematerial ised form. .

� Human Resources and Training

Your Company believes that work is created when
employee relate themselves to the goal of the
organisation, feels connected to their leaders and
have a sense of belonging. Your Company’s focus
is to stay strong on providing our employee a work
environment that welcomes diversity, nurtures
positive relationships, provides challenging work
assignments and provides opportunities based on
the merit of employee to grow and build their careers
with us in line with their aspirations.
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As on 31st March 2024, the employee strength of
the Company was 29 employees.

� Go Green Initiatives

Like previous year, the go green initiative to send
annual report in electronic format to the shareholders
who have registered their e-mail ID with their
Depository Participant, shall be continued. The
shareholders who have not yet registered their
e-mail ID are requested to do so to enable the
Company to effectively comply with this initiative.

� Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read and Section 134(3)(a)
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return as
at March 31, 2024, is available on the website of the
C o m p a n y  a t  t h e  l i n k :  h t t p / / w w w .
saharahousingfina.com/ misc/SHCL_MGT-7_AGM-
Draft-Website.pdf.
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Your Directors place on record their sincere
appreciation for the assistance and guidance provided
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support and co-operation extended by them from
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Your Directors place on record their gratitude for the
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Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
and the Credit Rating Agencies from time to time.

Your Directors also place on record their sincere
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Kolkata
August 14, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Rajiv Kumar Lal)  (A K Srivastava)
Director Director
DIN: 07093037 DIN: 02323304



I The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median
remuneration of the employees for the financial year 2023-24.

II The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director,
Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer in the financial year.

III The percentage increase in the median remuneration of
employees in the financial year.

IV The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the
Company.

V Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase
in the managerial remuneration.

VI Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration
policy of the Company.

The Directors are not paid any remuneration apart from
the ‘Sitting Fees’. Hence, no disclosure is applicable.
There was no increase in the remuneration of CEO/CFO
in the financial year 2023-24. The Directors are not paid
any remuneration apart from the ‘Sitting Fees’.
There was no increase in the median remuneration of
employees in the financial year 2023-24.
There were 29 permanent employees on the rolls of the
Company, as on March 31, 2024.
Not Applicable as there was no increase in remuneration
in the financial year 2023-24. (Save and except inflation
adjustment)

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

S l .
No. Requirements Disclosure

Annexure – 1

TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars of Top Ten Employees for the year ended on March 31, 2024

Particulars of employees pursuant to section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read with rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
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Notes : 1. Nature of Employment and duties: Permanent and in accordance with terms and conditions as per Companies rules.
2. Remuneration received includes salary, allowances, retirement benefits and monetary value of other perquisites computed on the basis

of the Income Tax Act and Rules.
3. No employee is a relative of any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, Rules 5(2)(iii) of the captioned Rules is not

applicable to any employee.

Shri D.J. Bagchi 61 - Chief Executive Officer & 5,311,077 F.C.S. & LLB 34 16.02.2004 Dewan Housing Finance
Company Secretary Corporation Ltd.

Shri Vivek Kapoor 55 - Chief Financial Officer 1,899,675 Graduate 32 12.08.2003 Ganpati Projects Limited
Shri Anup Kirtan 55 - Deputy Chief Manager 1,771,875 I.C.W.A. 24 07.07.2003 Lovelock & Lewes

Services (P) Ltd.
Shri Sarvesh Kumar 54 - Assistant Chief Manager 1,432,902 Post Graduate 30 16.01.2004 SBI Home Finance
Shri K.D. Bhattacharya 51 - Assistant Chief Manager 1,401,902 MBA 27 01.07.2003 Bengal Ambuja Housing

Development Ltd.
Shri Arnab Chaudhury 54 - Assistant Senior Manager 872,625 Graduate &. 25 05.11.2004 Bengal Ambuja Metro

 PGD.C.A Development Ltd.
Shri Ranjan Saha 59 - Manager 846,414 Graduate 31 10.05.2006 Senbo Engineering Ltd.
Shri Nasir Karim Shaikh 48 - Deputy Manager 859,119 Graduate 25 01.06.2005 Birla Housing Finance Ltd.
Shri Jignesh Gunvantlal 42 - Deputy Manager 703,752 Higher 19 01.06.2005 Sun Financials.
Thakar Secondary

Shri Manish Gaur 41 - Assistant Manager 585,459 Graduate 20 11.09.2006 IDBI Home Finance

Name Age
(Yrs)

No. of
Share
Held

Designation Remuneration
(`)

Qualification Experience
(years)

Date of
Commencement
of Employment

Previous
Employment
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Annexure – 2
TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024.
To,
The Members,
Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).  Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis of evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that, in my opinion, the Company, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2024, has generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:-

1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Sahara Housingfina
Corporation Limited (‘the Company’) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; and

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; and

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018.

(vi) The following laws were specifically applicable to the Company vis-a-vis the nature of its business:-

(a) The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and rules, regulations and guidelines  prescribe there under;

(b) Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
read with the relevant notifications and circulars; &

(c) Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest (SARFAESI), Act., 2002

2. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company during the financial year under report:-



(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

3. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:-

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to board and general meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
&

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd.

4. During the period under report the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

5. I further report that;

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors.  The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act;

(ii) Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings. Agenda and notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and further information and clarifications on the agenda items were
provided for meaningful participation at the meetings; and

(iii) All decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously.

(iv) The Company has complied with the requirements of Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) of SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2015, i.e.
maintenance of Structured Digital Database (SDD) and submission of Compliance Certificate to the Stock Exchanges.

6. I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

7. I further report that, to the best of my understanding, the Company had not undertaken any event / action having a major bearing
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

8. This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Appendix-I and forms an integral part of this report.

Place : Kolkata
Date : August 14, 2024

P V SUBRAMANIAN
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice
ACS No.: 4585
CoP. No.: 2077
Form UDIN:A004585F000948761
PR No.: 1613/2021
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Appendix-I

(To the Secretarial Audit Report to the Members of Sahara Housingfina
Corporation Limited for the financial year ended March 31, 2024)

To,
The Members,
Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited.

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.  My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts reflected on
secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the responsibility
of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy of effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Kolkata
Date : August 14, 2024

P V SUBRAMANIAN
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice
ACS No.: 4585
CoP. No.: 2077
Form UDIN:A004585F000948761
PR No.: 1613/2021
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POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. Introduction

The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules
framed thereunder as well as the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the
“Listing Regulations”) contain detailed provisions
relating to Related Party Transactions.

This Policy on Related Party Transactions (this “Policy”)
has been framed as per the requirements of the
Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations and is intended
to ensure proper approval and reporting of the
concerned transactions by the company with their
related parties, as required under the Listing
Regulations.

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (List ing Obligat ions and Disclosure
Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2021
dated November 9, 2021, this Policy has been
amended and approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company, based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, at its meeting held on May 28,
2022. It is hereby clarified that the amendments
introduced in the Listing Regulations that would
come into force with effect from April 1, 2023 were
incorporated in this Policy as and when they become
applicable

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, this Policy
shall govern the Related Party Transactions by the
Company to the extent applicable to them. This Policy
shall be effective from April 1, 2022.

2. Purpose

The Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended (“Listing Regulations”) requires all listed
companies to formulate a Policy on materiality of
Related Party Transactions and also on dealing with
Related Party Transactions including clear threshold
limits duly approved by the Board of Directors. The
regulation further requires that the audit committee
of Company shall define “material modifications” and
disclose it as part of the policy on materiality of related
party transactions and on dealing with related party
transactions. This Policy has been framed for
complying with above requirement.

3. Definitions

i. “Act” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules framed there under, including any modifications,
clarifications, circulars or re-enactment thereof.

ii. “Arm’s length transaction” means a transaction
between two related parties that is conducted as if they
were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

iii. “Associate Company” shall mean “Associate
Company” as defined in Section 2(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

iv. “Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board
of Directors of the Company, as constituted from time
to time.

v. “Company” means Sahara Housingfina Corporation
Limited.

vi. “Director” means a person as defined in Section 2(34)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii. “Employees” shall mean the employees and office-
bearers of the Company, including but not limited to
Directors.

viii. “Government Company” shall mean “Government
Company” as defined in Section 2 (45) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with related rules issued thereon.

ix. “Key Managerial Personnel” shall mean “Key
Managerial Personnel” as defined in Section 2 (51) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules issued
thereon

x. “Material Related Party Transaction” In accordance
with Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, w.e.f.
April 01, 2022 a transaction with a related party shall
be considered material, if the transaction(s) to be
entered into individually or taken together with previous
transactions during a financial year, exceeds rupees
one thousand crore or ten per cent of the annual
consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last
audited financial statements of the Company, whichever
is lower or such other limit as may be specified in the
applicable Regulation as amended from time to time.

Notwithstanding the above, a transaction involving
payments made to a related party with respect to brand
usage or royalty shall be considered material if the
transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken
together with previous transactions during a financial
year, exceed five percent (or such other limit as may
be specified in the applicable Regulation as amended
from time to time) of the annual consolidated turnover
of the Company as per the last audited financial
statements of the Company.
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xi. Material Modification means increase in value of
transactions approved by Audit Committee by 20%.

xii. “Office or Place of Profit” means any office or
place

(i) where such office or place is held by a director,
if the director holding it receives from the
Company anything by way of remuneration over
and above the remuneration to which he is entitled
as director, by way of salary, fee, commission,
perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or
otherwise;

(ii) where such office or place is held by an individual
other than a director or by any firm, private
company or other body corporate, if the individual,
firm, private company or body corporate holding
it receives from the company anything by way of
remuneration, salary, fee, commission,
perquisites, any rent free accommodation, or
otherwise.”

xiii. “Ordinary Course of Business” means the usual
transactions, customs and practices undertaken by
the Company to conduct its business operations and
activities and includes all such activities which the
Company can undertake as per Memorandum &
Articles of Association. The Audit Committee may lay
down principles from time to time for determining
ordinary course of business in accordance with
statutory requirements and other industry practices
and guidelines.

xiv. “Policy” means Policy on Materiality of Related Party
Transactions and dealing with Related Party
Transactions.

xv. “Relative” shall mean “relative” as defined in section
2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules prescribed
there under.

xvi. “Related Party” means a related party as defined
under sub-section (76) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or under the applicable accounting
standards: Provided that;
(a) any person or entity forming a part of the promoter

or promoter group of the Company; or
(b) any person or any entity, holding equity shares;

(i) of twenty per cent or more; or
(ii) of ten per cent or more, with effect from April

1, 2023 in the Company either directly or on
a beneficial interest basis as provided under
section 89 of the Companies Act, 2013, at
any time, during the immediate preceding
financial year; shall be deemed to be a related
party

xvii. “Related Party Transaction or transactions” means
a transaction involving a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between;

(i) a Company or any of its subsidiaries on one hand
and a related party of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries on the other hand; or

(ii) a Company or any of its subsidiaries on one hand,
and any other person or entity on the other hand,
the purpose and effect of which is to benefit a
related party of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, with effect from April 1, 2023;

(a) The issue of specified securities on a preferential
basis, subject to compliance of the requirements
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(b) The following corporate actions by the company
which are uniformly applicable/offered to all
shareholders in proportion to their shareholding;
(i) payment of dividend;
(ii) subdivision or consolidation of securities;
(iii) issuance of securities by way of a rights issue

or a bonus issue; and
(iv) buy-back of securities.

(c) acceptance of fixed deposits by banks/Non-
Banking Finance Companies at the terms
u n i f o r m l y  a p p l i c a b l e / o f f e r e d  t o  a l l
shareholders/public, subject to disclosure of the
same along with the disclosure of related party
transactions every six months to the stock
exchange(s), in the format as specified by the
Board:

Provided further that this definition shall not be
applicable for the units issued by mutual funds
which are listed on a recognised stock
exchange(s);

4. Policy

- Procedure

A. Identification of Potential Related Party
Transactions

For the purpose of identification of Potential Related
Party Transactions, each Director and Key Managerial
Personnel shall give notice of disclosure of interest
on an annual basis and upon any subsequent
modifications in the last disclosure provided. The
Company shall ensure that no transaction is entered
into with any Related Party without requisite approvals.



B. Review and approval of Related Party Transactions

1. Audit Committee approval

As per Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations
and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, all
the Related Party Transactions and subsequent
material modifications shall require prior approval
of the Audit Committee whether at a meeting or
by resolution by circulation or any other manner
as provided by the Act or Rules made there under
or Listing Regulations from time to time, subject
to the following;

(a) Omnibus Audit Committee approval

i) The Audit Committee may grant omnibus
approval for Related Party Transactions
provided it is satisfied that there is a need to
grant such approval and the same is in the
interest of the Company. Such approval may
be granted by Audit Committee for the
proposed transactions subject to the following;

a. Transactions are repetitive/frequent in nature;
b. Transactions are conducted at Arm’s Length

basis;
c. Transactions are in the ordinary course of

business;
ii) Such omnibus approval shall specify the following;

a. Name/s of the related party
b. Nature of transaction
c. Period of transaction
d. Maximum amount of transaction that can be

entered into
e. The indicative base price/current contracted

price and the formula for variation in the price
if any and

f. Such other conditions as the Audit Committee
may deem fit.

Such transactions will be deemed to be pre-
approved and may not require any further
approval of the Audit Committee for each

specific transaction unless the price, value
or material terms of the contract or
arrangement have been varied / amended.
Any proposed variations/amendments to these
factors shall require a prior approval of the
Audit Committee.

iii) Provided that where the need for related party
transaction cannot be foreseen and the aforesaid
details are not available, Audit Committee may
grant omnibus approval for such transactions,
subject to their value not exceeding Rs. 1 Crore
per transaction.

iv) The Audit Committee shall review, at least on a
quarterly basis, the details of Related Party
Transactions entered into by the Company
pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given.
Further, such omnibus approvals shall be valid
for a period not exceeding one financial year and
shall require fresh approval after the expiry of
the same.

• Board of Directors and Shareholders’ approval:
In accordance with Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013

In accordance with Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors and Shareholders of the Company shall
accord prior approval for Related Party Transactions,
subject to the following;

1. Board of Directors and Shareholders’ approval
in terms of Companies Act, 2013;

All Related Party Transactions which are either
not on arm’s length basis or not in the Ordinary
Course of Business shall be recommended by
the Audit Committee for the approval of the Board
of Directors.

Provided the transactions as prescribed below
shall be further recommended by the Board of
Directors for the approval of the Shareholders
of the Company by way of Ordinary Resolution,
as provided under Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with related rules issued there
under;
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The concerned related party(ies) which are related to that
transaction shall not vote to approve such relevant resolution.

2. Board of Directors and Shareholders’ approval in terms of
Listing Regulations;

The Listing Regulations require a Company to provide
materiality thresholds for transactions beyond which the
shareholders’ approval will be required by way of a resolution.
The Company has fixed its materiality threshold at the level
prescribed under Explanation to Regulation 23(1) the Listing
Regulations (w.e.f. April 01, 2022 Provided that a transaction
with a related party shall be considered material, if the
transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together
with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds
rupees one thousand crore or ten per cent of the annual
consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited
financial statements of the Company, whichever is lower or
such other limit as may be specified in the applicable
Regulation as amended from time to time). Accordingly, in
terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, all Material
Related Party Transaction and subsequent material
modifications as defined by the audit committee shall be
recommended by the Board of Directors to the Shareholders
for their approval by way of Ordinary Resolution.

No related party shall vote to approve such resolutions
whether the entity is a related party to the particular transaction
or not.

5. Exemption from obtaining approval in terms of the Listing
Regulations

In terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing regulations, following
transactions are exempted from the requirement of obtaining
the Audit Committee/Board of Directors/ Shareholders
approval;

(i) Transactions entered into by Sahara Housingfina
Corporation Limited with other Government
Companies;

(ii) Transactions entered into between Sahara Housingfina
Corporation Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary
(if any, though which is not applicable at this present
juncture), whose accounts are consolidated with
Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited.

(iii) Transactions entered into interse wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Sahara Housingfina Corporation
Limited, (if any, though which is not applicable at this
present juncture), whose accounts are consolidated
with Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited.

However, an approval of Audit Committee and Board
of Directors/ Shareholders (to the extent applicable),
as the case may be, will be required for above listed
transaction as per Section 177 and Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made
there under.

The Company shall avail exemptions grated under
section 188, 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and/or the
applicable provisions of The SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended from time to time and after fulfilling
conditions and requirements specified therein.

6. Related Party Transactions not approved under this
Policy

If a Related Party Transaction is entered into by the Company
without being approved under this Policy, the same shall
be reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
shall consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances
regarding the Related Party Transactions, and shall evaluate
all options available to the Company, including ratification

Transaction Covered

Sale, Purchase or supply of any goods or materials directly or through
appointment of agents*

Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind directly or
through appointment of agents*

Leasing of property of any kind*

Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the company,
its subsidiary company or associate company

Remuneration for underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives
thereof, of the company*

Transaction Value

Amounting to 10% or more of Turnover

Amounting to 10% or more of Net Worth

Amounting to 10% or more of Turnover

Monthly remuneration> Rs. 2.5 lakhs

>1% of Net Worth

* The limits shall apply for these transaction or transactions to be entered into either individually or taken together with the
previous transactions during a financial year.
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by it or recommending to the Board for their ratification or
seeking approval of Shareholders, revision or termination
of the Related Party Transactions.

7. Disclosers

� Particulars of contracts or arrangements with Related
Parties referred to in sub Section(1) of Section 188
shall be disclosed in the Directors Report pursuant to
any statutory requirement, if any

� Details of all material transactions with related parties
shall be disclosed quarterly along with the compliance
report on corporate governance.

� The Company shall disclose this Policy on its website
and a web link thereto shall be provided in the Annual
Report. In addition to the above, the Company shall
disclose related party transactions every six months
to the Stock Exchanges within 15 days (w.e.f.
April 01, 2022) from the date of publication of its
standalone and consolidated financial results in the
prescribed format, and simultaneously publish the
same on its website. Provided further that the Company
shall make such disclosures every six months on the
date of publication of its standalone and consolidated
financial results with effect from April 1, 2023.

8. Interpretation

(a) Any words used in this Policy but not defined herein
shall have the same meaning ascribed to it in the
Companies Act, 2013 or Rules made there under, SEBI
Act or Rules and Regulations made there under
Accounting Standards or any other relevant legislation
/ law applicable to the Company.

(b) In case of any dispute or difference upon the
meaning/interpretation of any word or provision in
this Policy, the same shall be referred to the Audit
Committee and the decision of the Audit Committee
in such a case shall be final. In interpreting such term
/provision, the Audit Committee may seek the help
of any of the officers of the Company or an outside
expert as it deems fit.

9. Policy Review

This Policy is framed based on the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under and the
requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations or any other
regulations (“the Regulations”) which makes any of the
provisions in the Policy inconsistent with the Regulations,
the provisions of the Regulations would prevail over the
Policy and the provisions in the Policy would be modified
in due course to make it consistent with the Regulations.

The Policy shall be reviewed and recommended by the
Audit Committee at least once in every three years or as
and when any changes are to be incorporated in the Policy
due to change in the Regulations or as may be felt
appropriate by the Audit Committee, whichever is earlier
for approval of the Board of Directors. Any changes or
modification on the Policy as recommended by the Audit
Committee would be presented for review and approval of
the Board of Directors



� Europe: European Union GDP is projected to
grow by 1.2% in 2024, driven by consumer
spending, with risks posed by high inflation and
interest rates.

� Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS):
economic growth beat earlier projections, reflecting
higher-than-expected growth in the Russian
Federation, a moderate rebound in Ukraine after
a deep contraction in 2022, and strong
performance in the Caucasus and Central The
aggregate GDP of the CIS and Georgia expanded
by an estimated 3.3 per cent in 2023 and is
projected to grow by 2.3 per cent in 2024.

� China: Chinese economic recovery was gradual,
with growth reaching 5.3% in 2023, but expected
to moderate to 4.7% in 2024.

� South Asia grew by an estimated 5.3 per cent in
2023 and is projected to increase by 5.2 per cent
in 2024, driven by a robust expansion in India,
which remains the fastest growing large
economy in the world.

� India: Projected to grow by 6.2% in 2024,
supported by domestic demand and growth in
manufacturing and services.

� Africa: Growth is projected to increase from 3.3%
in 2023 to 3.5% in 2024, with climate crisis and
geopolitical instability impacting the region.

� East Asia: projected to experience a moderate
slowdown, with growth declining from 4.9 per cent
in 2023 to 4.6 per cent in 2024.

� Latin America and the Caribbean: GDP growth is
expected to slow from 2.2% in 2023 to 1.6% in
2024 due to tighter financial conditions and
reduced exports.

� Labour Market

� The global labour market displays divergent trends
between developed and developing countries
post-pandemic. Developed countries experienced
a robust recovery with low unemployment rates,
notably 3.7% in the US and 6.0% in the EU in
2023, coupled with rising nominal wages and
narrowing wage inequality. However, real income
losses and labour shortages pose challenges.

� In contrast, developing countries show mixed
progress; while nations like China, Brazil, Türkiye,
and Russia report declining unemployment, issues
like informal employment, gender gaps, and high

� Global economic Overview

The latest World Economic Situation and Prospects report
for 2024 paints a sobering picture of the global economic
landscape. The world economy continues to face multiple
crises, jeopardizing progress towards the Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs). Although global economic
growth outperformed expectations in 2023 with several large
economies showing remarkable resilience, simmering
geopolitical tensions and the growing intensity and frequency
of extreme weather events have increased underlying risks
and vulnerabilities. Furthermore, tight financial conditions
also pose increasing risks to global trade and industrial
production.

� Global GDP Growth

The report forecasts a deceleration in global GDP
growth, from an estimated 2.7% in 2023 to 2.4% in
2024, signaling a continuation of sluggish growth trends.
Developing economies, in particular, are struggling to
recover from pandemic-induced losses, with many
facing high debt and investment shortfalls.

� Regional Disparities

The United States, the world’s largest economy, is
expected to see a drop in GDP growth from 2.5% in
2023 to 1.4% in 2024. Consumer spending, a key driver
of its economy, is likely to weaken due to various factors,
including high interest rates and a softening labour
market.

Meanwhile China, amid domestic and international
headwinds, is projected to experience a moderate
slowdown, with growth estimated at 4.7% in 2024,
down from 5.3% in 2023. Europe and Japan also face
significant economic headwinds, with growth rates
forecasted at 1.2% for both regions in 2024.

Developing countries present a divergent picture, with
Africa’s growth projected to slightly increase from 3.3%
in 2023 to 3.5% in 2024. The report notes that the least
developed countries (LDCs) are projected to grow by
5.0% in 2024, yet this falls short of the 7.0% growth
target set in the Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs). High debt and limited fiscal space remain
pressing concerns for these nations.

� Regional statistics – GDP Growth

� United States: The US economy is expected to
decelerate from 2.5% in 2023 to 1.4% in 2024 due
to falling household savings, high interest rates,
and a softening labor market.
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growing but not at a pace sufficient to meet the
net-zero-emissions goal by 2050.

� Trade

� International trade is losing steam as a growth
driver, with global trade growth weakening to 0.6%
in 2023 and expected to recover to 2.4% in 2024.
The report points to a shift in consumer spending
from goods to services, rising geopolitical tensions,
supply chain disruptions, and the lingering effects
of the pandemic as factors impeding global trade.

� Furthermore, the shift towards protectionist policies
in some countries has also influenced trade
dynamics, leading to a reevaluation of global
supply chains and trade agreements. The
repercussions of these changes are particularly
pronounced in developing economies, which often
rely heavily on exports for economic growth. In
response, there has been a growing emphasis
on diversifying trade partners and strengthening
regional trade agreements to mitigate the risks
associated with overreliance on a limited number
of markets.

� International Finance and Debt

� Developing countries face high levels of external
debt and rising interest rates, making access to
international capital markets difficult. There’s a
decline in official development assistance and
foreign direct investment for low-income countries.

� Debt sustainability has emerged as a critical
challenge, especially for developing countries, in
the wake of rising debt levels and changing global
financial conditions. The increase in global interest
rates, a consequence of monetary policy tightening
by central banks like the Federal Reserve and
the European Central Bank, has escalated debt
servicing costs, particularly for countries with
foreign currency-denominated debts. As a result,
many countries are grappling with the need for
debt restructuring, including renegotiating terms
or seeking debt relief, to manage their escalating
debt burdens more effectively.

� Climate Change

� 2023 experienced extreme weather conditions,
including the hottest summer on record since 1880
leading to devastating wildfires, floods, and
droughts worldwide. These events have direct
economic impacts, such as damage to
infrastructure, agriculture, and livelihoods.

youth unemployment persist. Globally, the decline
in female labor force participation to 47.2% in
2023 (compared to 48.1% in 2013) and the high
NEET rate (not in employment, education or
training) of 23.5% among youth highlight enduring
challenges in gender equality and youth
employment.

� Since the introduction of ChatGPT in November
2022 there has been significant advancement in
artificial intelligence. Within six months ChatGPT’s
introduction, one-third of firms worldwide were
using generative AI for at least one function, and
about 40% planned to expand AI investment. The
rapid adoption of AI is feared to exacerbate income
inequalities. AI could reduce demand for low-
skilled jobs, disproportionately impacting women
and lower-income countries. In the US, women,
who dominate clerical work, are at higher risk of
job displacement by AI. Also, there’s a significant
gender gap in AI professions.

� Inflation

� Global inflation, a key concern over the past two
years, is showing signs of easing. Global headline
inflation fell from 8.1% in 2022 to an estimated
5.7% in 2023 and is projected to decline to 3.9%
in 2024.

� However, food price inflation remains a critical
issue, exacerbating food insecurity and poverty,
particularly in developing countries. An estimated
238 million people experienced acute food
insecurity in 2023, an increase of 21.6 million
from the previous year.

� Investment

� The report also highlights the challenges in global
investment trends, with a noted slowdown in
investment growth across both developed and
developing economies. However, while developed
countries have continued to channel investments
into sustainable and technology-driven sectors
like green energy and digital infrastructure,
developing countries face challenges such as
capital flight and reduced foreign direct investment.
Geopolitical tensions further influence these trends,
affect ing investment f lows regional ly.

� Global investment growth is expected to remain
low due to economic uncertainties, high debt
burdens, and rising interest rates. Investment in
the energy sector, especially in clean energy, is
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� India Real Estate Market Trends

� Increasing Demand for Affordable Housing

� The high demand for affordable housing dominates
the housing market. The current shortage of
housing in urban areas is estimated to be 10
million units by the India Brand Equity Foundation.
An additional 25 million units of affordable housing
are required by 2030 to meet the growth in the
country's urban population.

� The real estate industry has benefited from the
push for policy that has resulted in legislation like
the Real Estate Regulatory Authority (RERA), the
introduction of Real Estate Investment Trusts
(REITs), and housing initiatives like PMAY
(Pradhan-Mantri Awas Yojana) and SWAMIH
(Special Window for Completion of Construction
of Affordable and Mid-Income Housing Projects).

� In 2023, a target of 45,70,082 houses in the West
Bengal state of India was allocated by the Ministry
of Rural Development. Even though there is a big
demand for housing in the country, residential
launches have been on a comparatively high level
over the past few years. In the financial year 2023-
24, the total number of completed houses in urban
areas of India under the Pradhan Mantri Awas
Yojana (PMAY, The Prime Minister's Housing Plan)
reached 1,58,37,128.

� Housing affordability in India was 3.3 in the financial
year 2023, as compared to 3.2 in 2022, according
to industry experts. As reported by the Reserve
Bank of India, in the financial year 2022, banks in
India advanced around INR 2 trillion (USD 24.44
billion) in housing loans, almost reaching pre-
COVID levels. This reflected renewed homebuyer
sentiment, as an increasing number of Indians
have been investing in buying residential property,
which continues to this day.

� Office Real Estate Witnessing Lucrative Growth

� The Indian office real estate market has driven
the growth of the commercial real estate sector in

� Studies have predicted substantial losses to the
global economy due to climate change. For
instance, some estimates suggest a potential
reduction of about 10% in global GDP by 2100,
considering events like the collapse of the
Greenland ice shelf. Other models indicate that
without mitigation of global warming, average
global incomes could be 23% lower by 2100. The
IPCC estimates that global GDP losses could
range between 10 and 23 percent by 2100 due
to temperature impacts alone.
Source:
https://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/blog
/2024/01/overview-world-economic-situation-and-
prospects-2024/

� India Real Estate Market Analysis

The Real Estate Industry in India Market size is estimated
at USD 0.33 trillion in 2024, and is expected to reach USD
1.04 trillion by 2029, growing at a CAGR of 25.60% during
the forecast period (2024-2029).

� India's Real Estate Market was affected by the COVID-
19 pandemic. The residential sector was the worst
hit as strict lockdown measures across major cities
impacted housing sales as home registrations were
suspended and home loan disbursement was slow.
However, the sector recovered due to an increase in
house sales, new project launches, and increasing
demand for new office and commercial spaces, etc.

� The growth of this sector is well complemented by
the growth in the corporate environment and the
demand for office space as well as urban and semi-
urban accommodation. The construction industry
ranks third among the 14 major sectors in terms of
direct, indirect, and induced effects in all sectors of
the economy.

� In India, the real estate sector is the second-highest
employment generator after agriculture. It is also
expected that this sector will incur more non-resident
Indian (NRI) investment, both in the short and long
term. Bengaluru is expected to be the most favored
property investment destination for NRIs, followed by
Ahmedabad, Pune, Chennai, Goa, Delhi, and
Dehradun. Retail, hospitality, and commercial real
estate are also growing significantly, providing the
much-needed infrastructure for India's growing needs.

� According to industry reports, real estate demand for
data centers is expected to increase by 15-18 million
sq. ft. by 2025. Demand for residential properties has
surged due to increased urbanization and rising
household income. India is among the top 10 price-
appreciating housing markets internationally.

Investment value in affordable housing programs: INR billion,
November 2023, by cities
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� Housing Loan Overview and Outlook

� India Housing Finance Market 2024–2033

As per the current market research, the India Housing
Finance Market is expected to record a CAGR of
24.1% from 2024 to 2033. In 2024, the market size is
projected to reach a valuation of USD 385.14 Billion.
By 2033, the valuation is anticipated to reach USD
2,669.39 Billion.

The India housing finance market encompasses
financial services provided to individuals and developers
for purchasing, constructing, renovating, or improving
residential properties. Its nature combines elements
of retail banking, mortgage lending, and real estate
investment.

Key trends include a shift towards digitalization,
expansion of affordable housing finance, growing
demand for sustainable and green housing solutions,
and the emergence of niche financing options tailored
to specific customer segments, all contributing to the
market’s dynamism and evolution.

� India Housing Finance Market – Significant Growth
Factors

The India Housing Finance Market presents significant
growth opportunities due to several factors:

Government Initiatives: Government schemes like
Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) offering subsidies
and incentives fuel demand for housing finance. These
initiatives aim to provide affordable housing to
economically weaker sections, driving loan uptake and
fostering market growth.

Urbanization: Rapid urbanization prompts increased
demand for housing, creating opportunities for financing
solutions. With a significant portion of the population
migrating to cities, housing finance companies can
capitalize on this trend by offering tailored loan products
suited to urban living needs.

Interest Rate Trends: Fluctuations in interest rates
influence housing loan affordability. As interest rates
decrease, borrowers find financing more accessible,
stimulating demand for housing finance products and
spurring market expansion.

Technology Adoption: Integration of technology
streamlines loan processing, enhances customer
experience, and reduces operational costs for housing
finance providers. Opportunities lie in embracing digital
platforms, artificial intelligence, and data analytics to
offer efficient and personalized services, attracting
tech-savvy borrowers.

the past decades. Once dominated by information
technology, office spaces are being increasingly
leased by other sectors such as BFSI (banking,
financial services, and insurance), engineering,
manufacturing, e-commerce, and co-working
sectors. The sector has demonstrated consistently
low vacancy and high absorption rates.

� The Indian city of Bengaluru was estimated to
have the highest net absorption among grade-A
office spaces in the Asia-Pacific region. In the first
quarter of 2022, the central business district (CBD)
was the most expensive area for renting office
space in Bengaluru, with a rental rate of INR 144
(USD 1.76) per square foot per month, according
to industry experts.

� Commercial real estate investments have
increased as a result of the Real Estate Regulation
& Development Act (RERA) and Real Estate
Investment Trusts (REITs). REIT owns, manages,
and funds income-producing real estate. Office
properties have emerged as the most popular
sector for investment among high-net-worth
individuals (HNI) in India and international PE
investors, who together represent the majority of
all equity investments in Indian real estate.
Investors of all stripes are drawn to this industry
by the high rental rates and better profits. Smaller
homes and larger families contributed to the
country's increase in flex and co-working spaces.

� According to industry experts in the first quarter
of 2022, the Bandra-Kurla complex was the most
expensive area for renting office space in the
Indian city of Mumbai, with a rental rate of around
INR 276 (USD 3.36) per square foot per month.
Navi Mumbai offered office space at the lowest
rate of around INR 67 (USD 0.82) per square foot
per month among all sub-markets of Mumbai. The
average rent for Mumbai office market space was
around INR 138(USD 1.68) per square foot per
month.

Source: https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-
reports/real-estate-industry-in-india

Rental value of office spaces: In INR per square feet per month,
1st hall of 2023, by city
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� India Housing Finance Market – Significant Threats

The India housing finance market faces several
significant threats that could impact its growth and
profitability in the future. Some of these threats include:

Economic Instability: Fluctuations in economic
conditions, such as recession or inflation, can impact
borrowers’ ability to repay loans and lead to increased
default rates, affecting the financial health of housing
finance companies.

Regulatory Changes: Rapid changes in regulatory
policies, including interest rate regulations or lending
norms, can disrupt business operations and profitability,
requiring companies to adapt quickly to remain
compliant.

Market Saturation: Saturation in key urban markets
may limit expansion opportunities, prompting
companies to explore untapped rural or semi-urban
areas where demand might be lower.

Credit Risk: High levels of non-performing assets
(NPAs) due to defaults or delinquencies pose a threat
to the stability of housing finance companies,
necessitating stringent risk management practices.

Technological Disruption: Failure to embrace
technological advancements, such as digitalization
and automation, may result in companies falling behind
competitors in service quality and operational efficiency.

External Shocks: External factors like natural disasters,
geopolitical tensions, or global economic downturns
can significantly impact the housing market, leading
to reduced demand and financial losses for housing
finance firms.

� Category-Wise Insights:

By Type

Bank: Banks in the India housing finance market refer
to financial institutions authorized to accept deposits
and offer loans, including home loans. They leverage
customer deposits and other funding sources to provide
housing finance services. Trends include banks’
increasing focus on digitalization to streamline loan
processing and enhance customer experience, as well
as their role in promoting government initiatives for
affordable housing.

Housing Finance Companies (HFCs): Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs) are non-banking financial
institutions primarily engaged in providing housing
finance services. Trends include HFCs expanding their
product offerings to include niche segments, such as
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Demographic Shifts: Changing demographics,
including a rising middle class and increasing disposable
incomes, present opportunities for housing finance
companies to cater to diverse customer segments.
Tailoring loan products to meet the evolving needs and
preferences of different demographics can unlock new
market opportunities.

Real Estate Development: Growth in real estate
development projects, particularly in tier 2 and tier 3
cities, offers prospects for housing finance market
expansion. Financing opportunities arise from
partnerships with developers, funding affordable
housing projects, and facilitating home purchases in
emerging property markets, driving overall market
growth.

� India Housing Finance Market – Mergers and
Acquisitions

The India housing finance market has seen several
mergers and acquisitions in recent years, with
companies seeking to expand their market presence
and leverage synergies to improve their product
offerings and profitability. Some notable examples of
mergers and acquisitions in the India housing finance
market include:

In November 2022, Tata Capital Housing Finance, a
subsidiary of Tata Capital, announced its ambitious
expansion into the home loan market. Seeking INR
3,000 crore from the National

Housing Bank and planning to raise an additional INR
1,000 crore through bonds, the company aims to
finance both retail customers and real estate developers.

Meanwhile, in October 2022, HDFC Bank, a private
sector lender, revised its merger timeline with Housing
Development Finance Corp. Ltd. The merger, initially
set for the third quarter of FY24, is now slated for
completion by the first quarter of the same fiscal year.

These mergers and acquisitions have helped
companies expand their product offerings, improve
their market presence, and capitalize on growth
opportunities in the India housing finance market. The
trend is expected to continue as companies seek to
gain a competitive edge in the market.

India Housing Finance Market 2024-2033 (By Tenure)

Up to 5 Years Up to 5 Years Up to 5 Years Up to 5 Years

20332032203120302029202820272026202520242023



short-term loans for renovation projects, down
payments, or bridge financing between property
transactions.

6–10 Years: Housing finance loans with a tenure
ranging from six to ten years fall into this category.
These loans cater to borrowers seeking medium-term
financing for property purchases or construction
projects. Trends indicate a growing preference for
mid-term loans among first-time homebuyers and
young professionals aiming for shorter loan durations
to minimize interest costs and achieve faster
homeownership.

11–24 Years: This segment comprises housing finance
loans with repayment tenures ranging from eleven to
twenty-four years. These loans are popular among
middle-income households and families seeking
affordable long-term financing options for home
purchases. Trends show an increasing demand for
extended loan tenures to distribute repayment
obligations over a more manageable timeframe,
thereby reducing monthly instalment amounts and
enhancing affordability.

25–30 Years: Loans falling within the 25 to 30-year
tenure category are characterized by their long-term
repayment schedules, typically spanning several
decades. These loans are ideal for borrowers seeking
extensive financing for high-value property acquisitions
or large-scale construction projects. Trends in this
segment reflect a growing preference for extended
loan durations, driven by the need for affordable
monthly instalments and the desire to spread out
repayment obligations over an extended period to
align with borrowers’ income streams and financial
capabilities.

� Industry Outlook - Opportunities And Threats

Opportunities

� The level of mortgage penetration in India is much
lower than that of developed nations suggesting
headroom for growth

� Post Covid there is a need for larger homes
leading to rise in demand for ready to move in or
near completion properties

� Shift in investor driven real estate market to an
end user driven market leading to higher demand
backed by new project launches by top developers

� Expansion in tier II and beyond with the rise in
reverse migration

� Focus on technology to enhance end-to-end digital

self-employed individuals, and leveraging technology
for risk management and customer acquisition. They
often play a crucial role in catering to specific customer
needs and driving innovation in the housing finance
sector.

By Interest Rate

Fixed Rate: In the India housing finance market, fixed-
rate mortgages offer borrowers a predetermined interest
rate that remains constant throughout the loan term.
This provides stability and predictability in monthly
payments, shielding borrowers from fluctuations in
interest rates. However, fixed-rate loans typically come
with slightly higher initial interest rates compared to
floating-rate mortgages.

Floating Rate: Floating-rate mortgages in India feature
interest rates that adjust periodically based on prevailing
market rates. Borrowers benefit from lower initial interest
rates, but their monthly payments can fluctuate over
time, depending on market conditions. This flexibility
exposes borrowers to interest rate risks, which can
lead to unpredictable repayment amounts.

By Application

Up to 5 Years: This segment in the India housing
finance market refers to loans with a repayment period
of up to five years. These loans are typically short-term
financing options, suitable for borrowers seeking quick
repayment schedules or temporary housing solutions.
Trends in this segment include increased demand for
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your Company since revenues are derived from only one
segment i.e. housing finance activity.

The Company has its operation within India, and all revenues
are generated within India.

� Marketing and Selling Arrangements

The Company’s marketing team has taken steps to serve
the customers at their door step which includes appointing
Home Loan Channel Partner wherever deemed necessary.
The Company also caters to walk-in customers among
others.

� Loan Products

SHCL’s major focus has been to provide home loans to
individuals and families for purchase, construction,
extension, repair and renovation of houses. The Company
has also developed loan products for the families in the
self-employed category where formal income proofs are
not easily available and the repayment capacity of such
families are appraised based on their cash flows.

� Credit Evaluation

The Company has in place an effective credit appraisal
mechanism matching with regulatory norms and guidance,
aimed at providing your Company a significant competitive
advantage. Through a combination of financial documents-
based assessment and personal interview, the assessment
system is customised to capture the credit worthiness of
applicants from different segments – the salaried class,
self employed, practicing professionals or those engaged
in the informal sector.

� Spread on Loans

The weighted average rate of lending during the year was
10.57 per cent p.a. as compared to 10.90 per cent p.a. in
the previous year. The average all-inclusive cost of funds
was 5.90 per cent p.a. as on March, 31, 2024. The spread
on loans over the cost of borrowings for the year was 4.67
per cent p.a. as against 4.85 per cent p.a. in the previous
year.

The NIM is under tremendous pressure and consequently
the profitability will come under pressure too. The NPA
resolution is neither going helped in any way by the legal
system which still drags the cases for years.

� New Segments

The Company has been continuously analysing the housing
needs and credit profile of underserved market segments.
Method of gaining a deeper understanding of these market
segments are under review and would enable us to enlarge
our customer base.

journeys and deliver superior borrowing experience
to customers

Threats

� Housing finance companies in India are facing
challenges related to the increase in policy rates,
which might cause slower demand and growth

� The flattening yield curves and increasing rate
cycle, in turn, may result in short-term asset-
liability mismatches and negatively affect their
borrowing profile and profitability.

� The highly competitive market adds further
pressure to maintain profitable expansion while
preserving asset quality.

� If there is an economic downturn in major
economies, it could result in macroeconomic
issues such as heightened cost inflation, interest
rates, and currency volatility, all of which may put
stress on asset quality

https://www.custommarketinsights.com/report/india-
housing-finance-market/

Risk Management Committee

The Company has formed an Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)
which meets at periodic interval to review its approvals and
controls to the various risks faced. The ALCO reviews the
process of implementation of various risk management
techniques, system policies, procedure and evaluates as well
as advises for changes required in relation to the business
environment.

Asset Liability Management (ALM)

Assets and liabilities are classified on the basis of their contracted
maturities. However, the estimates based on past trends in
respect of prepayment of loans and renewal of liabilities which
are in accordance with the ALM guidelines issued by the
regulator have not been taken into consideration while classifying
the assets and liabilities under the Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013.

The ALM position of the company is based on the maturity
buckets as per the regulatory guidelines. In computing the
information, certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments
have been made by the management. The ALM is mentioned
in Notes to Accounts in this Annual Report.

� Segment Reporting

The Company is exclusively engaged in the Housing
Finance business and revenues are mainly derived from
this activity prescribed under Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) rules, 2015 as amended does not apply to
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Loan asset per employee of the Company as at March
31, 2024 was ` 261.27 lacs.

� Business Strategy

To be a prominent Corporate Citizen in promoting housing
activities through customer friendly home finance schemes
within a service-oriented atmosphere. To consolidate and
grow in a competitive environment reflecting the ethical
standard of a good corporate citizen.

� Financial and Operational Performance

The same has been covered in the section Directors Report
forming part of this Annual Report.

� Human Resources

The Company has a dedicated team of 29 Employees as
on March 31, 2024, who have been contributing to the
progress and growth of the Company. The manpower
requirement at Offices of the Company is assessed
continuously and recruitment is conducted accordingly.

Product Portfolio

This is the primary home loan product available to all Indian nationals / NRIs
(selectively), to acquire / construct a house anywhere in India within the jurisdiction
of SHCL’s Branches.

This loan is extended to help the borrower meet his requirement of improvement
/ renovation of the existing house.

This loan is given to enable the individual to expand the home / construct additional
space to meet the growing requirements of the family.

Strictly for non-agriculture land situated within approved layouts of Municipal /
Development Authority limits.

In other words Land Loans can be sanctioned only in case of Plots (Selectively
private Plots allotted by Development Authorities and Housing Board specifically
for the construction of houses/flats (residential purpose) within Municipal limits.

Existing Borrowers with good repayment track record are eligible to apply for this
loan. Seasoning period of 6 months from the last/full disbursement of the existing
loan.

This loan is extended to those who own residential property with fixed sources of
income and are looking for finances to meet immediate requirements like children’s
education, marriage, medical treatment etc.

All professionals like practising Medicos, CA/ICWA/CS, Architect, Consulting
Engineer, Solicitors may be considered for this loan for acquiring / constructing
their Office premises, clinic etc.

In the case of existing good borrowers whose repayment track record is consistent
and regular, can enhance existing loan for extension or renovation or repairs of
the property.

Existing home loan takeover from HFCs / Banks.
Existing mortgage loan takeover from HFCs / Banks.
Existing non residential premises loan takeover from HFCs / Banks.

Individual Housing Loans (HL)

Home Improvement Loans (HIL)

Home Extension Loan (HEL)

Land Loans (LL)

Home Loan Plus (HLP)

Mortgage Loans (ML)

Non Residential Property Loans
(NRPL)

Home Loan Enhancement
(HLE)

Loan Take Over / Balance
Transfer (BT)

� Key Ratios

Sl.
No. Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

1 CRAR (%) 110.84 106.22

2 Net Owned Fund (Rs in Lakh) 4998.46 4824.05

3 Operating Profit Margin (%) # 17.31 18.55

4 Net Profit Margin (%) 13.22 12.64

5 Return on Equity (%) 2.72 2.94

6 Leveraging of NOF (Times) 0.88 0.98

# Operating Profit= Profit before tax - Other Income
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Amidst this, SHCL’s purpose remains to further strengthen
the government’s vision of Housing for all and contribute
to nation building in its humble way.

� Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)

The Company has prepared these financials to comply in
all material respect with the Indian Accounting Standards
(IND AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended, relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, various regulatory guidelines to the
extent relevant and applicable to the Company and in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(`) and all values are rounded to the nearest Crore except
when otherwise stated.

� Cautionary Statement

This document contains statements pertaining to the
company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations, which include forward looking statements,
within the scope of applicable laws & regulations. The
forward-looking statements are based on certain
assumptions and expectations of future events and which
are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. Company
cannot guarantee the accuracy and fulfillment of these
assumptions and expectations mentioned in the document.
The actual outcome may significantly deviate from the
expectations that have been expressed in the statement
due to external factors which are beyond our control. The
company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend,
modify or revise any forward-looking statements based
on any subsequent developments

� Business Outlook

The combination of decadal low interest rates, attractive
pricing schemes post Covid, and a rebound in household
income contributed to reaching peak affordability (measured
by the home loan EMI to income ratio). The rise in interest
rates and elevated inflation has dampened affordability,
causing a decline in the quotient. Despite the upward trend
in the interest rates, the full impact on demand may not
have materialized entirely, evident in the sustained growth
of inquiries and disbursements.

With the affordability gains reversing the impact on demand
is yet to seen. Margin compression is witnessed amidst
tightening liquidity and regulatory environment. The
compression in margin for housing finance players is a
result of two key factors: the increased interest rates and
competitive intensity. The RBI has opted to maintain the
current rate in the midst of ongoing market volatility.
We anticipate that the cost of funds for HFCs will
remain elevated and to reach peak during the mid of next
fiscal.

As of November 16, 2023, RBI has raised the risk weight
for unsecured lending by 25%, indicating an elevated
perception of risk. The increased capital requirement has
effects on overall profitability, placing constraints on available
margins for lending activities. Consequently, this has led
to intensified competition among banks and NBFCs and
this may further result in elevated balance transfers which
will further weigh down the NIMs. For non-banks (NBFCs),
growth in assets under management may moderate
compared to FY24, with regulatory measures curtailing
expansion of unsecured book while the traditional secured
book growing at steady pace.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Report on Corporate Governance

Your company is committed to continuously adopt and
adhere to the best governance practices, to achieve the
ultimate goal of making the Company a value-driven
organization. Strong corporate governance is indispensable
to resilient and vibrant capital markets and is an important
instrument of investor protection. It is the blood that fills
the veins of transparent corporate disclosure and high-
quality accounting practices. It is the muscle that moves
a viable and accessible financial reporting structure.

Your company tries to mix the solid traditional value,
cultural foundations along with the right perspective to
cater to the evolving housing finance needs of its
customers. The Company’s governance practices self-
desire which reflects the culture of trusteeship that is
deeply ingrained in its work culture which is reflected in
its strategic thought process. The Company’s governance
philosophy stands on the five basic pillars i.e. Board
accountability to the Company and Members, strategic
guidance and effective monitoring by the Board.

Board of Directors (“Board”)

Composition of Board

As on March 31, 2024, the Board consist of Three Directors
comprising of Two Independent Directors including one

Woman Director and all the directors of the company are
Non-Executive Directors. The Board reviews and approves
strategy and oversees the actions and results of
management to ensure that the long-term objectives of
enhancing stakeholders’ values are met. All the
Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board that
they meet the criteria for Independence in terms of the
definition of ‘Independent Director’ stipulated under
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, Section
149(6) of the Act and are independent of the Management.
There were no material, financial and/or commercial
transactions entered into between the Senior Management
and the Company which could have potential conflict of
interest with the Company at large. None of the Directors
of the Company are inter-se related to each other.

The directors bring to the board a wide range of experience
and skills. Brief profiles of the directors, are set out
elsewhere in the annual report. The composition of the
board is in conformity with SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015. As per the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, no
director can be a member in more than 10 committees
or act as Chairman of more than 5 committees across all
public companies in which he / she is a director. The
compositions of the Board of Directors of the Company
as on March 31, 2024, including skill sets/ expertise/
competencies/ practical knowledge and list & category
of Directorship in other listed companies are provided as
‘Annexure A’

Details of the Board of Directors in terms of their directorships/memberships in committees of other public companies
are as under;

Sl Directors DIN
No. of No. of Committees* Category of

Directorships* Chairman Member Director

1. Shri Brijendra Sahay# 00017600 01 01 04 Independent Director

2. Smt. Anshu Roy 05257404 – – – Independent Director

3. Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal* 07093037 01 01 04 Independent Director

4. Shri Awdhesh Kumar 02323304 01 01 04 Non-Executive
Srivastava Non-Independent

Note: i. Directorships and Committee Memberships of Directors are as on March 31, 2024.
ii. None of the Directors hold any equity shares in the Company.
# Shri Brijendra Sahay (Independent & Non-executive Director), expired on 14-02-2024
* Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director (Category: Independent & Non-Executive Director)

on 05-03-2024
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Board Process

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and
decide on the business policy and strategy apart from
other normal business. The Board Meetings including
Committee Meetings of the Company are scheduled
after getting confirmation on dates from Directors well
in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and
to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings.
However, in case of a special and urgent business need,
the Board’s approval is taken by passing resolution(s)
by circulation, as permitted by law, which is noted in the
subsequent Board Meeting.

The detailed Agenda is circulated to the Directors in
advance. All major agenda items are backed by
comprehensive background information to enable the
Board to take informed decisions.

Where it is not practicable to circulate any document in
advance or if the agenda is of a confidential nature, the
same is presented at the meeting. In special and
exceptional circumstances, consideration of additional
or supplementary items is taken up with the approval of
the Chair and majority of the Independent Directors.
Senior Management Personnel are invited to the
Board/Committee meeting(s) to provide additional inputs
on the items being discussed by the Board/Committees
thereof as and when necessary. The elected Chairman
in the Board Meeting apprises the Board at every meeting
on the overall performance of the Company, followed
by the detailed presentation by Chief Financial Officer
of the Company

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparation
of the Agenda and convening of the Board and Committee
meetings. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and its Committees, advises
/assures the Board on Compliance and Governance
principles and ensures appropriate recording of minutes
of the meetings.

The Board provides the overall strategic direction and
periodically reviews strategy and business plans, annual
operating and capital expenditure budgets and oversees
the actions and results of the management to ensure
that the long term objectives of enhancing shareholders’
values are met. The Board also, inter alia, considers
and reviews adoption of quarterly/half-yearly/annual
results, major accounting provisions and write-offs,
compliances, business policies, borrowings, Minutes of
Meetings of the Audit and other Committees of the
Board. The Board reviews compliance reports of all laws
applicable to the Company on quarterly basis.

The draft Minutes of the proceedings of the meetings of
the Board/Committee(s) are circulated to all the members
of the Board or the Committee for their perusal, within
fifteen days from the date of the conclusion of the Meeting.
Comments, if any, received from the Directors are
incorporated in the Minutes, in consultation with the
Chairperson. The Minutes are approved by the members
of the Board / Committee(s), prior to the next meeting
and confirmed thereat.

Board Meetings

The meetings of the Board of Directors are held at least
once a quarter to review the quarterly performance and
the financial results of the Company. During the year, the
board met 5 times. The meetings were held on May 30,
2023, August 14, 2023, November 07, 2023, February
09, 2024 and March 05, 2024 respectively. The attendance
of each director at the board meetings and at the last
annual general meeting is as under:

Attendance at the Board Meetings and at Annual General
Meeting (AGM) during the Financial Year 2023-2024;

Directors with Material Pecuniary or Business
Relationship with the Company

None of the Independent Directors of the Company have
any pecuniary relationship with the Company.
� Apart from receiving sitting fees for meetings of the

Board & Committee meetings, they do not have any
material pecuniary relationships or transactions with
the Company, its promoters, its Directors, its senior
management, its subsidiaries and associates which
may affect independence of the Director.

No. of Board Whether
Meeting Attended Attended

(Total Meetings Last AGM
Held : 5)

Shri Brijendra Sahay# 3 Yes

Smt. Anshu Roy 5 Yes

Shri Awdhesh Kumar 5 Yes
Srivastava

Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal* 1 N/A

# Shri Brijendra Sahay (Independent & Non-executive
Director), expired on 14-02-2024

* Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director
(Category: Independent & Non Executive Director) on
05-03-2024

Name of Director



# Shri Brijendra Sahay (Independent & Non-executive Director),
expired on 14-02-2024

* Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director
(Category: Independent & Non Executive Director) on 05-
03-2024

Note: Sitting fees of Rs. 10,000/- were paid for each Board and Audit
Committee Meetings held during the year, No sitting fee was paid for
other committee meetings.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was reconstituted on March 05,
2024 after the demise of Late Brijendra Sahay. The Audit
Committee comprised of Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal
(Chairperson), Smt. Anshu Roy and Shri Awdhesh Kumar
Srivastava in accordance with the provisions of Regulation
18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. All the members of the
committee are financially literate and have accounting
and financial management expertise.

Meeting of the Audit Committee are scheduled well in
advance. The Auditor Committee met four times during
the year under review on May 30, 2023, August 14, 2023,
November 07, 2023 and February 09, 2024 respectively.
The committee reviewed the quarterly/ annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval.

The committee reviews the reports of the internal auditors
and statutory auditors along with the comments and
corrective action taken by the management. The Audit
Committee also invites senior executives, as it considers
appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the
committee.

Particulars of Meetings attended by the members of the
Audit Committee;
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� Are not related to promoters or persons occupying
management positions at the Board level or at one
level below the Board.

� Have not been an executive of the Company in the
immediately preceding three financial years.

� Are not partners or executives or were not partners
or executives during the preceding three years of
the:
� Statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that

is associated with the Company.
� Legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) that have a

material association with the Company.
� Are not material suppliers, service providers or

customers or lessors or lessees of the Company,
which may affect independence of the Director.

� Are not substantial shareholders of the Company
i.e. do not own two percent or more of the block of
voting shares.

Details of transactions of a material nature, if any, with
related parties as specified in Indian Accounting Standard
(IND AS) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs are
disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements for the
year 2023-24. There has been no transaction of a material
nature with any of the related parties which was in conflict
with the interests of the Company. There has been no
material pecuniary relationship or transaction between
the Company and its Directors during the year.

Remuneration to Directors

Directors do not receive any remuneration except the
sitting fees for the meetings of the Board and Audit
Committee meetings attended by them. The Company
did not advance any loans to any of its directors in the
year under review.

Directors No. of Meetings Attended

Shri Brijendra Sahay# 3

Smt. Anshu Roy 4

Shri Awdhesh Kumar 4
Srivastava

Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal* -

Name of Directors

Total
(`)

Details of Sitting Fees Paid During 2023-24

Sitting Fees 
paid  for

Board Audit
Meeting Committee

(`) (`)

Shri Brijendra Sahay# 30,000 30,000 60,000

Smt. Anshu Roy 50,000 40,000 90,000

Shri Awdhesh Kumar 50,000 40,000 90,000
Srivastava

Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal* 10,000 – 10,000



report etc. received during the year were redressed to
the satisfaction of the concerned shareholders. As at end
of financial year ending March 31, 2024, there were
no such pending / unresolved complaints.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
reconstituted on March 05, 2024 after the demise of Late
Brijendra Sahay. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee comprised of Smt. Anshu Roy (Chairperson),
Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal and Shri Awdhesh Kumar Srivastava.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted
in compliance with the requirements of provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
19 of SEBI’s Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements Regulations, 2015.

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
inter alia, includes formulation of criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommendation to the Board of the
remuneration policy; formulation of criteria for evaluation
of Independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy
on Board diversity and identification of persons who are
qualified to become directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria
laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two
times on August 14, 2023 and March 05, 2024.

The details of attendance at the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meeting are as under;
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Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) was
reconstituted on March 05, 2024 after the demise of Late
Brijendra Sahay. The committee comprised of 3 directors,
namely Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal (Chairperson), Smt. Anshu
Roy and Shri Awdhesh Kumar Srivastava. The committee
looks into redressal of shareholders, investors, depositors
and customer complaints. The Stakeholders Relationship
Committee met two times during the year on August 14,
2023 and February 09, 2024. The details of attendance
at the committee meetings are as under:

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the
Compliance Officer Name, designation and address of
Compliance Officer are as under;

Shri D J Bagchi
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
46, Dr. Sundari Mohan Avenue, Kolkata- 700014
Phone: 033- 2289 0148/ 6708
Email: info.saharahousingfina@sahara.in /
info.saharahousingfina@gmail.com

Details of Complaints / Grievances during 2023-24

The complaints from the shareholders relating to non
receipt of share transfer certificates, non receipt of annual

Directors No. of Meetings Attended

Shri Brijendra Sahay# 1

Ms. Anshu Roy 2

Shri Awdhesh Kumar 2
Srivastava

Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal* -

# Shri Brijendra Sahay (Independent & Non-executive Director),
expired on 14-02-2024

* Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director
(Category: Independent & Non Executive Director) on 05-
03-2024

Directors No. of Meetings Attended

Shri Brijendra Sahay# 1

Smt. Anshu Roy 2

Shri Awdhesh Kumar 2
Srivastava

Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal* 1

# Shri Brijendra Sahay (Independent & Non-executive Director),
expired on 14-02-2024

* Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director
(Category: Independent & Non Executive Director) on
05-03-2024

# Shri Brijendra Sahay (Independent & Non-executive
Director), expired on 14-02-2024

* Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director
(Category: Independent & Non Executive Director) on
05-03-2024



Remuneration Policy

The Company has formulated a Nomination (including
Board Diversity), Remuneration and Evaluation policy
as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
and Obligation Agreement 2015 with SEBI which, inter-
alia, lays down the criteria for identifying the persons
who are qualified to be appointed as Directors and such
persons who may be appointed as Senior Management
Personnel of the Company and also lays down the criteria
for determining the remuneration of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees.

The Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy of
the Company, inter-alia, provides for the attributes for
appointment, components of the remuneration and the
process of performance evaluation relating to the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other
employees of the Company as explained hereunder;

Appointment criteria, remuneration terms and
evaluation of the Non-Executive Director(s) /
Independent Director(s):

The Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation policy of
the Company aims at promoting diversity on the Board
and recommends that the Board shall at all times
represents an optimum combination of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors as well as Independent Directors
with at least one woman Director and not less than fifty
percent of the Board comprising of Independent Directors.
The selection of candidate(s) for the directorship shall
be based on factors like educational and professional
background, personal achievements, experience, skills,
etc. The appointment of Independent Directors shall be
made in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 and Listing and Obligation Agreement 2015
with SEBI.

Independent directors and non-independent non-executive
directors may be paid sitting fees (for attending the
meetings of the Board and of committees of which they
may be members) and commission, if provided in the
Articles of Association and duly approved by the General
Body and within regulatory limits. Within the parameters
prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and
commission will be recommended by the NRC and
approved by the Board. Overall remuneration (sitting
fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the

requirements of the Company (taking into consideration
the challenges faced by the Company and its future
growth imperatives). Overall remuneration should be
reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector/
industry/ company’s operations and the company’s
capacity to pay the remuneration. Overall remuneration
practices should be consistent with recognized best
practices. Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to
review on a periodic basis, as required. The aggregate
commission payable to all the non-executive directors
and independent directors will be recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board
based on company performance, profits, return to
investors, shareholder value creation and any other
significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by
the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
shall recommend to the Board the quantum of commission
for each director based upon the outcome of the evaluation
process which is driven by various factors including
attendance and time spent in the Board and committee
meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and
contributions made by directors other than in meetings.
In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the
Company may pay to any director such fair and reasonable
expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director
while performing his/her role as a director of the Company.
This could include reasonable expenditure incurred by
the director for attending Board/ Board committee
meetings, general meetings, court convened meetings,
meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ management, site
visits, induction and training (organized by the company
for directors) and in obtaining professional advice from
independent advisors in the furtherance of his/ her duties
as a director.

Appointment criteria, remuneration terms and
evaluation of the Executive Director / Whole Time
Director, Senior Management Personnel and other
employees;

The Managing Director / Executive Director / Whole Time
Director / Manager shall be appointed as per the applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there
under. The proposed appointee shall be assessed against
a range of personal attributes and criteria which includes
but not limited to qualifications, skills, industry experience,
background, etc.

35



The remuneration payable to the Managing Director /
Executive Director / Whole Time Director / Manager shall
carry a balance between fixed and incentive pay based
on the performance objectives in relation to the operations
of the Company. The Compensation payable to Managing
Director / Executive Director / Whole Time Director /
Manager shall be competitive and shall be commensurate
to the individual’s role, responsibility and experience in
relation to performance of business of the Company. The
total managerial remuneration payable by the Company
to Managing Director / Executive Director / Whole Time
Director / Manager shall be within the limits prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Managing Director / Executive Director / Whole Time
Director / Manager shall be evaluated / re-appointed on
the basis of his present performance (financial/non-
financial) and his achievements against various key
performance parameters as defined by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The performance evaluation
of the Managing Director / Executive Director / Whole
Time Director / Manager shall be carried out by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Independent Directors in a separate meeting, and by the
Board of the Company.

The Company shall appoint KMP i.e. Managing Director
/ Whole Time Director / Manager, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Manager, Company Secretary of
the Company as per the provisions of Section 203 of the
 Companies Act, 2013. For the appointment of employees,
the criteria’s such as qualifications, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, personal attributes and
other qualities required to operate successfully in the
respective position and the extent to which the appointee
is likely to contribute to the overall effectiveness of the
organization, work constructively with the existing team
and enhance the efficiencies of the Company, shall be
considered.

The remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary at the time of
the appointment shall be approved by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and any subsequent
increments shall be approved as per the HR policy of the
Company and shall be placed before the Board. The
remuneration of the employees shall be determined,
considering key factors like;

i. The remuneration should be reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate employees and should
be in line with the industry practice.

ii. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

iii. Remuneration shall involve a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of
the Company and its goals.

The performance of the employees shall be evaluated
on annual basis as per Company’s and individual
employees’ performance and contribution to the overall
goals / objectives of the Company.

Evaluation Process

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 & Listing Agreement, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for
evaluation/assessment of the Directors (including the
Independent Directors) of the Company and the Board
as a whole. The Committee also carried out the evaluation
of the performance of each Director of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement, a separate
meeting of the Independent Directors without the
attendance of Non- Independent Director and the members
of the Management was held on November 07, 2023 to,
inter-alia, review the performance of the Non-Executive
Directors and the Board as a whole. The Independent
Directors in the said meeting also assessed the quality,
quantity and timelines of flow of information between the
Company Management and the Board based on various
components viz. relevant and adequate information being
provided, circulation of agenda and related notes in
advance, regular information/updates, etc. Shri Brijendra
Sahay acted as the Lead Independent Director.

Pursuant to the report / feedback on the evaluation as
carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Independent Directors in a separate
meeting, the Board conducted formal annual evaluation
of its own performance, its Committees and the individual
directors in its meeting held on November 07, 2023.
Based on the said evaluation, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee made recommendations for
the appointment / re-appointment of the Directors.
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Criteria for evaluation of Board and its Committees

The evaluation of the Board and its committees were
based on the criteria, inter-alia, covering various
assessment parameters like structure and composition,
frequency & duration of meetings, its processes and
procedures, effectiveness of the Board / committees,
its financial reporting process including internal controls,
review of compliances under various regulations,
adequate discharge of responsibilities entrusted under
various regulations and/ or terms of reference of the
Committees etc.

Criteria for evaluation of Individual Directors

The criteria for evaluation of performance of the
individual Directors included various parameters viz.
attendance & participation during the meetings, their
active contribution & independent judgment,
cohesiveness, discussions/ deliberations on important
matters, understanding of the Company, etc.

Details of Remuneration Including Commission and
Other Payments to the Directors

Directors - Executive

Presently, all the Directors on the Board are Non-
Executive Directors.

Directors – Non-Executive

Presently, the non-executive Directors in the Company
are only paid sitting fee of  `10,000 each for attending
the Board and Audit Committee meetings of the

Company. The total amounts of sitting fee paid to the
Directors have been disclosed elsewhere in the report.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee of the Board was
constituted in compliance with the provisions of
Regulation 21 of the SEBI’s Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015.  The Risk
Management Committee was reconstituted on March
05, 2024 after the demise of Late Brijendra Sahay from
Risk Management Committee ccomprised of 3 directors,
namely Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal (Chairperson), Smt. Anshu
Roy and Shri Awdhesh Kumar Srivastava.

The terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee includes the following;

� To review and monitor the Risk Management Policies
and Procedures;

� To ensure that the Credit Exposure of the Company
to any single/group borrowers does not exceed, the
internally set limits and the prescribed exposure
ceilings by the Regulator;

� To review the Risk Monitoring System;

� To review and verify adherence to various risk
parameters set-up for various operations / Functions;

� To undertake such other function as may be
mandated by the Board or stipulated by the
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI, Stock Exchanges or
any other regulatory authorities from time to time.

Shri Brijendra Smt. Anshu Shri Awdhesh Shri D J Shri Vivek
Date of the Meeting Sahay  Roy  Kumar Srivastava Bagchi Kapoor

(Chairman) (Member) (Member) (CEO)     (CFO)

November 07, 2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Date of the Meeting and Attendance

Finance & Management Committee

The Finance & Management Committee was reconstituted
on March 05, 2024 after the demise of Late Brijendra
Sahay. The composition of the Finance & Management
Committee is;

Director/Member Designation

Shru Rajiv Kumar Lal* Chairman (Independent Director)
Smt. Anshu Roy Independent Director
Shri Awdhesh Kumar
Srivastava Non-Independent Director
Shri D J Bagchi CEO & Company Secretary
Shri Vivek Kapoor CFO

* Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director
(Category: Independent & Non Executive Director) on
05-03-2024



Terms of Reference of Finance & Management
Committee

The terms of reference of the Finance & Management
Committee as defined by the Board of Directors of the
Company are as follows:-

• The role of the Finance & Management Committee
(the Committee) is to support and advise the Board
in exercising its authority in relation to the matters
set out in these terms of reference. The Committee
is accountable to the Board for its performance.

• The Board has defined the Committee’s purpose
as assisting the Board in its consideration for approval
and on-going oversight of matters pertaining to;
� Capital Structure and Funding;
� Capital Management planning and initiatives

including capital allocation;
� Due Diligence on acquisitions and divestments

including proposals which may have a material
impact on the company’s capital position; and

� Matters the Board may refer to the Committee
from time to time in connection with the
company’s capital position.

• The Committee shall review matters within the scope
of its authority to ensure that the company’s capital
decisions are appropriate in the pursuit of the
Corporate Purpose.

• The Committee shall prepare the terms and
conditions of any borowals by the Company Secured
/ Unsecured in the form of loans, debentures or any
other financial investment by whatever name called.

• To ensure that all the applicable rules and regulations
are followed as stipulated by our esteemed regulator
NHB, ROC, SEBI or any other regulatory authorities
from time to time.

The Finance & Management Committee met four
times during the year under review on May 30, 2023,
August 14, 2023, November 07, 2023 and February
09, 2024 respectively.

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors

During the year, as per the requirement of Schedule IV
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the

independent directors of the Company was held on
November 07, 2023 without the attendance of non-
independent directors and members of the management.
All the independent directors were present at the meeting,
wherein they had inter alia reviewed the performance of
non-independent directors and the Board as a whole
taking into account the views of the non-executive directors
and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow
of information between the company management and
the Board.

Certificate under Regulation 34(3) of SEBI Listing
Regulations

The Company has obtained a Certificate pursuant to the
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, from Shri P V Subramanian, ACS, Practicing
Company Secretary, Kolkata, confirming that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of the Company either by Securities and
Exchange Board of India or the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any other Statutory Authority. The said certificate
forms part of this report as ‘Annexure B’.

Disclosures

i. Materially significant related party transactions

The Company has adopted Related Party Transaction
Policy which defines the materiality of related party
transactions and lays down the procedures of dealing
with Related Party Transactions. The Related Party
Transaction Policy has been uploaded on the
Company’s website and is available at URL: http://
w w w . s a h a r a h o u s i n g f i n a . c o m / m i s c /
SHCL_Related_Party_Transaction_Policy_Amend
ed_28-May-2022.pdf

During the year under review there were no material
transactions of the Company with any of its related
parties. Therefore, the disclosure of Related Party
Transactions as required under Clause (h) of sub-
section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the
Company for financial year 2023-24 and hence the
same is not provided.

ii. Details of non-compliance by the company,
penalties, and strictures imposed on the company
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by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years.

None

iii. Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy,
which aims to provide a mechanism to the employees
and directors of the Company to report to the
management instances of unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
code of conduct or ethics policy. This mechanism
also provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees who avail the mechanism
and provides for direct access to the Chairperson of
the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. There
were no instances of reporting under the Whistle
Blower Policy. No personnel have been denied access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The whistle Blower Policy has been uploaded on the
Company’s website and is available at URL:
http://www.saharahousingfina.com/wbp.html

iv. Details of Compliance with mandatory
requirements and adoption of non-mandatory
requirements

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has
complied with all mandatory requirements as specified
in the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company has
adopted the below specified non-mandatory
requirements in terms of Regulation 27(1) of SEBI
Listing Regulations:

1. The Board

The Chairman of the Board is elected at the respective
Board Meetings among the Directors present. The
Company has no executive director on its Board at
present.

2. Shareholder’s Rights

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results
of the Company are published in leading  newspapers
and are communicated to the Stock Exchanges, as
per the provisions of the Listing Agreement and
up loaded  on  t he  Company ’s  webs i t e
www.saharahousingfina.com.

3. Audit Qualification

During the year under review, there was no audit
qualification in the Auditors’ Report on the Company’s
financial statements. The Company continues to adopt
best practices to ensure a regime of financial
statements with unmodified audit opinion.

4. Separate Posts of Chairman and CEO

The Company has appointed a separate person as
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

5. Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Company has an adequate internal audit system
in place whereby The Internal Audit is conducted by
the Internal Auditor and reports are submitted on a
periodic basis. The audit function maintains its
independence and objectivity while carrying out its
assignments.

Other Disclosures

1. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carries out
the audit of the Company on quarterly basis to
reconcile the total admitted capital with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services India Limited (CDSL) and the
total issued and listed capital. The report of such audit
is submitted to the Stock Exchange periodically.

2. Familiarization Programme

Your company follows a well thought-out orientation
program for its Director(s) in accordance with the
requirements of SEBI’s Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015, to ensure
that Director(s) are fully aware of the industry in which
the Company operates, the processes, systems and
policies adopted and followed by the Company.

The company regularly updates the Directors on the
various changes in the business model, new
developments & initiatives undertaken by the Company
and any new policies and applicable laws and
regulations etc from time to time and helps in bringing
forth the best practices to the Company and help in
making informed decision(s) at the Board Level.

The familiarization program of the Company is
uploaded on the Company’s website and is available
at URL: http://www.saharahousingfina.com
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/annualreport/SHCLFamiliarizationPolicyforIndepe
ndentDirectors.pdf

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading
Practices

In compliance with the SEBI regulation on prevention
of insider trading, the Company has in place a
comprehensive Code of Conduct for its Directors and
Senior Management Officers. The Code contains
guidelines which advise them on procedures to be
followed, disclosures to be made, closure of Trading
Window and cautioning them of the consequences
of violation of the code. The Company Secretary has
been appointed as the Compliance Officer and is
responsible for adherence to the Code. This Code
has been uploaded on the Company’s website and
is available at http://www.saharahousingfina.com
/misc/6_SHCL_Insider_Trading_Revised_13-Dec-
2019.pdf

3. Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors &
Senior Management Personnel

In compliance with SEBI listing regulations, the
Company has a duly approved Code of Conduct for
the Board of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company in place. The subject
Code identifies and lists out various elements of
commitment, duties and responsibilities that serve
as a basis for taking ethical decision-making in the
conduct of day to day professional work. 

The Code requires the Directors and employees to
act honestly, fairly and with integrity and in a
professional manner. The Board of Directors and
members of the senior management personnel have
provided their affirmation to the compliance with this
code. A declaration regarding compliance by the
Board of Directors and the Senior Management
Personnel with the said Code of Conduct duly signed
by the Chief Executive Officer forms part of this
Annual Report. This Code has been uploaded on the
Company’s website and is available;

http://www.saharahousingfina.com/misc/SHCL_Co
de_of_Conduct_Revised_13-Dec-2019.pdf

4. CEO / CFO Certification

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) have furnished certificate on quarterly/

annual basis and same is reviewed by the Audit
Committee and was placed before the Board of
Directors of the Company in terms of Regulation
17(8) and Regulation 33(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

5. Secretarial Audit for Financial Year 2023-24

Shri P V Subramanian, ACS, Practicing Company
Secretary, Kolkata, was appointed as a Secretarial
Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, as per
the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
The Secretarial Audit Report addressed to the
Members of the Company forms part of this Annual
Report.

6. Auditors Certificate on Corporate Governance

Shri P V Subramanian, Practicing whole time
Company Secretary (ACS no. 4585 / CoP No.: 2077),
has certified that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The said
certificate forms part of this Annual Report.

7. Fees Paid to Statutory Auditors

During the year, the total fee incurred by the Company,
for services rendered by Statutory Auditors is given
below;

Shareholders’ Information

I. Communication to Shareholders

The Company primary source of information to the
shareholders, borrowers and to the public at large
is through the functional website of the company i.e.
www.saharahousingfina.com and other than that as
required under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the
quarterly / annual financial results are published in
widely circulated national English newspaper and in
a vernacular newspaper.

Nature of Service (`)

a) Statutory Audit Fees 500,000
b) Tax Audit Fees -
c) For Other Services -
d) For reimbursement of expenses -
Total 500,000
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The information available on the website are ;

� Composition of the Board.
� Composition of various Committees of Board of

Directors.
� Terms & Conditions of Appointment of

Independent Directors.
� Communication details for grievance redressal.
� Financial Results, Annual Report and other

material information.
� Shareholding Pattern.
� Policies followed by the Company.

II. Electronic filing of Compliances on BSE

As stipulated under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015
certain corporate information such as the quarterly,
half-yearly and annual results, annual report and the
shareholding pattern of the Company are also filed
on Corporate Filing and Dissemination System
website, www.corpfiling.co.in and BSE Listing Centre
at listing.bseindia.com developed by BSE Limited.

III. SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”)
administers a centralised web based complaints
redress system (“SCORES”). It enables investors to
lodge and follow up complaints and track the status
of  redressal  on l ine on the websi te  a t
www.scores.gov.in. It also enables the market
intermediaries and listed companies to receive the
complaints from investors against them, redress such
complaints and report redressal of such complaints.

All the activities starting from lodging of a complaint
till its disposal are carried online in an automated
environment and the status of every complaint can
be viewed online at any time. The Company has
registered itself on SCORES and endeavors to resolve
all investor complaints received through SCORES.
The Company is registered with SEBI Complaints
Redress System (SCORES).

IV. Shares held in Electronic Form

Members holding shares in electronic form may please
note that instructions regarding change of address,
bank details, nomination, email address and power
of attorney should be given directly to the Depository
Participant.

V. Shares held in Physical Form

Shareholders holding shares in physical form may
please note that instructions regarding change of
address, bank details, nomination, email address and
power of attorney should be given to the Company’s
RTA viz. Link Intime India Private Limited.

VI. Service of documents through electronic mode

Members who are desirous of receiving the notice
and other documents through email, may kindly
intimate their respective email address to the
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent,
Link Intime India Private Limited or may send
an emai l  f rom their  respect ive emai l  id
t o  i n f o . s a h a r a h o u s i n g f i n a @ g m a i l . c o m /
info.saharahousingfina@sahara.in, with a subject
“Registration of email id”.

Through Video Conferencing
(“VC”) or Other Audio Visual

Means (“OAVM”)

Through Video Conferencing
(“VC”) or Other Audio Visual

Means (“OAVM”)

Through Video Conferencing
(“VC”) or Other Audio Visual

Means (“OAVM”)

VII. Details of Previous three General Body Meetings

Year Date & Time Location Special resolution(s) passed

32nd AGM

31st   AGM

30th   AGM

September 29, 2023
11.30 A.M

September 28, 2022
11.30 A.M

 September 29, 2021
11.30 A.M

Special Resolution passed for Continuation of Shri
Awdhesh Kumar Srivastava (DIN 02323304), as an
Non -Independent Director of the Company, liable to
retirement by rotation, after attaining the age of 75
years on July 29, 2024.

 Nil

Special Resolution passed appointing Shri D J Bagchi,
CEO as Manager u/sec. 196, 197, 198 and 203 of
Companies Act 2013, for a period of three years.
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No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders was held during the year.

Postal Ballot
No Postal Ballot of Shareholders was held during the year.

VIII. General Shareholder Information

Financial Year April 01 – March 31

Financial Reporting Calendar: 2024-2025 • First Quarter Results Jul/ Aug 14, 2024
(Tentative) • Second Quarter Results Oct/Nov 14, 2024

• Third Quarter Results Jan/Feb 14, 2025
• Annual Results May 30, 2025

Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai- 400 001
[Annual Listing Fee for the year 2024-25 has been paid]

Stock Code at BSE 511533

ISIN (Equity Shares) of the Company INE- 135C01012

ISIN (NCDs) of the Company INE- 135C08025

Corporate Identification No. (CIN) L18100WB1991PLC099782

Website of the Company www.saharahousingfina.com

Registered & Corporate Office Address Registered Office & Corporate Office
46 Dr. Sundari Mohan Avenue
 2nd Floor, Kolkata – 700 014

Annual General Meeting and Book The details of AGM and Book Closure period date are being disclosed in the
Closure Date Notice conveying the 33rd AGM and forming part of the Annual Report.

• Market (BSE) Price Data

The monthly high and low stock valuations along with the
volume of shares traded at the BSE are;

YEAR HIGH: ` 126.05 YEAR LOW: ` 37.05 (Source: www.bseindia.com)

Year Month High (`) Low (`) Qty Traded
(No. of  Shares)

2023         April 50.00 42.51 24033
May 49.50 41.20 33574
June 53.70 43.50 32384
July 114.36 46.10 99346

August 126.05 84.60 18613
September 82.91 61.11 51313

October 72.52 56.80 10600
November 72.10 52.54 13226
December 57.36 42.98 30660

2024      January 69.05 51.09 37200
February 56.49 47.51 29674

March 52.00 37.05 42296

IX. Monthly High & low of Shares Traded on the BSE
during the Financial Year  2023 -24
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XI. Distribution of Shareholding (Shares) as on March 31, 2024

SHAREHOLDERS SHARES
HOLDING

NUMBER % TOTAL SHARES %

001 - 500 6998 95.55 414703 5.93
501 - 1000 181 2.47 148942 2.13
1001 - 2000 74 1.01 109556 1.56
2001 - 3000 26 0.35 67074 0.96
3001 - 4000 8 0.11 27146 0.39
4001 - 5000 5 0.07 22579 0.32
5001 - 10000 11 0.15 73468 1.05
10001 And Above 21 0.29 6136532 87.66
TOTAL 7324 100.00 7000000 100.00

XII. Share Transfer System
As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as
amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialised form with effect from
April 01, 2019 except in case of requests received for
transmission or transposition and relodged transfer of
securities. Further, SEBI vide its circular no.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/RTAMB/CIR/P/2020/236 dated
December 02, 2020 had fixed March 31, 2021 as the
cut-off date for re-lodgment of transfer deeds and the
shares that are re-lodged for transfer shall be issued
only in demat mode.

SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/
MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022,
mandated all listed companies to issue securities in
dematerialized form only, while processing the service

request of issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim
from Unclaimed Suspense Account, renewal/ exchange
of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ splitting
of securities certificate, consolidation of securities
certificates/folios, transmission and transposition.

In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with
physical shares and for ease of portfolio management,
members holding shares in physical form are requested
to consider converting their holdings to dematerialised
form.

Also, share transactions in electronic form can be effected
in a much simpler and faster manner. After a confirmation
of a sale /purchase transaction from the broker,
shareholders should approach the Depository Participant
(‘DP’) with a request to debit or credit the account for the
transaction. The DP will immediately arrange to complete

PROMOTERS:

Indian Promoters:
– Sahara Prime City Limited 01 29,40,000 42.00
– Sahara India Corp Investment Limited. 01 16,38,587 23.41
– Sahara India Finance & Investment Limited 01 4,16,000 5.94

Total 03 49,94,587 71.35

OTHERS:
Private Corporate Bodies 44 737288 10.53
NBFCs registered with RBI – – –
Indian Public 6034 1260978 18.02
NRIs / NRNs 19 7078 00.10
Clearing Member 01 69 00.00
Body Corp- Ltd Liability Partnership/Company – – –
Foreign Institutional Investors – – –

Total 6098 20,05,413 28.65

Grand Total 6101* 70,00,000 100.00

Note: None of the shares of the promoters are pledged or encumbered with any of the banks or financial institutions.
*Based on PAN for Stock Exchange Disclosure.

X. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2024

No. of Ordinary Shares Held Percentage (%)No. of Shareholders No. of Shares



Other Useful Information for Stakeholders

i. Subsidiary Companies

As at March 31, 2024, the Company does not have
any Subsidiary Company.

ii. Unlisted Debt Securities

Unlisted Secured Non-Convertible Debenture
aggregating to ` 30 Cr.
Debenture Trustee (Registered Office)
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
GDA House, Plot No.: 85,
Bhusari Colony (Right)
Paud Road, Kothrud, Pune - 411038

iii. Rating of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

Unlisted Secured Non-Convertible Debenture
aggregating to Rs 30 Cr has been assigned rating of
“BB- / Negative Outlook”
Rating Agency

Infomerics Valuation and Rating Pvt. Ltd.

Office No. 1105-B Wing, Kanakia Wallstreet, Off.
Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093

iv. Updation of address, etc. and Nomination Facility

Members holding shares in electronic form may please
note that instructions regarding change of address,
bank details, nomination, email address and power of
attorney should be given directly to the Depository

Participant. Members holding shares in physical form
may please note that instructions regarding change
of address, bank details, nomination, email address
and power of attorney should be given to the
Company’s RTA viz. Link Intime India Private Limited.
The Nomination Form can also be downloaded from
the URL: http://www.saharahousingfina.com/
nominationform.pdf

v. Electronic filing of compliances on BSE 

In terms of the Listing Agreement, all periodical
compliance filings such as Company’s financial results,
shareholding pattern, corporate announcement and
corporate governance report etc are electronically
filed with the Bombay Stock Exchange through BSE
Listing Centre developed by BSE Limited.

vi. SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

SCORES is a web based centralized grievance
redressal system of SEBI that enables the investors
to lodge, follow up and track the status of redressal
of complaints online. The investor complaints are
processed in a centralized web based complaints
redressal system. The Company is registered with
SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) and
ensures to file Action Taken Report under SCORES
well within the prescribed timeframe.
Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode
should address all their correspondence through
their respective Depository Participants.
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the transaction by updating the account.

Shareholders should communicate with Link Intime
India Private Limited the Company’s Registrars and
Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) quoting their folio number or
Depository Participant ID (‘DP ID’) and Client ID
number, for any queries to their securities.

XIII.Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded

in dematerialized form and are available for trading
under both the depository system in India – NSDL
(National Securities Depositories Limited) and CDSL
(Central Depository Services India Limited). As on March
31, 2024 a total of 67, 93,791 shares of the Company,
which forms 97.05% of the total shares, stand
dematerialized. The processing activities with respect
to the requests received for dematerialization are
completed within 15 days (maximum) from the date of
receipt of the request.

XIV. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
(Secretarial Department)

Link Intime India Private Limited Shri  D J Bagchi
Vaishno Chambers, 5th Floor, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
20, Sir R N Mukherjee Road, 46 Dr. Sundari Mohan Avenue
Kolkata- 700 001 Kolkata- 700014
Tel No : 033- 4073 1698 Ph: 033- 2289 0148/ 6708
E-mail: kolkata@linkintime.co.in e-mail:info.saharahousingfina@gmail.com/
Contact Person: Shri  Kuntal Mustafi info.saharahousingfina@sahara.in



ANNEXURE – A

The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2024 , including skill sets/ expertise/
competencies/ practical knowledge and list & category of Directorship in other listed companies are as follows:
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Sl. Directors Category of Special Knowledge / Practical Experience / List of Category
Directors  Skills / Expertise / Competencies  of Directorship

in other Listed
Companies

1. Shri Brijendra
Sahay

Non-Executive
Independent

Independent
Director

Sahara One Media
Entertainment

Limited

Retired IAS Officer and has served as the Chief
Secretary, Government of U.P. (two times). He
holds a Master’s Degree in Economics and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Law. He has a total
experience of over 43 years in Finance,
Administrat ion, Industr ial  and Urban
Development. He has expertise in field of
administration, management and corporate
planning.

2. Ms. Anshu Roy Non-Executive
Independent

NilGraduate from Calcutta University. Prior to
joining Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited,
she had served as Director in other companies
and has relevant industry experience.

3. Shri Awdhesh
Kumar Srivastava

Non-Executive
Non-Independent

Non-Independent
Director

Sahara One Media
Entertainment

Limited

Holds Postgraduate and has been a part of the
Sahara India Pariwar and have more than 34
years of experience with the Group. He is in
the board of various listed / unlisted companies
of the group and have vast and rich experience
in management of companies.

4. Shri Rajiv Kumar 
Lal**

Additional Director
Independent

Non Executive

Non-Independent
Director

Sahara One Media
Entertainment

Limited

Retired IRS (Chief Commissioner of Income
Tax) and have  over 40 years of experience in
finance, taxation & various other fields of
technical expertise

# Shri Brijendra Sahay (Independent & Non-executive Director), expired on 14-02-2024

** Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal appointed as Additional Director (Category: Independent & Non Executive Director) on
 05-03-2024

#



ANNEXURE – B

CERTIFICATE

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Sahara
Housingfina Corporation Limited (CIN: L18100WB1991PLC099782) and having registered office at 46 Dr. Sundari
Mohan Avenue, Kolkata- 700014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para-C clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company
& its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the company as stated below for the Financial
Year ending on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors
of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory
Authority.
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Sl. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment Date of Resignation
No. in Company from Board

1. Shri Brijendra Sahay 00017600 24-08-2002 14-02-2024
2. Ms. Anshu Roy 05257404 13-02-2015 –
3. Shri Awdhesh Kumar 02323304 14-11-2019 –

Srivastava
4. Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal 07093037 05-03-2024 –

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 P V Subramanian
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice

ACS No.: 4585
CoP No.: 2077

UDIN:A004585F000948748
Kolkata
Date : August 14, 2024



DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE
BOARD OFDIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a code of conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior
Management of the Company.

I, here by, confirm and declare that in terms of Regulation 26(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the Board members and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the “Code of Conduct for the Board
of Directors and Senior Management Personnel”, for the financial year 2023-24.

To the Members Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
(“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2024 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, and clauses (b) to (i)
and (t) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 para C and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI Listing Regulations”].

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.  My
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance.  It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations to the extent
applicable to the Company for the year ended on on March 31, 2024.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: August 14, 2024
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CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE
OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Place: Kolkata
Date : May 29, 2024

P V Subramanian
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice

ACS No.: 4585
CoP No.: 2077

UDIN:A004585F000948759
PR No.: 1613/2021

D. J. Bagchi
CEO & Company Secretary



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SAHARA HOUSINGFINA CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.
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Impairment of loans (Expected Credit Loss)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments (Ind AS 109) requires the
Company to provide for impairment of its financial assets using
the expected credit loss (‘ECL’) approach involving an estimation
of probability of loss on such financial assets, considering
reasonable and supportable information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions
which could impact the credit quality of the Company’s financial
assets.

Expected credit loss cannot be measured precisely but can
only be estimated through use of statistics. The estimation of
impairment loss allowance on financial instruments involves
significant judgement and estimates and applying appropriate
measurement principles.

Our audit focused on assessing the appropriateness of
management’s judgment and estimates used in the expected
credit losses through the following procedures, but were not
limited to, the following procedures:

 - Examined the Board Policy approving methodologies for
computation of ECL that addresses policies and procedures
for assessing and measuring credit risk on the lending
exposures of the Company in accordance with the requirements
of Ind AS 109.

-  The parameters and assumptions used and their rationale
have been documented. Also, obtained the policy on
moratorium and restructuring of loans approved by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the RBI circulars/guidelines and
ensured such policy is in compliant with the requirements of
the RBI circulars/guidelines.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s Report and its annexures, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The expected credit loss is calculated using the estimated
percentage of each of the stages of loan portfolio as per
management judgments and assumptions after approved in
the board.

Significant management judgment and assumptions involved
in measuring ECL is required with respect to:

• determining the criteria for a significant increase in credit
risk

• factoring in future economic assumptions

• past experience and forecast data on customer behaviour
on repayments

• techniques used to determine probability of default, loss
given default and exposure at default.

Considering the significance of the above matter to the
financial statements and since the matter required our
significant attention to test the calculation of expected
credit losses, we have identified this as a key audit matter
for current year audit.

The company have limited loan portfolio which has been
maintain by Branches and reporting to Head office on Monthly
Basis.

Each Branch kept its records on its own record maintenance
systems which is not integrated with the Head office. Each
collections received from customer has properly maintain in
there systems and reported periodically to the Head office.

The company have Information technology (IT) systems at its
head office to keep Customer wise loan portfolio but it doesn’t
integrate Branches, all the inputs from the branches are
received by reporting systems and are maintain in Head office.

There is chances of data communication transit differences
in the branches with head office and create delayed/error in
transferring information.

- Evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of controls
across the processes relevant to ECL, including the judgements
and estimates. These controls, among others, included controls
over the allocation of assets into stages including management’s
monitoring of stage effectiveness, model monitoring including
the need for post model adjustments, and completeness of
the underlying data used in the models, credit monitoring,
passing of journal entries and preparing disclosures.

- Tested the completeness of loans and advances included
in the Expected Credit Loss calculations as of March 31, 2024
by reconciling it with the balances as per loan balance register.

- Obtained an understanding of the modelling techniques
adopted by the Company including the key inputs and
assumptions.

Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the related
presentation and disclosures in the accompanying financial
statements in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and related RBI circulars and Resolution Framework.

Our Audit observation on the key audit matter relating to non-
integration of IT systems with the branches is as follows:

a) In our audit procedure we are directly communicate with
the respective branch manager and confirm the information
provided by them are recorded correctly.

b) We ensure that there should be regular periodical reporting
from the branches has been taken by respective head
office by responsible officer and query raised by head
office has been resolved on time basis.

c) We Ensure that the data maintain in the information system
by head office has been updated as per the information
provided by branches and verified it by following audit
procedure.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key automated controls within various operating
processes. Where deficiencies were identified, tested
compensating controls or performed alternative procedures.

Non-Integrated Information Systems with Branches
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When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.We
have nothing to report in this regard at this moment.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and the accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable to the Company, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in Order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Board of Directors.

 • Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable to the Company, related safeguards.
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Place : Mumbai
Date :  May 29, 2024

For  B.M. CHATURVEDI & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 114317W

(Anmol Sonawane)
Partner
ICAI MN. 603614
UDIN :24603614BKGTVN1465

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable to the Company.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books;
c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows

and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under

Section 133 of the Act, as applicable to the Company;
e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none

of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure “B” to this report;

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Managerial Remuneration
paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of the pending litigations on its financial position in the financial statements –

Refer Note 36.1 to the financial statements.
ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses if any, on long term contracts. The Company did not have any derivative contracts.
iii. There was no amount outstanding as at March 31,2024 which was required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.
iv. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that any funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by
the company in any “Intermediaries”, with the understanding, that the Intermediary shall, lend or invest on behalf of
the company or provide any guarantee or security on its behalf. Also no funds have been received by the company
from any entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding that the company shall lend or invest in other entities on
behalf of the funding party.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend for/during the year.
vi. The company is in the process of installing Audit Trail feature in the new software, Consequently, we are unable to

comment on above compliances during the year.



Annexure  ‘‘A’’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our report of even date to the
members of Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the company,

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment and relevant details of Right of Use assets. The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets) have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification

c) The Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than the properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreement is duly executed in favour of the Company) are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets or both during the year.

e) The Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

(ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limit from banks or financial institutions during the period on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii)   The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC’) and having principal business of Housing Finance,

a) the clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

b) The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans, prima
facie, are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. There are no guarantees provided or security given by the Company
during the year.

(c) In respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and repayments or receipts have been regular as per stipulations except in case of 207 loan accounts
having outstanding balances aggregating to ` 1,440.51 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (includes overdue & NPA cases)
wherein the repayments of principal and payments of interest are not regular as informed by the management. Having
regard to the nature of the Company’s business and the volume of information involved, it is not practicable to provide
an itemised list of the irregular cases.

(d) In respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the amount overdue for more than
90 days outstanding as at March 31, 2024 aggregate to  ` 583.06 lakhs.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, reasonable steps have been taken by the
Company for recovery of the overdue principal and interest amount.

(e) The clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted during the year any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act with respect to loans, investments, guarantees
and security, as applicable.

(v) During the year the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public
on which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules made there under are applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act for the
business activities carried out by the Company.

52



(vii)  (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to the Company with
the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues outstanding as at
March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited by the Company on
account of any dispute except income tax demand of ` 38.78 lakhs for the assessment year 2010-11 under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 pending before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal). The Company had paid  ` 7.76 lakhs under
protest against this demand.

(viii) The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of account but surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender during the year.

(b) the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) the Company has not raised any money from the term loan during the year. Accordingly, the clause 3 (ix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) there are no transactions of funds raised by the Company on short term basis and utilized, prima facie, for long term
purposes during the year.

(e) the Company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year. Accordingly, the clause 3(ix)(e)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) the Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture or associate company during the year. Accordingly, the clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, the clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or
partly or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under Section 143(12) of the Act has been filed in form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) No whistle blower complaint has been received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) During the course of our audit, we have considered the reports of the Internal Auditor issued for the period under audit.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them during the
year.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934. Accordingly,
the clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank under the provisions of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987 for conducting housing finance business and is not required to obtain a separate
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to conduct
the Non-Banking Financial activities.
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company within the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year under audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly, the clause 3(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) The financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within the period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company was not required to spend any amount on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) related activities during the
year under review in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, the clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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Place : Mumbai
Date :  May 29, 2024

For  B.M. CHATURVEDI & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 114317W

(Anmol Sonawane)
Partner
ICAI MN. 603614
UDIN :24603614BKGTVN1465



Annexure ‘‘B’’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our report of even date to the
members of Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial  Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- Section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting of Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31stMarch, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference
to financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial  reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial  reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial  reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate or for other reasons.
Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial  reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
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Place : Mumbai
Date :  May 29, 2024

For  B.M. CHATURVEDI & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 114317W

(Anmol Sonawane)
Partner
ICAI MN. 603614
UDIN :24603614BKGTVN1465
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Note As at As at
Particulars  No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3  251.97  292.30
Other Bank Balances 4  2,107.29  2,012.76 
Housing and other Loans 5  7,117.12  7,406.34
Investments 6  2.74  2.57
Other Financial Assets 7  12.18  18.20

 9,491.30  9,732.17
Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 32.49 24.01
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9  129.86 132.15
Property, Plant and Equipment 10  60.28 67.94
Right of Use Assets 10  43.03 70.38
Other Intangible Assets 10  1.09 1.83
Other Non-Financial Assets 11  63.87 52.43

 330.62 348.74

TOTAL ASSETS 9,821.92 10,080.91

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 12 8.60 10.71
Debt Securities 13 3,000.00 3,000.00
Borrowing
(other than Debt Securities) 14 1,541.59 1,906.59
Other Financial Liablities 15 73.01 107.73

4,623.20 5,025.03
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 16 13.20 13.38
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 17 13.08 14.09

26.28 27.47
Equity
Equity Share Capital 18 700.00 700.00
Other Equity 19 4,472.44 4,328.41

5,172.44 5,028.41

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 9,821.92 10,080.91

Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-50

(` in Lakhs)

Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
CIN:L18100WB1991PLC099782
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

A.K. SRIVASTAVA Director (DIN 02323304)
ANSHU ROY Director (DIN 05257404)
D. J. BAGCHI Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary
VIVEK KAPOOR Chief Financial Officer

Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Kolkata

As per our report of even date attached
For B.M.Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 114317W
ANMOL SONAWANE
Partner
ICAI Membership No. 603614
UDIN : 24603614BKGTVN1465
Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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Note Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars  No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

INCOME
Revenue From Operations
Interest Income 20 1,057.73 1,113.96
Net gain on fair value changes 21 0.17 0.50
Other Operating revenue 22 3.50 4.74
Total Revenue from Operations 1,061.40 1,119.20
Other Income 23 1.25 1.06
Total Income 1,062.65 1,120.26

EXPENSES
Finance costs 24 367.17 452.08
Impairment on financial instruments 25 (0.67) (42.46)
Employee benefit expenses 26 300.58 298.64
Depreciation and amortization 27 44.40 48.79
Other expenses 28 166.22 154.51
Total Expenses 877.70 911.56

Profit before tax 184.95 208.70

Tax expenses:
- Current Tax 29 37.73 34.12
- Earliar year Tax 29 5.69 16.27
- Deferred Tax 29 1.08 16.71

44.50 67.10

Profit for the year 140.45 141.60
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 4.78 3.57
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 9 (1.20) (0.90)
Total other comprehensive income 3.58 2.67

Total Comprehensive Income 144.03 144.27

Earnings Per Equity Share
(Face value (` 10/- per share)
Basic ((`) 40 2.01 2.03
Diluted ((`) 40   2.01 2.03
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-50

Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
CIN:L18100WB1991PLC099782
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 (` in Lakhs)

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

A.K. SRIVASTAVA Director (DIN 02323304)
ANSHU ROY Director (DIN 05257404)
D. J. BAGCHI Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary
VIVEK KAPOOR Chief Financial Officer

Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Kolkata

As per our report of even date attached
For B.M.Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 114317W
ANMOL SONAWANE
Partner
ICAI Membership No. 603614
UDIN : 24603614BKGTVN1465
Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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A. Cash flow from Operating Activities :
Profit before tax 184.95 208.70
Adjustment for :
Net loss/(gain) on Fair Value changes (0.17) 0.50
Interest on lease Liabilities  7.06 11.27
Net loss/(gain) on Fair valuation of Financial Instruments  (1.10) (0.91)
Depreciation and amortization  44.40  48.79
Impairment on Financial Instruments   (0.67)   (42.46)

Operating profit before working capital changes 234.47 225.89

Movement in Trade Payable and Other Financial Liabilities 6.08 (60.86)
Movement in other Liabilities & Provisions (0.99) (2.14)
Movement in non -current Bank Deposits (94.53) (339.99)
Movement in Other Non-Financial Assets (51.40) 21.33
Movement in Other Financial Assets 6.02 (0.81)

Cash generated from operations during the year  99.65 (156.57)
Direct Taxes paid (Net)  (6.25)  (14.50)

Net cash generated from operating activities  before movement in
housing and other loans 93.40 (171.07)
Housing & Other Property Loan Disbursement (1,384.75) (1,596.19)
Repayment of Housing & Property Loan 1,674.66 2,809.08

Net cash (used in) Operating activities (A) 383.31 1,041.82

Cash flows from investing activities
Movement in property, plant and equipment and Intangible
assets & Assets under lease (8.66) (29.23)
Gain on Fair valuation of Financial Instrument - 0.91

Net cash (used in) Investing activities (B) (8.66) (28.32)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of Borrowings  (Net)
(Other than Debt Securities)  (365.00) (1,063.98)
Lease liability Payments   (49.98)   (47.34)

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (414.98) (1,111.32)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (40.33) (97.82)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 292.30 390.12

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 251.97 292.30

Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
CIN:L18100WB1991PLC099782
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(` in Lakhs)
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Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand\                                -        0.50
Balances with banks
- on Current Accounts 171.01 213.79
- on Other Bank Balances 80.96 78.01

Total cash and cash equivalents 251.97 292.30

Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-50

Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
CIN:L18100WB1991PLC099782
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Contd.)

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(` in Lakhs)

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

A.K. SRIVASTAVA Director (DIN 02323304)
ANSHU ROY Director (DIN 05257404)
D. J. BAGCHI Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary
VIVEK KAPOOR Chief Financial Officer

Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Kolkata

As per our report of even date attached
For B.M.Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 114317W
ANMOL SONAWANE
Partner
ICAI Membership No. 603614
UDIN : 24603614BKGTVN1465
Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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a) Equity Share Capital

Equity share of `10/- each No. of Equity Amount
issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Shares

As at April 1, 2022 70,00,000 700.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital - -
As at March 31, 2023 70,00,000 700.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital - -
As at March 31, 2024 70,00,000 700.00

Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
CIN:L18100WB1991PLC099782
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

b) Other Equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total

Capital Securities General Special Retained
Reserve Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings

As at April 1, 2022 1.52 500.00 5.02 1,268.18 2,400.92 8.50 4,184.14
Profit for the year  -  -  -  - 141.60   -   141.60
Transfer during the year  -  -  - 27.28 (27.28) - -
Remeasurement of the defined 
benefits plan (net)  -  -  -  -  - 2.67   2.67

As at March 31, 2023   1.52   500.00   5.02   1,295.46   2,515.24   11.17   4,328.41

Profit for the year  -  -  -  - 140.45   -   140.45
Transfer during the year  -  -  - 29.22 (29.22)  - -
Remeasurement of the defined 
benefits plan (net)  -  -  -  -  - 3.58   3.58

As at March 31, 2024   1.52   500.00   5.02   1,324.68   2,626.47   14.75   4,472.44

The accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-50

Other
Compre-
hensive
Income

(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

A.K. SRIVASTAVA Director (DIN 02323304)
ANSHU ROY Director (DIN 05257404)
D. J. BAGCHI Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary
VIVEK KAPOOR Chief Financial Officer

Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Kolkata

As per our report of even date attached
For B.M.Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 114317W
ANMOL SONAWANE
Partner
ICAI Membership No. 603614
UDIN : 24603614BKGTVN1465
Date : May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
CIN:L18100WB1991PLC099782

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 1 Corporate information

Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited (‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the provisions
of Companies Act, 1956 subsequntly followed by Companies Act 2013 with its registered office in Kolkata to carry on the
business of Housing Finance in India. The Company is registered with the National Housing Bank (“NHB”). Its shares are
listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.

Note 2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and presentation requirements of Division III to Schedule III to the
Act and guidelines/Directions issued by the National Housing Bank (“NHB”) and Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) to the extent
applicable.

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also Company’s functional currency.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors in its meeting
held on May 29, 2024.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of Accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
•  Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).
• Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to sell.
• Defined benefit plans where plan assets are measured at fair value.

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS and in compliance of guidelines requires the
Management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expense during the reported period.

The estimates and judgements used are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience
and various other assumptions and factors (including exceptions of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable
under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which
the results are known/materialized. The management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of Financial
Statements are prudent and reasonable.

1. Property, plant and equipment

All Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until the assets are ready for use and includes freight, duties,
taxes and expenses incidental to acquisition and installation.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are added to its book value
only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method (‘SLM’) over the estimated useful lives of the
assets specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
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The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

2. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between
the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised as income or expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their finite useful lives over the following period: Computer
Software - 3 years

 3. Impairment of Assets other than Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that carrying amount of Assets
(Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets etc) may be impaired. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists or may have decreased, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount.

4. Lease

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset.

The Company’s lease assets primarily consist of leases for buildings.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use-assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an
extension or a termination option.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows

5. Financial Instruments

Recognition and Initial Measurement

All financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Loans are recognised when fund transfer is initiated or disbursement cheque is issued to the customer. The Company
recognizes borrowings (other than debt securities) when funds are received by the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement
of profit and loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial Assets

The Company classifies and measures all its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, either at:

- Amortised cost
- Fair Value through other comprehensive income
- Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Amortised Cost

The Company classifies and measures certain debt instruments at FVOCI when the assets are held within a business
model, the objective of which is achieved by both, collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial instruments
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company
recognises interest income and impairment losses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from Equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest
earned while holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

- assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; and/or
- assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and

sell; or
- assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.
These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses Financial 

Assets at Amortised Cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition Is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Debt Instrument at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income and impairment loss are recognized in statement
of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement is recognised in OCI and on derecognition the cumulative
gain or loss recognized in OCI will be recycled to statement of profit and loss.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on re-measurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement
of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Dividend on financial assets at
FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, the dividend does not represent
a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the Company’s
financial assets

Impairment and Write-off

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses on Loans to customers, other financial assets
and loan commitments that are not measured at FVTPL.

Equity instruments are measured at fair value and are not subject to an impairment loss. ECL is required to be measured
through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

• 12-month ECL, i.e., loss allowance on default events on the financial instrument that are possible within  12 months
after the reporting date, (referred to as Stage1); or

• Lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that results from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument,
(referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECL is measured at an amount equal
to the 12-month ECL.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting period whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instruments.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognizes an allowance based on 12months ECL. Stage 1
loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 to
Stage 1.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance
for the life time expected credit losses. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and
the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3 to Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance
for the life time expected credit losses. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and
the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3 to Stage 2.

Stage 3: When loans are considered credit-impaired, the Company records an allowance for the life time expected
credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding
amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a
(partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Determination of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”)

The measurement of impairment losses (ECL) across all categories of financial assets requires judgement.

In particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows based on Company’s historical experience
and collateral values when determining impairment losses along with the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

• Bifurcation of the financial assets into different portfolios when ECL is assessed on a collective basis.
• Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
• Development of ECL models, including choice of inputs/assumptions used.

The various inputs used and the process followed by the Company in measurement of ECL has been detailed below:

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Company calculates ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure expected cash shortfalls, discounted
at an approximation to the portfolio. A cash shortfall is a difference between the cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar
economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the asset’s
expected cash flows using the asset’s original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a
collective basis.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Exposure at Default is an total amount outstanding including accrued interest as of reporting date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected draw downs on committed facilities after considering the credit conversion
factor (for Stage 1 and Stage 2 assets), and accrued interest from missed payments.

Probability of Default represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per ‘’Definition
of default and credit-impaired’’) either over the next 12 months, or over the remaining lifetime of the obligation.

Loss Given Default represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure which varies
by type of borrowers, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.

Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and
lifetime Default elements. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

After Evaluation of the Housing and Non-Housing Loan of the company & the Board's approvals w.e.f March 31, 2024,
Considering the Nature, Size and its trend of default, the Companiy's Management has decided to make provision of
Expected Credit Loss by using fixed rate basis.

The following are the rates are decided by the Management for Provision under Expected Credit Loss.

Loan Category % of Provision % Expected
As per RBI/NHB credit loss

Standard – Individual Housing 0.25% 0.50%
Standard – Corporate Housing 0.75% 0.94%
Standard – Others 1.00% 1.25%
Sub-standard 15.00% 22.50%
Doubtful - I 25.00% 37.50%
Doubtful - II 40.00% 60.00%
Doubtful - III 100.00% 100.00%
Loss Assets 100.00% 100.00%
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Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Company monitors all financial assets, including loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued that
are subject to impairment requirements, to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Company measures the loss allowance
based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The Company monitors all financial assets and issued loan commitments
that are subject to impairment for a significant increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the
remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity
at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
that is available without undue cost or effort.

The Company considers the quantitative factors that indicate a significant increase in credit risk on a timely basis.
However, the Company still considers separately some qualitative factors to assess if credit risk has increased
significantly. For Project/Builder loan, there is a particular focus on assets that are included on a watch list. Given an
exposure is on a watch list once, there is a concern that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated.
ECL assessment for watch list accounts is done on a case by case approach after considering the probability of
weighted average in a different recovery scenario. For individual loans the Company considers the expectation of
forbearance, payment holidays, and events such as unemployment, bankruptcy, divorce, or death.

Credit-Impaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets.
Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the following events:

• significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

• a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

• restructuring of loans due to financial difficulty of the borrowers;

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event. Instead the combined effect of several events may have
caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt instruments that are financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if debt instruments
are credit impaired, the Company considers factors such as financial status, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower
to raise funds. A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to deterioration
in the borrower’s financial condition. The definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop
if amounts are overdue for more than 90 days.

Definition of Default

The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance
is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL. The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

• The borrower is past due more than 90 days+ Accounts Identified by the Company as NPA as per regulatory
guidelines + Objective Evidence for impairment (Qualitative Overlay); or

• The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company.

When it is assessed that the borrower is unlikely to pay their credit obligation, the Company takes into account both
qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in
corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not as relevant for individual lending.
Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are
key inputs in this analysis.
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Write-off

Loans are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset (either in
its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A
write- off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written
off/ may assign / sell loan exposure to Bank / financial institution for a negotiated consideration. Recoveries resulting
from the Company’s enforcement activities could result in impairment gains.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party.

On derecognition of financial assets in entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments 

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement.

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company or a contract
that will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the
Company is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over
own equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another financial asset)
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments.

I. Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issues costs.

II. Financial Liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement

A financial liability is recognised initially at cost of acquisition net of transaction costs and incomes that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial liability. Cost equates the fair value on the acquisition.

b) Classification of Financial Liability

The Company classifies its financial liabilities as “Financial liability measured at amortised cost” except for the financial
liability which is held for trading are designated as at FVTPL.

c) Subsequent measurement of Financial Liability

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured
at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of financial liability and allocating interest
expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period,
to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
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d) Derecognition of Financial Liability

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange between the Company and the lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability

Fair value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e.an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be derived from active market, they
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Fair value measurement under Ind AS are categorized into a fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access on
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the assets or liability, either
directly or indirectly;

Level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets and liabilities.

Off setting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

6. Employee Benefits 

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ provident fund, employees’ state insurance, employee
pension schemes etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and
when services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contribution is made to a government
administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plans

The Company contributes to Defined Benefit Plans comprising of Gratuity and Compensated Absences. The Company
has defined benefit plans namely - gratuity plan and compensated absence plan, the calculation of which is performed
annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, and incremental liability, if any, is provided in
the books.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in Other items
of other Comprehensive Income in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately
in profit or loss as past service cost.
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The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities of Gratuity to the “Sahara Housingfina Corporation Limited
Employees Group Gratuity Scheme (‘the Trust’)”. Trustees took the policy from Life Insurance Corporation of India to
administer contributions made to the Trust.

7 . Revenue Recognition 

Interest Income on loans

The main source of revenue for the Company is Income from Housing and Other property loans. Repayment of housing
and property loan is by way of Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs) comprising of principal and interest.

EMIs generally commence once the loan is disbursed. Pending commencement of EMIs, pre-EMI interest is payable
every month on the loan that has been disbursed. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis to the principal outstanding and applicable interest rate.

Interest on Non Performing Assets, Penal Interest and other related charges are recognised as income only when
revenue is virtually certain which generally coincides with receipts. 

Interest Income - others

Income from interest on deposits and interest bearing securities is recognized on the time proportionate method taking
into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment has been established.

8. Finance Cost

Borrowing costs primarily include interest on amounts borrowed for the revenue operations of the Company. These
are expensed to the statement of profit and loss using the EIR wherever applicable.

9. Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence
that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of
such items is disclosed separately as Exceptional items.

10 . Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the year are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to,
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time
of the transaction.



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized
or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied
by same governing taxation laws. A deferred tax asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date and is written-down
or written- up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

11.  Cash and cash equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other
short- term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

12.  Segment Reporting

The Company’s main business is financing by way of loans for the purchase or construction of residential houses,
commercial real estate or certain other purposes, in India. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main
business. Hence, there are no separate reportable segments, as per Ind AS 108 dealing with Operating Segments as
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

13 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there
is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material). The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. An entity shall not recognize a
contingent asset unless the recovery is virtually certain.

15 Amendments in Ind AS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not
notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand - 0.50
Balances with banks in Current Account 171.01 213.79
Fixed Deposits having original maturity of less than 90 days 80.96 78.01
(Including Interest on Fixed Deposits)

251.97 292.30

4 Other Banks Balances 
Term Deposits with Banks having original maturity of more than 90 days 2,107.29 2,012.76
(Including Interest on Fixed Deposits)

2,107.29 2,012.76

Total Cash & bank Balances ( 3+4 ) 2,359.27 2,305.06

5 Housing and other loans
At Amortised Cost
Housing and other property loan 6,115.10 6,140.16
Loans to developers 1,461.64 1,726.47

Total gross 7,576.74 7,866.63
Less: Impairment loss allowance  (Ref note 5(a))  459.62  460.29

Total Net 7,117.12 7,406.34

(a) During the year, due to the repayment of the default loans and change in method of Expected credit loss calculation
companies impairment allowances has been reduces from ` 460.29 Lakhs to ` 459.62 Lakhs and impact of reversal
of impairment has been consider in profit and loss account.

i) All Housing and other loans are originated in India.

ii) Loans granted by the company are secured by equitable mortgage/ registered mortgage of the property and assets
financed and/or undertaking to create a security and/or assignment of Life Insurance Policies and/or personal
guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and are considered appropriate and good.

iii) There were no loans given against the collateral of gold jewellery and hence the percentage of such loans to the
total outstanding asset is ` Nil (March 31, 2023: ` Nil).

(` in Lakhs)
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(iv) Movement of gross carrying amount of loans

Reconciliation of Gross carring Housing & Other loans from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 on which Expected
Credit Loss Allowance (ECL) has been provided as on 31st March 2024

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(` in Lakhs)
Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss Allowance (ECL) balance from April 1, 2023 to  March 31, 2024

Expected Credit Loss Allowance Year Ended March 31, 2024 Year Ended March 31, 2023

(ECL) Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ECL Allowance Opening Balance 120.14  24.63  315.52  460.29  42.74  7.58  452.44  502.76
New Assets Originated  8.50   -   -   8.50  10.41   -   -   10.41

Assets derecognized / repaid (10.87)  6.23  (4.52)  (9.16)  63.05  84.36  (200.30)  (52.88)

Transfer between the stages
and Incremental ECL (net) (6.68)  (11.88)  18.55  -  3.93  (67.32)  63.38  -

ECL Allowance Closing Balance  111.09  18.98  329.55  459.62  120.14  24.63  315.52  460.29

Provision made on the oustanding balance be before considering IND AS impact of processing fees & technical charges amourtiesed
on the basis of repayment of loan.

During the year, company has disbused total Housing loan of ` 1223.75 Lakhs  & Other loans of ` 161.00 lakhs & foreclosure made
during the year of ` 472.78 lakhs by the customers.

No housing loan and/or other property loan in respect of properties held for disposal under Securitisation and Reconstruction of
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002

Housing & Other Loans Year Ended March 31, 2024 Year Ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1  Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross Carrying amount
Opening Balance 7,510.44 40.68 315.52 7,866.63   6,854.71   1,467.33   744.74   9,066.78

New Assets Originated 1,325.50  -  -  1,325.50  1,514.88  -  -  1,514.88

Assets derecognized or repaid (1,631.13)  (16.85)  32.59  (1,615.40)  (870.00)  (1,352.43)  (492.60)  (2,715.03)

Transfer between the stages (net) 11.03  7.53  (18.55)  -  10.85  (74.23)  63.38  -

Gross Carrying amount
Closing Balance 7,215.83  31.35  329.55  7,576.74  7,510.44  40.68  315.52  7,866.63

(` in Lakhs)

The above balances of gross carrying amount exclude the interest receivables of ` 5.93 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 ` 17.00 Lakhs).
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

9 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets:

Provision for Expected Credit Loss  146.40  (30.55)  -  115.85  1.15  -  117.00
Provision for Employee Benefits  3.41  0.86  (0.90)  3.37  1.15  (1.20)  3.32
Unamortised Processing Fees  19.83  (2.60)  -  17.23  (0.67)  -  16.56
Fair Valuation of Investments  0.17  (0.13)  -  0.04  (0.04)  -  -
Other Temporary differences  4.99  (4.10)  -  0.89  (2.97)  -  (2.08)
Total (A)  174.80  (36.52)  (0.90)  137.38  (1.38)  (1.20) 134.80

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Depreciation and Amortization  5.17  0.06  -  5.23  (0.29)  -  4.94
Fair Valuation of Borrowings  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Interest Income on Non
Performing Assets  19.87  (19.87)  -  -  -  -  -
Total (B)  25.04  (19.81)  -  5.23  (0.29)  -  4.94

Deferred Tax Asset/
(Liabilities) (Net) (A-B)  149.76  (16.71)  (0.90)  132.15 (1.09)  (1.20)  129.86

(` in Lakhs)
Recognised

in Other
Compre-
hensive
Income

Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Othean

6 Investments

Investment measured at fair value through Profit & loss Account

11,400 (March 31, 2022: 11,400) Equity shares of Indian Overseas
Bank Limited fully paid-up (Face value per share of Rs. 10 each) 2.74 2.57
Total 2.74 2.57

Aggregate amount of market value/fair value of quoted investment 2.74 2.57

Investments are made within India

7 Other Financial Assets

Security Deposits - Unsecured; considered good 12.18 12.06
Deposit with Government Authority (Refer Note 48) - 6.14

12.18 18.20

8 Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Tax (Net of Provision)  32.49 24.01
32.49 24.01

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March

31,2022

As at
March 31,

2023

Recognised
in Other
Compre-
hensive
Income

Recognised
in Profit

and Loss

Recognised
in Profit

and Loss

As at
March 31,

2024
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Buildings Computers Furniture Air Office Electric
and Fittings Conditioners Equipment  Fittings Vehicles Total

Gross Block
As at 31.03.2022   57.46   69.04   67.57   9.52   10.92   4.59   17.22   236.32
Additions  -   3.88  -  -  -  -  -   3.88
Disposals -   (0.69)  -  -  -  -  -   (0.69)
As at 31.03.2023   57.46   72.23   67.57   9.52   10.92   4.59   17.22   239.51

Additions  -    -  -  - 0.26  -  -   0.26
Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   -
As at 31.03.2024   57.46   72.23   67.57   9.52   11.18   4.59   17.22   239.77
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01.04.2022  22.46   65.42   41.99   5.34   9.54   3.61  16.00   164.36
Additions   0.90   1.41   4.04   0.68   0.69   0.13  0.05  7.90
Disposals - (0.69)  -  -  -  -  - (0.69)
As at 31.03.2023   23.36   66.14   46.03   6.02   10.23   3.74   16.05   171.57

Additions   0.90 2.21   3.91   0.67   0.07   0.14   0.01   7.92
Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  - -
As at 31.03.2024   24.26   68.35   49.94   6.69   10.30  3.88   16.06   179.49

Net Block

As at 31.03.2023    34.10   6.09   21.54   3.50   0.69   0.85   1.17   67.94

As at 31.03.2024   33.20 3.88   17.63  2.83   0.87   0.71   1.16   60.28

Note No. 10

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (` in Lakhs)

10.1 Title Deed of Immovable Properties are held in the name of the Company.
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Particulars (b) Right of Use Assets (c) Intangble Assets

Buildings Total Computer Total
Software

Gross Block

As at 01.04.2022  190.93  190.93  2.45  2.45
Additions  19.04  19.04  1.46  1.46
Disposals/Adjustments  -  -  -  -
As at 31.03.2023  209.97  209.97  3.91  3.91
Additions  8.40  8.40  -  -
Disposals/Adjustments  -  -  -  -

As at 31.03.2024  218.37  218.37  3.91  3.91

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01.04.2022  98.92  98.92 1.73  1.73
Additions  40.54  40.54  0.35  0.35
Disposals/Adjustments  (0.13)  (0.13)  -  -

As at 31.03.2023  139.59  139.59  2.08  2.08
Additions  35.75  35.75  0.74  0.74
Disposals/Adjustments  -  -  -  -

As at 31.03.2024  175.34  175.34  2.82  2.82

Net Block

As at 31.03.2023  70.38  70.38  1.83  1.83

As at 31.03.2024  43.03  43.03  1.09  1.09 

(` in Lakhs)
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Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

11 Other Non-Financial Assets
Unsecured; Considered good
Balances with Government Authorities 36.98 29.73
Amount deposited under protest with Income
Tax Department (Refer Note 36(i)) 7.76 7.76
Advances to Suppliers and Others 6.74 6.63
Prepaid Expenses 0.48 1.03
Excess Payment to Gratuity Fund (Refer Note 35) 11.91 7.28

Total 63.87 52.43

12. Payables
Trade Payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises - -
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 8.60 10.71

Total 8.60 10.71

(` in Lakhs)

12.1 Ageing of Trade Payable

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
Dues 1 year 3 years

As at March 31, 2024
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(ii) Others 6.30 2.30 - - - 8.60

As at March 31, 2023
(i) MSME  - - - - - -
(ii) Others 6.30 4.41 - - - 10.71

Based on and to the extent of information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and relied upon by the auditors.

There are no overdue amounts to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at March 31, 2024 for which disclosure requirements
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are applicable.

As per information avalable with company, there are no Disputed dues with trade payables.

(` in Lakhs)
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Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,  2023

13 Debt Securities - At Amortised Cost Secured
Non Convertible Debentures 3,000.00 3,000.00

3,000.00 3,000.00

13.1 All debt securities are issued in India

13.2 Non convertible debentures are secured by the first charge on the present and future receivables of the Company for the
principle amount and interest thereon.

13.3 There is no delay in repayment of principal and payment of Interest thereon during the year.

13.4 Terms of repayment and rate of interest are as under:

Call option of 30%, 30% and 40% of the issue price on March 31, 2025, March 31, 2026 and March 31, 2027 respectively
with giving one month prior notice to call/put option. Interest payable on March 31 of every year

13.5 Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) repayable at par:   (` in Lakhs)

Rate of 0-3 years 3-5 years More Than Total
Interest 5 Years

Redeemable non convertible debentures 31 March 2024 7.00% p.a.  3,000.00   -  - 3,000.00

Redeemable non convertible debentures 31 March 2023 7.00% p.a. 1,800.00  1,200.00  - 3,000.00

(` in Lakhs)
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Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,  2023

14 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - At Amortised Cost Unsecured

Term Loans
- From Banks (Refer Note 14.3) 0.30 0.30
- From Related Parties (Refer Note 14.1 and 14.2 ) 1541.29 1906.29

Total 1541.59 1906.59

All borrowings are issued in India
There is no delay in re-payment of principal and payment of Interest thereon during the year.

Terms of repayment of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Terms of Repayment

14.1 Sahara India Commercial Corporation Limited 236.02 236.02
The rate of interest 7.50% and entire amount repayable in the year 2028-29.
The borrower has right to repay the amount any time during the tenure of
borrowing after giving 30 days notice. Interest payable on March 31 every year

14.2 Sahara India Financial Corporation Limited 1305.27 1670.27
The rate of interest is 8.50% and entire amount is repayable in the year 2024-25.
Interest payable on March 31 of every year.

14.3 Andhra Bank (Merged with Union Bank of India) 0.30 0.30
Representing an item outstanding in Reconciliation statement

Total 1541.59 1906.59

15 Other Financial Liabilities
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 38 & 39) 56.44 91.13
Others
- Employees benefit payable 4.98 7.21
- Other Liabilities 11.59 9.39

Total 73.01 107.73

16 Provisions
For Employee Benefits
Compensated Leave (Unfunded) 13.20 13.38

Total 13.20 13.38

17 Other Non – Financial Liabilities
Advances from Customers 12.91 12.24
Statutory dues payable 0.17 1.85

Total 13.08 14.09

(` in Lakhs)
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Note
No.

18 Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,  2023

No. of Amount No. of Amount
Shares Shares

Authorised
Equity shares of ` 10/- each 300,00,000 3,000.00 300,00,000  3,000.00

Preference Shares of ` 10/- each 200,00,000  2,000.00  200,00,000  2,000.00

Total  5,000.00 5,000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP:

7,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each, Fully paid-up 70,00,000 700.00 70,00,000 700.00

Total  700.00 700.00

(` in Lakhs)

18.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,  2023

No of Amount No of Amount
Shares Shares

Shares outstanding at
the beginning of the year 70,00,000 700.00 70,00,000 700.00

Shares Issued during the year - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 70,00,000 700.00 70,00,000 700.00

18.2 : Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of `10/- each. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled
to one vote per share.

The holders of Equity Shares are entitled to dividends, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

18.3 The Company has not bought back any class of shares

18.4 The Company has not proposed any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2024

(` in Lakhs)
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 Promoters Name As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,  2023

No of % No of %
Shares Shares

Sahara Prime City Limited 29,40,000 42.00     29,40,000 42.00

Sahara India Corp Investment Limited 16,38,587 23.41      16,38,587 23.41

Sahara India Finance and Investment Limited 4,16,000 5.94       4,16,000 5.94

Total 49,94,587 49,94,587

Shareholding of the Promoters in the Company

18.5 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Equity Shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,  2023

No of % No of %
Shares Shares

Sahara Prime City Limited 29,40,000 42.00     29,40,000 42.00

Sahara India Corp Investment Limited      16,38,587 23.41      16,38,587 23.41

Sahara India Finance and Investment Limited         4,16,000 5.94       4,16,000 5.94

Citrus Securities Private Limited  -  - 6,20,512 8.86

Gandevi Commerce Private Limited 6,07,397 8.68 -  -

Total 56,01,984 56,15,099



81

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

19 Other Equity
Capital Reserve a  1.52  1.52
Securities Premium b  500.00  500.00
General Reserve c  5.02  5.02

Special Reserve (Ref note 42 II )
Opening Balance  1,295.46   1,268.18
During the year transfer from Profit & Loss Account ( Ref. note 19.2) 29.22 27.28
Closing Balance d 1,324.68 1,295.46

Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 2,515.24 2,400.92
Profit During the year as per Profit & Loss Account 140.45 141.60
Transfer to Special Reseves as per NHB norms ( Ref. note 19.2) (29.22) (27.28)
Closing Balance e   2,626.47 2,515.24

Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance 11.17 8.50
Other Comprehecive Income During the year 3.58  2.67
Closing Balance f 14.75  11.17

Total  4,472.44 4,328.41
(Refer Statement of changes in Equity also)

19.1 Nature and purpose of reserves:

(i) Capital Reserve: The Capital Reserve represents profit on forfeiture of equity shares by the Company. This  reserve is
not freely available for distirbution to the shareholders.

(ii) Securities Premium: The amount of difference between the issue price and the face value of the shares is recognised
in Securities Premium.

(iii) General Reserve: General Reserve is the accumulation of the portions of the net profits transferred by the Company in
the past years. The reserve is free available for distribution to the shareholders.

(iv) Special Reserve: As per Section 29C of National Housing Bank Act 1987, the Company is required to transfer atleast
20% of its Net profit every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. No withdrawals are permitted from this
reserve without prior permission of the RBI/NHB.

(v) Retained earnings: Retained earnings comprise of the profits of the Company earned till date net of appropriation,
distributions and other adjustments.

(vi) Other Comprehensive Income: Other Comprehensive Income  represents  recognized remeasurement gains/ (loss) on
defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within other item of the other
comprehensive income under “Other Equity”.

19.2 As per Section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer atleast 20% of its Net profit
every year to a Special Reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the
Company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act,1961 is considered to be an eligible transfer. The Company has
transferred an amount of ` 29.22  Lakhs (March 31, 2023: `  27.28 Lakhs) to Special Reserve as per provisions of the
Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(` in Lakhs)
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Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

20 Interest Income

On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on Housing & Other Loans 899.20 990.15
Interest on Deposits with Banks 158.53 123.81

Total 1,057.73 1,113.96

21 Net gain on fair value changes

On Investment measured through Profit or Loss
Unrealised 0.17 0.50

Total 0.17 0.50

22 Other Operating Revenue
Document Retrieval and Other Charges 3.50 4.74

Total 3.50 4.74

23 Other Income
Fair valuation of Financial Assets 1.10 0.91
Miscellaneous Income 0.15 0.15

Total 1.25 1.06

24 Finance Cost
On Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
On Non Convertible Debentures (Secured) 210.00 210.00
On Term Loans (Unsecured) 149.59 230.15
Interest on Lease liabilities 7.06 11.27
Bank and Other Charges 0.52 0.66
Total 367.17 452.08

25 Impairment on Financial Instruments
On Financial Instruments measured At Amortised Cost
On Housing & other Loans ( Refer note 5 (a) ) (0.67) (42.46)
Others - -

Total (0.67) (42.46)

The details relating to movement in Impairment on Loans (Expected credit loss) are disclosed in Note 5.3

26 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries, allowances and benefits 274.65 271.85
Gratuity and Leave Encashment Expenses 5.92 6.46
Company’s Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 13.49 13.91
Staff Welfare Expenses 6.52 6.42
Total 300.58 298.64

(` in Lakhs)
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Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

27 Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and
Right of Use Assets (Refer Note 10 (a) and (b)) 43.67 48.44
Amortisation on Intangible Assets (Refer Note 10 (c)) 0.74 0.35

Total 44.40 48.79

28 Other Expenses

Rent 5.71 3.06
Travelling and Conveyance 15.71 21.02
Legal and Professional Fees 61.19 48.45
Printing and Stationery 4.67 5.21
Communication Charges 5.90 6.33
General Expenses 17.03 16.03
Insurance 0.07 0.14
Repairs and Maintenance 3.11 5.24
Rates, Taxes and Licences 1.19 1.46
Office Maintenance 7.18 7.16
Vehicles Maintenance 28.09 27.28
Advertisement and Publicity 2.01 1.41
Electricity Charges 5.36 5.17
Auditors Remuneration 9.00 6.55

Total 166.22 154.51

(` in Lakhs)
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Note As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

29 Income Tax
(a) Income Tax Expense in statement of profit and loss
Current Income Tax:
In respect of the current year 37.73 34.12
Tax related to earlier year 5.69 16.27

 43.42  50.39
Deferred Tax:
In respect of the current year 1.08 16.71
Total Income Tax Expense 44.50 67.10

(b) Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense:
Effective tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Profit before tax 184.95 208.70
Income Tax Expenses Effect of : 46.55 52.53
Amount transferred under Section 36(1) (viii) under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (7.36) (6.87)
Disallowance of expenses and other adjustments (0.38) 5.17
Tax related to earlier year 5.69 16.27
Income Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 44.50 67.10

The Company has opted the option of section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to pay
tax at a concessional rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess (i.e Effective Rate 25.168%).

30 Details of auditors remuneration:
Audit & Tax Audit fee (including regulatory certificates) 5.00 5.00
Others 4.00 1.55

9.00  6.55

31 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered
or settled. With regard to loans and advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment
behaviour.
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(` in Lakhs)

Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 251.97  -  251.97  292.30  -  292.30
Other Bank Balances 310.67 1,796.63 2,107.29 727.84 1,284.92  2,012.76
Loans 1,003.88 6,113.24 7,117.12 1,118.66 6,287.68  7,406.34
Investments - 2.74 2.74  - 2.57  2.57
Other Financial Assets - 12.18 12.18 - 18.20  18.20
Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (net) - 32.49 32.49 -  24.01  24.01
Deferred Tax Assets (net) - 129.86 129.86 - 132.15  132.15
Property, Plant and Equipment - 60.28 60.28 - 67.94  67.94
Right of Use Assets - 43.03 43.03 - 70.38  70.38
Intangible Assets - 1.09 1.09 1.83 1.83
Other Non-Financial Assets 56.11 7.76 63.87 44.67 7.76  52.43
Total Assest 1,622.63  8,199.29 9,821.92 2,183.47 7,897.44  10,080.91

(` in Lakhs)
ASSETS As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023
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Within 12- After 12 Total Within 12- After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months

Financial liabilities

Trade Payable 8.60 - 8.60 10.71 - 10.71
Debt securities 900.00  2,100.00  3,000.00  -  3,000.00  3,000.00
Borrowings 1,305.57 236.02 1,541.59   - 1,906.59  1,906.59
(other than debt securities)
Other Financial Liability 49.83 23.17 73.01 56.51 51.22 107.73

Non-Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 1.54 11.66 13.20 0.62  12.76  13.38
Other Non – Financial Liabilities  13.08 - 13.08  14.09  -  14.09

Total Liabilities 2,278.63 2,370.86 4,649.48  81.93  4,970.57  5,052.50

LIABILITIES As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023

(` in Lakhs)

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
 Cost Cost

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents -  -  251.97 - -   292.30
Other Bank Balances  -  -  2,107.29  - - 2,012.76
Loans  -  -  7,117.12  - - 7,406.34
Investments  2.74  -  -  2.57  -  -
Other Financial Assets  -  -  12.18  -  - 18.20

Total Financial Assets  2.74  -  9,488.56   2.57  -  9,729.60

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable -  - 8.60  -  -  10.71
Debt Securities  -  -  3,000.00  -  - 3,000.00
Borrowings  -  -  1,541.59  -  -  1,906.59
(other than debt securities)
Other Financial Liabilities  -  - 73.01  -  -  107.73

Total Financial Liabilities  -  -  4,623.20  -  - 5,025.03

32 Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category

Particulars As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023

(` in Lakhs)
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(ii) Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 251.97 - - - - - - - 251.97 251.97
Bank Balances other than
Cash and Cash Equivalent 2,107.29 - - - - - - - 2,107.29 2,107.29
Loans 7,117.12 - - - - - - - 7,117.12 7,117.12
Investments 2.74 - 2.74 - - 2.74 - - - -
Other Financial Assets 12.18 - - - - - - - 12.18 12.18

Total Financial Assets 9,491.30 - 2.74 - - 2.74 - - 9,488.56 9,488.56

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable 8.60 - - - - - - - 8.60 8.60
Debt securities 3000.00 - - - - - - - 3000.00 3000.00
Borrowings (other than
debt securities)  1,541.59 - - - - - - -  1,541.59 1,541.59
Other Financial Liabilities 73.01 - - - - - - - 73.01 73.01

Total Financial Liabilities 4,623.19 - - - - - - - 4,623.19 4,623.19

Routed through Profit or Loss Carried at Amortised cost
Carrying
Amount

Routed
through
OCI

(` in Lakhs)As at March 31, 2024

Particulars
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Level 1 : hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(i) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
The fair values for loans and other financial assets were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate.
They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counter
party credit risk.
The fair values of debt securities and borrowings other than debt securities are based on discounted cash flows using a current
borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs,
including own credit risk.
For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  292.30 - - - - - - -  292.30  292.30
Bank Balances other than
Cash and Cash Equivalent 2,012.76 - - - - - - - 2,012.76 2,012.76
Loans 7,406.34 - - - - - - - 7,406.34 7,406.34
Investments 2.57 - 2.57 - - 2.57 - - - -
Other Financial Assets 18.20 - - - - - - - 18.20 18.20

Total Financial Assets 9,732.17  -  2.57  -  -  2.57  -  -  9,729.60  9,729.60

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable 10.71 - - - - - - - 10.71  10.71
Debt securities 3000.00 - - - - - - - 3000.00 3000.00
Borrowings (other than
debt securities) 1,906.59 - - - - - - -  1,906.59  1,906.59
Other Financial Liabilities 107.73 - - - - - - - 107.73  107.73

Total Financial Liabilities 5,025.03 - - - - - - - 5,025.03 5,025.03

Routed through Profit or Loss Carried at Amortised cost
Carrying
Amount

Routed
through
OCI

(` in Lakhs)As at March 31, 2023

Particulars
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Note 33: Financial Risk Management and Capital Management

(A) Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s
financial risk management policy is set by the Board. While the Company is exposed to various types of risks, the most important
among them are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and regulatory risk. This measurement, monitoring and management of
risks remain a key focus area for the Company.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from the failure of any party to abide by the terms and conditions of any contract,
principally the failure to make required payments of amounts due to company. In lending operations, the Company is principally
exposed to credit risk.

The credit risk is governed by various Product Policies. The Product Policy outlines the type of products that can be offered, customer
categories, the targeted customer profile and the credit approval process and limits.

The Company measures, monitors and manages credit risk at an individual borrower level. The credit risk for individual borrowers
is being managed at portfolio level for Housing Loans and Non Housing Loans. The Company has a structured and standardized
credit approval process, which includes a well-established procedure of comprehensive credit appraisal. The Risk Management
Policy addresses the recognition, measurement, monitoring and reporting of the Credit risk.

Credit Approval Authorities

The Board of Directors has delegated credit approval authority on the basis of cadre of employees with approval limits.

Credit Risk Assessment

Housing and Non-housing Loan to Individuals: Company’s customers for housing loans and non housing loans are primarily
low, middle and high-income, salaried and self-employed individuals. All housing loans and non housing loans are also subjected
to risk based pricing wherein the individual cases are graded on a credit score linked to multiple parameters of appraisal.

The Company’s credit officers evaluate credit proposals on the basis of active credit policies as on the date of approval.The criteria
typically include factors such as the borrower’s income & obligations, the loan-to-value ratio, Fixed obligation to income ratio and
demographic parameters subject to regulatory guide lines. Any deviations need to be approved at the designated levels.

The various process controls such as KYC Check, CERSAI database scrubbing, Credit Bureau Report analysis are undertaken
prior to approval of a loan. In addition External agencies such as field investigation agencies facilitate a comprehensive due diligence
process including visits to offices and homes.

The housing loans and non housing loans are fully secured and have full recourse against the borrower. The Company has a
equitable mortgage over the borrowers property. Where-ever the state laws provide, the memorandum of deposit of title deeds are
also registered.

Builder/Project Finance : Loans advanced for the purpose of construction of Residential/Commercial Properties. The Company
has a framework for appraisal of the application and subsequent execution of Builder/Project Finance loan that is encompassed
in the Builder/Project Loan Policy. The Policy has been framed bearing in mind to create optimal risk identification, allocation and
mitigation and helps minimize residual risk.

The Builder / Project Finance approval process includes intrinsic evaluation of technical, commercial, financial and legal with respect
to the Projects and additionally evaluate the strength, experience and previous track record of the Borrower Group’s and its
promoters/venture partners/associates.

As part of the appraisal process, a note is generated, which identifies each of the project risks, mitigating factors and residual risks
associated with the project and after internal credit appraisal, the Sanction Letter is issued to the applicant, which outlines the
principal financial terms of the proposed facility, Borrowers/Security providers obligations, conditions precedent to disbursement,
undertakings from and covenants on the borrower.

After satisfactory completion of all the security formalities by the applicant, a Loan Agreement is entered into with the applicant/borrower.
Such loans are generally fully secured and have full recourse against the borrower. In most cases, the Company has registered
mortgage of the financed Project. Security typically includes the project property (in part or full) as well as other tangible assets of
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the borrower, both present and future. The Company also takes additional credit comforts such as personal guarantees and
undertaking from one or more promoters of the project. The Company mandates the borrower to submit periodic reports and
continues to monitor the exposure until the loans are fully repaid.

Risk Management and Portfolio Review

The Company ensures effective monitoring of credit facilities through a risk-based asset review framework under which the frequency
of asset review is determined depending on the risk associated with the product.

The Operations team monitors compliance with the terms and conditions for credit facilities prior to disbursement. It also reviews
the completeness of documentation, creation of security and compliance with regulatory guidelines.

The Company, regularly reviews the credit quality of the portfolio. A summary of there views carried out is submitted to the concerned
teams.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle of meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable
price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities – borrowings, trade payables and other
financial liabilities. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Maturity Analysis is given in note 31.
Adequate liquidity cover is maintained by the company in line with the RBI’s liquidity risk management frame work to the extent
applicable to the company.

Market risk

(i) Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as it has assets on floating interest rates and borrowing on fixed interest rates. The
Company has an approved Asset and Liability Management Policy which empowers the Asset and Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) to assess the interest rate risk run by it and provide appropriate guidelines to manage the risk. The ALCO reviews the
interest rate risk on periodic basis and decides on the asset profile and the appropriate funding mix. The ALCO reviews the interest
rate gap statement and the interest rate sensitivity analysis. However, the Company does not have any exposure to interest rate
risk in respect of its existing borrowing/debt securities as the rate of Interest is fixed.
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loans (Floating Rate) 7,576.74 7,866.63

Borrowings and Debt Securities

Borrowings and Debt Securities (Fixed Rate)  4,541.59 4,906.59

Exposure to Loans and Borrowings (` in Lakhs)

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a resonable possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant)
of the Company's Statement of profit and loss

(` in Lakhs)
Impact on Profit before Tax

Interest Rate Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loans

Increase by 50 basis points 37.88 39.33
Decrease by 50 basis points (37.88) (39.33)



Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

90

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Debt securities 3,000.00 3,000.00
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,541.59 1,906.59

Total Debt 4,541.59 4,906.59

Cash and Cash Equivalents  251.97 292.30

Net Debt 4,289.62 4,614.29

Total Equity 5,172.44 5,028.41

Net Debt to Total Equity Ratio (in times ) 0.83 0.92

(` in Lakhs)

(ii) Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to investment in Equity is not significant and hence the Company’s exposure to price risk is insignificant.
Regulatory Risk

The Company requires certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting business and failure to obtain retain or renew these
approvals in a timely manner, may adversely affect operations. Any change in laws or regulations made by the government or a
regulatory body that governs the business of the Company may increase the costs of operating the business, reduce the attractiveness
of investment and / or change the competitive landscape.
(B) Capital Management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy
requirements of Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures,
the regulations issued by RBI/NHB from time to time.

The Company has complied with the applicable capital requirements over the reported period.

Risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and total equity balance.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors
capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio: Net debt (total borrowings (undiscounted) net of cash and cash equivalents) divided
by ‘Equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet). The gearing ratios are as follows :

Note No. 34 Related Party Disclosures
As per the Indian Accounting Standard on ‘Related Party Disclosures’ (Ind AS 24), details of related parties alongwith nature of
the relationship, with whom the company has entered into transaction:

a. List of Related Parties

(i) Major shareholder having control over the company
- Sahara India Corp Investment Limited
- Sahara Prime City Limited
- Sahara India Finance & Investment Limited

(ii) Non Executive Director
Shri Brijendra Sahay - Independent Director (since deceased on 14-02-2024)
Smt. Anshu Roy - Independent Director
Shri Awdhesh Kumar Srivastava - Non Independent Director
Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal - Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 05-03-2024)
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 Financial Year Previous Year 
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Directors’ Sitting Fees Paid
Shri Brijendra Sahay 0.60 0.80
Shri Awdhesh Kumar Srivastava 0.90 0.80
Smt. Anshu Roy 0.90 0.80
Shri Rajiv Kumar Lal 0.10 -
Rent Expenses
Sahara India Commercial Corporation Limited 2.16 2.16
Smt. Sumana Bagchi 7.20 7.20
Interest Expenses
Sahara India Financial Corporation Limited 17.70 21.10
Sahara India Commercial Corporation Limited 131.89 209.04
Un-secured Loan Repaid

Sahara India Commercial Corporation Limited - 163.99
Sahara India Financial Corporation Limited 365.00 900.00
Outstanding Un-secured Loan
Sahara India Commercial Corporation Limited 236.02 236.02
Sahara India Financial Corporation Limited 1,305.27 1,670.27
Remuneration #
Shri D. J. Bagchi 54.85 49.46
Shri Vivek Kapoor 19.58 17.78

 # Expenses towards gratuity are determined actuarially on overall Company basis at the end of each year and, accordingly, have
not been considered in the above information.

b. Disclosure of Related Party Transactions between the company and related parties
(` in Lakhs)

(iii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Shri D. J. Bagchi, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary/Manager and Compliance Offcer
Shri Vivek Kapoor, Chief Financial Officer

(iv) Companies under common control
- Sahara India Financial Corporation Limited
- Sahara India Commercial Corporation Limited

(v) Relative of Key Management Personnel
Smt. Sumana Bagchi – Wife of Shri D. J. Bagchi

c. Particulars of Remuneration to Key Management Personnel 

Particulars  Shri D. J. Bagchi  Shri Vivek Kapoor

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Salary and Allowances 53.11 48.03 19.00 17.22
Contribution to PF 1.74 1.43 0.58 0.56

The related party relationships have been as identified by the management on the basis of the requirements of the Ind AS-24
‘Related Party Disclosures’
d) No amount pertaining to related parties has been provided for as doubtful debts or written off.  
e) Related party relationship is as identified by the Company. 

(` in Lakhs)
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Note 35 Employee Benefits:

In compliance with the Indian Accounting Standard on ‘Employee Benefits’ (Ind AS 19), following disclosures have been made:
Defined Benefit Plans:

Provident Fund

An amount of ` 12.66 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: ` 12.87 Lakhs) has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on account of this
defined benefit scheme.

Employees State Insurance

An amount of ` 0.83 lakhs (March 31, 2023: ` 1.04 lakhs) has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss of this defined benefit
scheme.

Leave Encashment

An amount of ` 2.55 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: ` 2.70 Lakhs) has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss of this benefit scheme
during the year.

Gratuity Plan

Gratuity is payable to all the members at the rate of 15 days salary for each completed year of Service.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A. Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Benefit Obligation as at beginning of the period Interest Cost 71.16 67.67
Current Service Cost 3.91 4.13
Past Service Cost - -
Interest Expenses 5.27 4.81
Benefit Paid From the Fund (5.06) (4.15)
"Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations-Due to Change in - -
 Demographic Assumptions"
"Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations-Due to Change in 1.20 (1.21)
Financial Assumptions"
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (3.94) (0.09)

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the end of the year 72.54 71.16

B. Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period 78.43 72.30
Interest income 5.81 5.18
Contributions by the employer 5.23 5.52
Benefit paid from the fund (5.06) (4.15)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 0.04 (0.42)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 84.45 78.43

C. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 72.54 71.16
Defined Benefit Obligation 84.45 78.43
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the
Year Funded Status – Short/(Excess) (11.91) (7.28)

Net Liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet (11.91) (7.28)

(` in Lakhs)
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As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

D. Net interest cost for current year 5.27 4.81
Interest Cost Interest Income (5.81) (5.18)

Net Interest Cost for Current the Year (0.54) (0.37)

E. Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Current Service Cost 3.91 4.13
Net Interest Cost (0.54) (0.37)
Past Service Cost - -
Expected Contributions by the Employees - -
(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments and Settlements - -

Expenses recognized 3.37 3.76

F. Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation for the year (2.74) (1.30)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.04) 0.42

Net (Income)/Expense for the year recognized in OCI (2.78) (0.88)

G. Total amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income consists of
Remeasurement (Gains)/Losses (2.78) (0.88)

H. Principal actuarial assumptions used
Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.071 0.074
Rate of Salary Increase 0.071 0.074
Mortality Rate During Employment 0.06 0.06

Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2012-14) (2012-14)
Mortality Rate After Employment Not Applicable Not Applicable

I. Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Opening Net Liability (7.28) (4.63)
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
Expenses recognized in OCI 3.37 3.75
Employer's Contribution (2.78) (0.88)
Net Liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet (5.22) (5.52)

(11.91) (7.28)

J. Other Details
No. of Active Members 44.00 48.00
Per Month Salary for Active Members (` in Lakhs) 0.17 0.16
Average Expected Future Service (in Years) 11.68 12.79
Projected Benefit Obligation (` in Lakhs) 72.54 71.16
Prescribed Contribution for Next Year (12 Months) (` in Lakhs) 3.91 4.13

(` in Lakhs)
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

K. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments from the Fund:
1st Following Year 19.48 18.96
2nd Following Year 5.05 4.55
3rd Following Year 1.50 3.48
4th Following Year - 1.82
5th Following Year 8.54 -
Sum of Years 6 To 10 16.52 35.42
The above information is as certified by the actuary

L. Sensitivity Analysis
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the date of Reporting
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 72.54 71.16
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (3.80) (3.87)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 4.55 4.65
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 4.48 4.87
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (3.80) (4.11)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.05 0.51
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.06) (0.25)

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual changes in the projected benefit obligation
as it is unlikely that the changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied
in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

36. Contingent Liabilities and Other Commitments

(i) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of Income Tax Matters:

A demand of Income Tax of ` 38.78 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: `38.78 Lakhs) is pending with respect to the financial year
2009-10 against certain disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961 against which appeal is pending before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal). The Company had deposited `7.76 Lakhs (March 31, 2023, `7.76 Lakhs) in
protest against this demand.

(ii) Other commitments: ` Nil (March 31, 2023: ` Nil)

(iii) Company has sanctioned but not disbursed Loan amounting of ` 517.21 Lakh as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023
` 130.46 Lakhs)

37. Segment Reporting

The Company’s main business is financing by way of loans for the purchase or construction of residential houses, commercial
real estate or certain other purposes, in India. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main business. Hence,
there are no separate reportable segments, as per Ind AS 108 dealing with Operating Segments as specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

(` in Lakhs)
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Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Less than one year 39.40 46.84
One to five years 27.74 55.72
More than five years - -

Balance at the end of the year 67.14 102.56

The details regarding the contractual maturities of Lease liabilities on undiscounted basis:

39. The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due
Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in some of the leases across the Company. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets in the Company’s operation. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable by both the Company and by the respective lessor. Further the company expects not to use
those options.

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current Lease liabilities 33.26 39.92
Non- Current Lease liabilities 23.17 51.22

56.44  91.13

 The break-up of current and non-current Lease liabilities: (` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 91.13 108.75
Additions 8.22 19.04
Finance cost accrued during the period 7.06 11.27
Deletions/adjustments on cancellation/modification - -
Payment of lease liabilities (49.98) (47.93)

Balance at the end of the year 56.43 91.13

The movement in Lease liabilities:
(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Depreciation Expenses 35.75 40.54
Interest Expenses 7.06 11.27
Rent 5.71 3.06

Total 48.52 54.87

38. Ind AS 116 : Leases

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
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41. Pursuant to RBI Circular RBI/2021-22/125 DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22  dated  November 12, 2021,  on “Prudential
Norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances - Clarifications” the Company has
taken necessary steps to revise its process of NPA classification to flag the borrower as overdue as part of the day-end process
for the due date.

Further to this, on February 15, 2022, the RBI allowed deferment of para 10 of the aforesaid circular till September 30, 2022
pertaining to upgrade of Non-Performing Accounts. The Company opted for such deferment in case of 5 loan accounts having
aggregate outstandings of `17.54 lakhs (including interest).
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Sl. Year Ended Year Ended
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) CRAR (%) 110.84% 106.22%
ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 109.82% 105.17%
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 1.02% 1.05%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital Nil Nil
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments Nil Nil

I. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR):

42. Disclosures as required by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) :

The following disclosures have been given in terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, February 17, 2021 and other disclosures required by RBI/NHB. Regulatory ratios, limits
and disclosures are based on Ind As figures in accordance with RBI circular dated October 22, 2020 read with RBI circular dated
March 13, 2020 relating to implementation of Ind AS.

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (` In Lakhs) 140.45 141.60
No. of Weighted Average Equity Shares Outstanding during the year
for Basic and Diluted EPS 70,00,000 70,00,000
Face Value of Equity Shares (in `) 10 10
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (in `) 2.01 2.03

40. Earnings per Share (EPS):
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Sl. Year Ended Year Ended
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 - -
b) Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act,1961

taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 1,295.46 1,268.18

Total (a + b) 1,295.46 1,268.18

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add:

a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act,1987 29.22 27.28
Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the
NHB Act, 1987 - -

b) Amount withdrawn from special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income
Tax Act, 1961 which has been taken into account for the purposes
of provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 - -

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income  Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 1,324.68 1,295.46

Total (a + b) 1,324.68 1,295.46

II. Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act,1987: (` in Lakhs)

Sl. Year Ended Year Ended
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Value of Investments
i) Gross Value of Investments

a) In India 2.74 2.57
b) Outside India - -

ii) Provisions for Depreciation
a) In India - -
b) Outside India - -

iii) Net Value of Investments
a) In India 2.74 2.57
b) Outside India - -

III. Investments: (` in Lakhs)
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IV. The Company has not entered into any of the following transaction during the financial year 2023-24 and previous
financial year 2022-23:

a) Derivative transactions, which includes Forward Rate Agreement (FRA)/Interest Rate Swap (IRS) and Exchange Traded
Interest Rate (IR) Derivative. Accordingly, the Company has no disclosures in respect of Qualitative and Quantitative
disclosure that is obligatory of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 (as amended).

b) Securitization and Assignment transaction of any kind which includes Financial Assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction
Company for Asset Reconstruction. Accordingly, the Company has no disclosures to be made as per of Master Direction
– Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17,
2021 (as amended).

c) Transaction of purchase and / or sale of non-performing financial assets. Accordingly, the Company has no disclosures
to be made in respect of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 (as amended).

Nonetheless, as mandated by RBI in Annexure IV of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 (as amended), the “NIL/Not Applicable (as the case
may be)” items listed for disclosure is also mentioned (as per the suggested format) so as to comply with the directives of
Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Sl. Year Ended Year Ended
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provision on Investments
i) Opening balance - -
ii) Add: Provisions made during the year - -
iii) Less: Write-off/Written-back of excess provisions during the year - -
iv) Closing Balance - -

Movement of Provisions held towards depreciation on investments (` in Lakhs)

Sl.
No. Particulars Amount

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year
(instrument-wise) NIL

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2023
(instrument-wise) NIL

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly
effective” (instrument-wise) NIL

(iv) Market to market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly
effective” (instrument-wise) NIL

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative (` in Lakhs)

Sl. Year Ended Year Ended
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements NIL NIL
(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil

their obligations under the agreements NIL NIL
(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps NIL NIL
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from swaps NIL NIL
(v) The fair value of the swap book NIL NIL

Derivatives

Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS) (` in Lakhs)



Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

99

Disclosure on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

A. Qualitative Disclosure Derivatives

The Company has no exposure in Derivatives, hence qualitative disclosure on risk management policies pertaining to
derivatives in not applicable.

B. Quantitative Disclosure
Derivatives

Sl. Currency Interest Rate
No. Particulars Derivatives Derivatives

(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) NIL NIL
(ii) Marked to Market Position NIL NIL

(a) Assets (+) NIL NIL
(b) Liability (-) NIL NIL

(iii) Credit Exposure NIL NIL
(iv) Unhedged Exposures NIL NIL

V. Asset Liability Management:

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024

Liabilities Assets

Particulars

1 day to 7 days - 0.30 - - 14.49 - -
8 days to 14 days - - - - - - -
15 days to 30/31 days - - - - 84.64 - -
Over one month to 2 months - - - - 85.12 - -
Over 2 months to 3 months - - - - 85.34 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months - - - - 258.70 - -
Over 6 months to 1 year - - 2,205.27 - 509.53 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years - - 2,100.00 - 1,807.98 2.74 -
Over 3 years to 5 years - - 236.02 - 1,252.50 - -
Over 5 years - - - - 3,478.44 - -

Total - 0.30 4,541.29 - 7,576.74 2.74 -

Deposits Borrowings
from

banks

Market
Borrowings

Foreign
currency
Liabilities

Advances Invest-
ments

Foreign
currency
Assets

(` in Lakhs)
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As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Direct Exposure

i) Residential Mortgages

Lending fully secured by mortgages of residential property that
is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure
would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits. 6707.50 7031.30

ii) Commercial Real Estate

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises,
multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, etc.)  Exposure would also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits.* 869.24 835.33

iii) Investments in Mortgage backed Securities (MBS) and other
Securitised Exposures

- Residential Nil Nil
- Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil

b) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) Nil Nil

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 7576.74 7866.63

* Includes Non-Residential Property (NRP) Loan to Individuals of ` 406.58 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 ` 318.08 Lakhs)

VI. Exposure to Real Estate Sector (` in Lakhs)

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023

Liabilities Assets

Particulars

1 day to 7 days - 0.30 - - 40.63 - -
8 days to 14 days - - - - - - -
15 days to 30/31 days - - - - 94.44 - -
Over one month to 2 months - - - - 94.68 - -
Over 2 months to 3 months - - - - 93.73 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months - - - - 268.59 - -
Over 6 months to 1 year - - - - 526.59 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years - - 3,470.27 - 1,955.39 2.74 -
Over 3 years to 5 years - - 1,200.00 - 1,996.28 - -
Over 5 years - - 236.02 - 2,796.30 - -

Total - 0.30 4,906.29 - 7,866.63 2.74 -

Deposits Borrowings
from

banks

Market
Borrowings

Foreign
currency
Liabilities

Advances Invest-
ments

Foreign
currency
Assets

(` in Lakhs)
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Sl. As at As at
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt 2.74 2.57

Total Exposure to Capital Market 2.74 2.57

VII. Exposure to Capital Market (` in Lakhs)

VIII.Sectoral exposure

Total Exposure
(includes on

balance sheet
and off-balance
sheetexposure)

   (` in lakhs)

Gross NPAs
(` in lakhs)

Percentage of
Gross NPAs to
total exposure
in that sector

Total Exposure
(includes on

balance sheet
and off-balance
sheet exposure)
      (` in lakhs)

Gross NPAs
(` in lakhs)

Percentage of
Gross NPAs to
total exposure
in that sector

Sectors
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

1. Agricultural and
Allied Activities – – – – – –

2. Industry – – – – – –

i….. – – – – – –

ii…. – – – – – –

Others

Total of Industry – – – – – –

3. Services – – – – – –

i….. – – – – – –

ii…. – – – – – –

Others

Total of Services

(i+ii+…+Others) – – – – – –

4. Personal Loans – – – – – –

i….. – – – – – –

ii…. – – – – – –

Others

Total of Personal
Loans – – – – – –

(i+ii+…+Others) – – – – – –

5. Others 8093.95 583.06 7.20 7997.09 653.88 8.18

i) Housing Loans 7217.71 583.06 8.08 7146.76 653.88 9.15
ii) Other Loan 876.24 – – 850.33 – –

IX. Detail of financing of parent Company products:

These details are not applicable since the Company is not a subsidiary of any Company. Further the Company has not financed
any products of any Company.
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(` in Lakhs)
X. The Company has not exceeded limit prescribed by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as Single Borrower Limit (SGL)

and Group Borrower Limit (GBL). 

As at As at
     Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

 Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded
 as per prudential exposure limits  during the year Nil Nil

XI. The Company has not given or offered any advances that can be classified under Unsecured Advances i.e. advances against
intangible securities such as Rights, Licenses, Authority, etc. as Collateral Security.

XII. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

Description Amount % of
(` in Lakhs)  owned fund

(i) Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business NIL NIL
(ii) Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business NIL NIL

As at As at
     Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a)  Total amount of intra-group exposures NIL NIL
  b)  Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures NIL NIL
 c)   Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposures of the HFC on
      borrowers/customers NIL NIL

XIII. Intra-group exposure

As at As at
     Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unhedged foreign currency exposures NIL NIL

XIV. Unhedged foreign currency exposure

(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)
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XVI. Registration obtained from financial sector regulators:

NHB : vide registration number 02.0044.03
Ministry of Corporate Affairs : L18100WB1991PLC099782

XVII. Details of Disclosure of Penalties imposed during the year

Penalties imposed by NHB/RBI and other regulator Nil
Penalties imposed by Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) Nil

XVIII. As per the Indian Accounting Standard on ‘Related Party Disclosures’ (Ind AS 24), details of the related parties, nature of
the relationship with whom Company has entered transactions and remuneration to directors, are given in Note No.34

XIX. Diagrammatic representation of Group Structure

The Company at present neither have any Subsidiary and/or Associate units not have holding company to be represented
in diagrammatic order as per clause 4.4 of Annexure IV of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,2021, dated February 17, 2021.

XX. Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year:

The Secured 7% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debenture was assigned rating of BB-(Stable Outlook) by Infomerics Valuation
and Rating Private Limited.

XXI. Net Profit or Loss for the prior period items and changes in accounting policies:
There are no prior period items that have an impact on the current year’s Profit or Loss.

XXII.. The Company has no subsidiary hence, requirement of consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the Company

XXIII. Provisions and Contingencies charged during the year:.

As at As at
Sl. No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Provision for Depreciation on Investments - -
ii) Provision made towards Income tax - -
iii) Provision towards NPA 413.38 412.33
iv) Provision for Standard Assets 46.24 47.96
v) Other Provision and Contingencies 13.20 13.38

(` in Lakhs)

Patent (as per Subsidiaries Associates/  Key Relatives of Others (Companies Total
Ownership Joint Ventures Management  Key Management under common
or Control) Personnel control)

Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year

Borrowings  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1541.29 1906.29 1541.29 1906.29

Deposits  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Placement of Deposits  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Advances  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Investments  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Purchase of fixed/other assets  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Sale of fixed/other assets  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Interest Paid  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 149.59 230.14 149.59 230.14

Interest Received  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Directors' Sitting Fees  -  -  -  -  -  - 2.50 2.40  -  -  -  - 2.50 2.40

Remuneration Paid  -  -  -  -  -  - 74.43 67.24  -  -  -  - 74.43 67.24

Rent Paid  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 7.20 7.20 2.16 2.16 9.36 9.36

Related Party

Items

XV.   Related Party Transactions
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

XXIV. Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning
For FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23, no divergence in asset classification and additional provisioning requirements were advised
by the National Housing Bank (NHB) to the Company. Accordingly, any additional disclosures in this regard are not applicable
on the Company.

a) The additional provisioning requirements assessed by RBI (or National Housing Bank (NHB) in the case of Housing Finance
Companies) exceeds 5 percent of the reported profits before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the reference
period : Not appllicable

b) The additional Gross NPAs identified by the National Housing Bank exceeds 5 per cent of the reported Gross NPAs for the
reference period.: No such divergence identified/reported by National Housing Bank (NHB) for position of the Company as on
March 31, 2023

Sl. No. Particulars Amount

1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2023 N.A.
2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2023 as assessed by the NHB N.A.
3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) N.A.
4 Net NPAS as on March 31, 2023 as reported by the HFC N.A.
5 Net NPAS as on March 31, 2023 as assessed by the NHB N.A.
6 Divergence in Gross NPAs (5-4) N.A.
7 Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2023 as reported by the HFC N.A.
8 provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2023 as reported by the NHB N.A.
9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) N.A.

10 Reported Profit Before Tax and Impairment loss on financial instruments for the year ended March 31, 2023 N.A.
11 Reported Profit After Tax(PAT)  for the year ended March 31, 2023 N.A.
12 Adjusted (notional) Net Profit After Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2023 after considering the divergence

in provisioning N.A.

Particulars For Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For Year Ended
March 31, 2023

For Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Housing Non Housing

(` in Lakhs)

Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount 6,124.44 6,377.42 869.24 835.33
b) Provisions made 35.28 37.43 10.96 10.53

Sub- Standard Assets 
a) Total Outstanding Amoun 126.96 267.31 - -
b) Provisions made 28.82 60.69 - -

Doubtful Assets-Category–I 
a) Total Outstanding Amount 95.19 30.37 - -
b) Provisions made 36.02 11.49 - -

Doubtful Assets – Category II 
a) Total Outstanding Amount 31.35 40.68 - -
b) Provisions made 18.98 24.63 - -

Doubtful Assets– Category III 
a) Total Outstanding Amount 329.56 315.52 - -
b) Provisions made 329.56 315.52 - -

Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
b) Provisions made - - - -

Total
a) Total Outstanding Amount 6,707.50 7,031.30 869.24 835.33
b) Provisions made 448.66 449.76 10.96 10.53

Break up of Loans & Advances and Provisions thereof
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

XXV. There are no loans transferred/acquired during the year ended March 31, 2024 under the Reserve Bank of India Master
Direction on "Transfer of Loan Exposure" as per RBI notification - RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.RBC.51/21.02.048/2021/22
dated September 24, 2021.

XXVI. Details of Gross Advances, Gross NPAs, Net Advances and Net NPAs during the year ended March 31, 2024 pursuant to
the Master Circular – Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances
dated October 1, 2021: (` in Lakhs)

XXVII Disclosure on Liquidity Risk, to the extent applicable in accordance with Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company
 – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India
read with RBI circular no. DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016

a)  Funding concentration based on significant counter party

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Number of Amount % of total % of total Number of Amount % of total % of total
significant  deposits liabilities significant  deposits liabilities

counterparties counterparties

3 4,541.29 - 97.67 3 4,906.29 - 97.11

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Part A

1. Standard Advances 6993.68
2. Gross Non-performing assets (NPAs) 583.06
3. Gross Advances  (1+2 ) 7576.74
4. Gross NPAs as a percentage of Gross Advances (2/3) (in %) 7.70
5. Deductions

(i) Provisions held in the case of NPA Accounts as per asset classification (including
additional Provisions for NPAs at higher than prescribed rates). 413.38

(ii) DICGC / ECGC claims received and held pending adjustment Nil
(iii) Part payment received and kept in Suspense Account or any Other similar Nil
(iv) Balance in Sundries Account (Interest Capitalization – Restructured Accounts),

in respect of NPA Accounts Nil
(v) Floating Provisions Nil
(vi) Provisions in lieu of diminution in the fair value of restructured Accounts classifieds Nil
(vii) Provisions in lieu of diminution in the fair value of restructured accounts classified 

as standard assets Nil
6. Net Advances(3-5) 7163.36
7. Net NPAs{2-5(i+ii+iii+iv+v+ vi)} 169.68
8. Net NPAs as percentage of Net Advances (7/6)(in%) 2.37

Part B

1. Provisions on Standard Assets excluding 5(vi) in Part A 46.24
2. Interest recorded as Memorandum Item 239.93
3. Amount of cumulative Technical Write - Off in respect of NPA accounts reported in

Part A above Nil
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Amount % of total Amount % of total
liabilities liabilities

1 Debt Securities 3,000.00 64.52 3,000.00 59.38
2 Borrowings

(Other than Debt Securities) 1,541.59 33.16 1,906.59 37.74

(` in Lakhs)c) Funding concentration based on instrument/product

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Other Short % of total % of total % of total Other Short % of total % of total % of total
term liabilities public fund liabilities assets term liabilities public fund liabilities assets

2234.93 49.21 48.07 22.75 30.69 0.63 0.61 0.30

(` in Lakhs)d) Stock Ratios - Other Short Term Liabilities

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers (` in Lakhs) 2,730.13 3,017.97
ii) Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers

to Total Advances of the HFC. (in Percentage) 36.03 38.36

XXVIII. Concentration of Public Deposits : The Company has not accepted any public deposits therfore discloser not required.

XXIX. Concentration of Loans & Advances:

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers (` in Lakhs) 2,780.13 3,017.97
ii) Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers

to Total Exposure of the HFC on borrower/ customers (in Percentage) 34.35 37.74

XXX. Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure):

e) The above amount of borrowings represent actual contractual liabilities.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Name Borrowings Total % of total Borrowings Total % of total
from party Borrowings Borrowings from party Borrowings Borrowings

1 Humara India Credit
Co-operative Society 3,000.00 4,541.59 66.05 3,000.00 4,906.59 61.14

2 Sahara India Financial
Corporation Limited 1,305.27 4,541.59 28.74 1,670.27 4,906.59 34.04

3 Sahara India Commercial
Corporation Limited 236.02 4,541.59 5.20 236.02 4,906.59 4.81

4 Union Bank of India
(Formerly Andhra Bank) 0.30 4,541.59 0.01 0.30 4,906.59 0.01

(` in Lakhs)b) Top 10 Borrowings
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XXXIV. The Company has not postponed any revenue recognition pending resolution of significant uncertainties.
XXXV. The Company does not have any overseas assets and any off balance sheet Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), which requires

to be consolidated as per accounting norms.
XXXVI. There was no draw down from Reserves during the Current Financial Year 2023-24 . (In 2022-23 ` Nil)
XXXVII. The company has not lent against security of shares.
XXXVIII. The Company has not given any Loan & Advances against the collateral security of gold and gold jewellery.
XXXIX. The Company has not lent against security of single product gold jewellery

Sl. Year Ended Year Ended
No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Net NPAs to Net Advances 2.37% 3.07%

ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 653.88 823.70
b) Additions/( Reductions) during the year (70.82) (169.82)
c) Closing balance 583.06 653.88

iii) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance 241.55 292.30
b) Additions/( Reductions) during the year (71.87) (50.75)
c) Closing balance 169.68 241.55

iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 412.33 531.40
b) Provisions made/( Write-off/write-back) during the year 1.05 (119.07)
c) Closing balance 413.38 412.33

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 209.20 256.22

XXXI. Concentration of Non-performing Assets:

XXXIII. Movement of NPAs: (` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
Sector March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Housing Loans
a. Individuals 10.21 11.23
b. Builders/Project Loans Nil Nil
c. Corporates Nil Nil
d. Others (specify) Nil Nil

ii) Non – Housing Loans
a. Individuals (Mortgage/Commercial) Nil Nil
b. Builders/Project Loans Nil Nil
c. Corporates Nil Nil
d. Others (specify) Nil Nil

XXXII. Sector-wise NPAs (Gross)

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in
that sector

(` in Lakhs)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

XXXX. Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) guidelines as defined in Para No.3.1.2 of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial
Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 are not applicable presenly to the Company.

XXXXI. Institutional Set-up for liquidity risk management
The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and the Risk
Management Committee. The Board has the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The board decides
the strategy, policies and procedures to manage liquidity risk in accordance with liquidity risk tolerance/ limits approved
by it. The Risk Management Committee (RMC), which is a committee of the board, is responsible for evaluating and
monitoring the integrated risk management system of the Company including liquidity risk. The ALCO is responsible for
ensuring adherence to the liquidity risk tolerance/limits set out in the board approved Asset Liability Management (ALM)
policy.

The role of the ALCO with respect to liquidity risk includes, inter alia, decision on desired maturity profile for assets &
liabilities, responsibilities and control for managing liquidity risk, and overseeing the liquidity position of the Company. The
ALM Policy is reviewed periodically to realign the same pursuant to any regulatory changes/changes in the economic
landscape or business needs and tabled to the Board for approval.

Management regularly reviews the position of cash equivalents by aligning the same with the projected maturity of financial
assets and financial liabilities, economic environment, liquidity position in the financial market, anticipated pipeline of future
borrowing & future liabilities and threshold of minimum liquidity define in the ALM policy with additional liquidity buffers
as management overlay.

XXXXII. In compliance with Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 issued by Reserve Bank of Indi read with RBI circular no. RBI/DNBS/2016-
17/49/Master Direction DNBS.PPD.01/66.15.001/2016-17 dated September 09, 2016, during the year the company has
reported “NIL” fraud case in relation to loans advanced to the borrowers to NHB (March 31, 2023 Nil).

XXXXIII. Summary information of Complaints:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
b) No. of complaints received during the year 3 10
c) No. of complaints disposed during the year 3 10

(i) Of which, number of complaints rejected by the HFC - -
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -

Maintainable complaints received from the Office of Ombudsman
e) Number of maintainable complaints received from the Office of Ombudsman - -

(i) of (e), number of complaints resolved in favour by Office of Ombudsman - -
(ii) of (e), number of complaints resolved through conciliation/ mediation/

advisories issued by the Office of Ombudsman - -
(iii) of (e), number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by the

Office of Ombudsman against the company - -
f) Number of Awards unimplemented with the stipulated time (other than

those appealed)

Disclosure made above is only for the complaints filed by customers directly on “Grievance Registration and Information
Data base system (GRIDS)” NHB online website having the following URL:http://grids.nhbonline.org.in



As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Percentage of Housing Loan Assets to Total Assets 69.52 71.19

Percentage of Housing Loan Assets
of Individuals toTotal Assets 59.17 58.95

Exposure of Total Assets to Housing Loan Assets

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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XXXXV. Details of principal business criteria in compliance to clause 16.1 of Chapter V of  Master Direction - Non-Banking-   Financial
  Company Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

XXXXIV. Top five grounds of complaints received from customers

Grounds of
complaints, (i.e.

complaints
relating to)

Number of
complaints

pending at the
beginning of

the year

Number of
complaints

received during
the year

%increase/
decrease in the

number of
complaints

received over the
previous year

Number of
complaints

pending at the
end of the year

Of 5, number of
complaints

pending beyond
30 days

1 2 3 4 5
Current Year

Complaint
erroneously
marked to us - 3 70% decreased - Nil

Ground -2
Ground - 3
Ground -4
Ground -5

Total
Previous Year

Complaint
erroneously
marked to us - 10 333% increased - Nil

Ground -2
Ground - 3
Ground -4
Ground -5

Total
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

43. Balance Sheet disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking-Financial Company Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 ( updated on March 2021,2024) issued by the Reserve Bank of
India.

Particulars

(1) Loans and advances availed by the HFC
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
not paid :

(a) Debentures : Secured 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 -
                            : Unsecured - - - -

(other than falling within the meaning of public
deposits)

(b) Deferred Credits - - - -
(c) Term Loans - - -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
(e) Commercial Paper - - - -
(f) Public Deposits - - - -
(g) Unsecured Loan 1,541.59 - 1,906.59 -
(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public

deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon
but not paid) :

(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - - - -
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e.

debentures where there is a shortfall in the value
of security - - - -

(c) Other public deposits - - - -

Assets side Amount outstanding Amount outstanding

(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including
bills receivables [other than those included
in (4) below] :

(a) Secured 7576.74 7,866.63
(b) Unsecured - -
(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and

other assets counting towards AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry

debtors :
(a) Financial lease - -
(b) Operating lease - -

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors :
(a) Assets on hire - -
(b) Repossessed Assets - -

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b) Loans other than (a) above - -

Amount
outstanding

As at March 31, 2024

(` in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023

Amount
overdue

Amount
outstanding

Amount
overdueLiabilities  side
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Assets side Amount outstanding Amount outstanding

(5) Break-up of Investments
Long Term investments
1. Quoted
(i) Shares

(a) Equity 2.74 2.57
(b) Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others (please specify) - -
2. Unquoted
(i) Shares

(a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others (please specify) - -
Current investments
1. Quoted
(i) Shares

(a) Equity
(b) Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others (please specify) - -
2. Unquoted
(i) Shares

(a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Other (Please Specify) - -

(` in Lakhs)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(` in Lakhs)

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :

Particulars

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other Related parties - - - -

2. Other than Related parties 7,576.74 - 7,866.63 -

Total 7,576.74 - 7,866.63 -

(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both 
quoted and unquoted) :

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties 2.74 2.74 2.57 2.57

2. Other than related parties - - - -

Total 2.74 2.74 2.57 2.57

(8) Other information

Particulars Amount Amount

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 583.06 653.88

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 169.68 241.55

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

Secured

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Unsecured
Amount (net of provisions) Amount (net of provisions)

Secured Unsecured
Category

Market Value /
Break up or
fair value or

NAV

Book Value
(Net of

Provisions)

Category Market Value /
Break up or
fair value or

NAV

Book Value
(Net of

Provisions)
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(` in Lakhs)

Asset Classification as per RBI
Norms (1)

Difference
between
Ind AS

109
provisions
and IRACP

norms
(7) = (4)-(6)

Provisions
required as

per
IRACP
norms

(6)

Net
Carrying
Amount

(5)=(3)-(4)

Loss
Allowances
(Provision

s) as
required

under
Ind AS 109

(4)

Gross
Carrying

Amount as
per

Ind AS 109
(3)

Asset
classificati

on
as per Ind

AS
109 (2)

Performing Assets

Standard Stage 1 6136.23 41.44 6094.79 33.15 8.29
Stage 2 857.45 4.80 852.65 3.84 0.96

Subtotal 6993.68 46.24 6947.44 36.99 9.25

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Sub standard Stage 3 126.96 28.82 98.14 19.22 9.60

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 95.19 36.02 59.17 24.01 12.01
1 to 3 years Stage 3 31.35 18.98 12.37 12.65 6.33
More than 3 years Stage 3 329.56 329.56 - 329.56 -
Subtotal for doubtful 456.10 384.56 71.54 366.22 18.34

Loss Stage 3 - - - - -

Subtotal for NPA 583.06 413.38 169.68 385.44 27.94

Other items such as guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in the Stage 1 - - - - -
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition, Asset Stage 2 - - - - -
Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - -

Stage 1 6136.23 41.44 6094.79 33.15 8.29
Total Stage 2 857.45 4.8 852.65 3.84 0.96

Stage 3 583.06 413.38 169.68 385.44 27.94

Total 7576.74 459.62 7117.12 422.43 37.19

As at March 31, 2024

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

44. In compliance with RBI circular number RBI/2019-20/170/DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13,
2021, the comparison between provisions required under IRACP and Impairment Allowances made under Ind AS 109 is tabulated
below:

Notes i) In terms of the requirement as per RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD. No.109/22.10.106/2019-
20 dated March 13, 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) are
required to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision on standard assets). The impairment
allowances under Ind AS 109 made by the Company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP (including
standard asset provisioning), as at March 31, 2024 and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to Impairment
Reserve.

ii) Provisions required as per IRACP norms amount to ` 422.43 lakhs.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Notes i) Provisions required as per IRACP norms amount to ` 418.43 lakhs.

(` in Lakhs)

Asset Classification as per RBI
Norms (1)

Difference
between
Ind AS

109
provisions
and IRACP

norms
(7) = (4)-(6)

Provisions
required as

per
IRACP
norms

(6)

Net
Carrying
Amount

(5)=(3)-(4)

Loss
Allowances
(Provision

s) as
required

under
Ind AS 109

(4)

Gross
Carrying

Amount as
per

Ind AS 109
(3)

Asset
classificati

on
as per Ind

AS
109 (2)

Performing Assets

Standard Stage 1 5,247.68 37.50 5,210.18 30.00 7.50
Stage 2 1,965.08 10.46 1,954.62 8.37 2.09

Subtotal 7,212.76 47.96 7,164.80 38.37 9.59

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Sub standard Stage 3 267.31 60.69 206.62 40.46 20.23

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 30.37 11.49 18.88 7.66 3.83
1 to 3 years Stage 3 40.67 24.63 16.04 16.42 8.21
More than 3 years Stage 3 315.52 315.52 - 315.52 -
Subtotal for doubtful 386.56 351.64 34.92 339.60 12.04

Loss Stage 3 - - - - -

Subtotal for NPA 653.87 412.33 241.54 380.06 32.27

Other items such as guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in the Stage 1 - - - - -
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition, Asset Stage 2 - - - - -
Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - -

Stage 1 5,247.68 37.50 5,210.18 30.00 7.50
Total Stage 2 1,965.08 10.46 1,954.62 8.37 2.09

Stage 3 653.87 412.33 241.54 380.06 32.27
Total 7,866.63 460.29 7,406.34 418.43 41.86

As at March 31, 2023



45. Other disclosures/information

45.1 Additional information required as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act (45 of 1988), as amended and rules made thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has not borrowed any money from any bank or financial institution against security of current assets
during the year.

(iii) Wilful defaulter
The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution or lender as at March 31, 2024.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
There are no transactions made by the Company during the year with struck off companies as at March 31, 2024.

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company does not have any subsidiary or Associate or Joint Venture company during the year.

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
During the year, no scheme of arrangements in relation to the Company has been approved by the competent authority
in terms of Section 232 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the company.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
As a part of normal lending business, the company grants loans and advances on the basis of security/guarantee provided
by the Borrower/Co borrower. These transactions are conducted after exercising proper due diligence.
Other than transactions described above, during the year the Company has not advanced or lend or invested funds
(either from the borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any person or entity, including
foreign entity (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary
shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries
The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(viii)Undisclosed income
The Company does not have any unrecorded transactions in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act,1961.

(ix) Transactions in crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(x) Revaluation of property, plant & equipment and intangible asset
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(xi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are pending to be registered with the Registrar of Companies as on
March 31, 2024.

45.2 Other Statutory information
(i) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was not required to spend any

amount on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities during the year ended March 31, 2024.
(ii) There was no amount outstanding and due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year

ended March 31, 2024.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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(iii) The Company has no long term contracts including derivative contracts having material foreseeable losses as at
March 31, 2024 other than disclosed in the other notes of the Financial Statement

(iv) The Company has not received any whistleblower complaint during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(v) There is no Core Investment Company within the group as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) guidelines as defined in Para No.3.1.2 of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company
– Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 are not applicable presenly to the Company.

47 Expenditure and Income in Foreign Currency : ` Nil (March 31, 2023 : ` Nil)

48 During the financial year 2015-16, maturity proceeds of ` 6.14 lakhs in respect of investment in 11.43% GOI Stocks held
in CSGL Account of the Company with ICICI Bank Limited was transferred to the Sahara-Sebi Account by the bank without
any authorization from the Company, in compliance to an Order of the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India and directions by
SEBI. On October 5, 2023, the maturity amount ` 6.14 lakhs was realised in bank account of the Company in respect of
the aforesaid investment.

49 Figures for previous year have been regrouped / restated where necessary to the extent required by Schedule III
amendments and Circulars/Directions/Clarification issued by RBI/NHB to make comparable with current year presentation.

50 All amounts in the financial statements and notes have been presented in lakhs upto two decimals as per requirement
of Schedule III except per share data and unless otherwise stated. Figures in brackets represent corresponding previous
year figures.

Ratio As at As at Variance (%)
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) (%) 110.84 106.22 4.35
Tier I CRAR (%) 109.82 105.17 4.42
Tier II CRAR (%) 1.02 1.05 (2.86)
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

46 Ratios Analysis
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